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ORANGE COUNTY

Department of Finance and Administrative Services

200 S. Cameron Street, PO Box 8181, Hillsborough, NC 27278 | Tel 919.245.2453 | Fax 919.644.3324

The Board of County Commissioners,
Bonnie Hammersley, County Manager
Residents of Orange County, North Carolina

Laws of the State of North Carolina, along with policies and procedures of the North Carolina Local
Government Commission, require that all local governments in the State publish a complete set of
financial statements annually. The financial statements must be presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") and audited in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. Pursuant to those requirements, I hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial
report ("CAFR") of Orange County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of Orange County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the County's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Since the
cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County's internal control structure has
been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be
free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County's financial statements have been audited by Mauldin & Jenkins, CPA, a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor rendered an unmodified opinion that the County's financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. This opinion can be
found at the beginning of the financial section of this document. In addition to the independent audit of
the financial statements, the County is required to undergo an annual "Single Audit" designed to meet the
special requirements of federal grantor agencies. Information regarding this audit can be obtained from the
County’s finance department.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A"). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
County's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of independent auditors.



COUNTY PROFILE

Orange County, founded in 1752, is located in the north-central portion of North Carolina, approximately
midway between Washington, DC and Atlanta, GA. The County is part of the Raleigh/Durham/Chapel
Hill Metropolitan Statistical Area, which also includes the Research Triangle Park, a major complex of
research and research-oriented manufacturing facilities.

The County operates under a Commissioner-Manager form of government. The governing body of the
County is the Board of County Commissioners, which formulates policies for the administration of the
County. In addition, the Board annually adopts a balanced budget and establishes a tax rate for the support
of the County's programs. The Board consists of seven commissioners, elected on a staggered basis for
terms of four years. The County Manager is appointed by, and serves at the pleasure of the Board as the
County's Chief Executive Officer. The County Manager has appointive and removal authority over
department heads and employees of the County. The County Manager is responsible for the daily
operations of the County Government. In addition, the Manager's responsibilities include implementation
of policies established by the Board of Commissioners, as well as the administration of the annual budget
adopted by the Board.

The County provides a wide range of services, including public safety, human services (Social Services,
Health and Aging), and funds for education, cultural and recreational activities, general administration
functions and others. This CAFR includes all funds and account groups of the County including all
activities considered to be part of (controlled by or dependent on) the County. In the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1995, the County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. As a result, the Orange County ABC Board is reported as a
discretely presented component unit of the County.

The budget serves as the foundation for Orange County's financial planning and control. As required by
the North Carolina Budget and Fiscal Control Act, the County adopts an annual budget for all
governmental funds except those authorized by project ordinance that are multi-year in nature.
Appropriations to the various funds are formally budgeted on a functional basis. The County Manager is
authorized to approve appropriation transfers within all functions. The County Commissioners must
approve transfers that alter the total appropriation of any functional category or fund, including the multi-
year project funds. However, for expenditure control purposes the budget is monitored and controlled on a
departmental level.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The County’s economy is characterized by a high degree of institutional and public-sector activity, plus
office, commercial and service-oriented business. The County is also the place of residence for many
technical, professional and executive people who work in the Research Triangle Park and neighboring
cities of Durham, Raleigh, and Burlington. The Research Triangle refers to an area located among three
municipalities: Chapel Hill, Durham and Raleigh. In addition to The University of North Carolina at
Chapel Hill, universities located in these municipalities include Duke University and North Carolina
Central University in the City of Durham and North Carolina State University in the City of Raleigh. The
proximity of these universities makes the Research Triangle area well-suited to many types of research
activities. The Research Triangle Park (the “Park™), located 10 miles east of the County, contains 7,000
acres of land which has been reserved for research and research-oriented manufacturing. Since its inception
in the 1950’s, approximately 250 private and governmental organizations have located facilities in the Park
and currently employ approximately 50,000 people. Approximately 87% of the employees in the Park
work for multinational corporations. The largest employers in the Park include: IBM Corporation,
GlaxoSmithKline, Cisco, Nortel, RTI International, Fidelity Investments, US Environmental Protection
Agency, National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, Biogen IDEC and NetApp. Because of its
close proximity to the County and the fact that many of the Park’s employees reside in the County, the
impact of the Park on the County’s economy is significant. According to the Orange County Economic
Development Commission, the leading industries in the County are educational, health and social services,



professional, scientific, management, administrative and waste management services and arts,
entertainment, recreation, accommodation and food services. The County’s most common occupations,
according to the Orange County Economic Development Commission, are management, professional and
related occupations (54%), sales and office occupations (19.5%) and service occupations (16.4%).
Manufacturing and agriculture are lesser portions of the County’s economy.

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and UNC Health Care System are the largest employers in
the County. The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and UNC Health Care System and their
associated service, teaching and research programs have a reputation for excellence in the educational and
medical fields. The UNC Health Care System expanded its medical campus to the town of Hillsborough in
2015 and this complex includes 50 acute care beds, an 18-bed intensive care unit, six operating rooms, two
procedure rooms, an emergency department and outpatient medical and surgical specialty services,
including urgent care, imaging and oncology. An industrial strip adjacent to Interstate 85 in the western
portion of the County is the location of several manufacturing firms. The County has designated over 2,450
acres in three strategically placed areas along Interstate 85 and 40 as Economic Development Districts. The
County’s location, midway between the Piedmont Triad and Research Triangle metropolitan areas, makes
these sites extremely attractive. The districts offer development potential for light industrial,
warehouse/flex space, office, retail and business service. Numerous tracts, ranging in size from 20 to 100
acres or more, are available.

The County is seeking to spur economic development by providing funds through the Article 46 Sales Tax
to finance the development of utility extensions for commercial entities in its Economic Development
Districts. The County uses the Article 46 Tax to provide a portion of the upfront water and sewer
infrastructure costs for businesses locating in these districts.

Fiscal Outlook. The adopted General Fund Budget for FY 2018-19 totals $226.8 million which represents
$7.2 million or a 3.3% increase over the FY 2017-18 adopted budget. The County Budget includes a 1.27
cent increase in the property tax rate to fund a $3.2 million increase in debt service. The County tax rate
was recommended to increase from $0.8377 per $100 of assessed valuation to $0.8504 per $100 of
assessed valuation. The County tax base has increased by 1.4% to $17.3 billion. This tax base increase
coupled with the tax rate increase results in approximately 3.1% growth over the FY 2017-18 property tax
revenue projection or an additional $4.4 million in additional property tax revenues. The County budget
maintains a goal of allocating 48.1% of General Fund revenues to Education spending. The budget
increases per pupil expenditures by $174 to $4,165 per pupil, which has consistently been among the
highest per pupil appropriation amounts in the State. The FY 2018-19 appropriation represents 50.1% of
total General Fund revenues. The budget appropriates $3 million of fund balance to establish a new
schools deferred maintenance program. The fiscal year 2018-19 budget fully funds all positions of the
County and provides a 2% across the board wage increase for all County employees effective July 1, 2018.
Property tax revenues comprise $156.6 million or 72% of General Fund revenues. Sales tax revenues
comprise $24.1 million or 11% of General Fund revenues. The remaining 17% of General Fund revenues
are comprised of Intergovernmental revenues, Charges for Services, Licenses and Permits, and
Miscellaneous revenues. The revenue budget recognizes the loss of impact fee revenue that had been used
to support debt service associated with new school capacity. The impact fee fund contained a residual
balance of $1.6 million that is appropriated in the FY2018-19 Budget. The budget controls expenditure
growth, focusing on funding the continuation needs of County departments and education, and reduces the
reliance on fund balance for ongoing budget stabilization. The fund balance appropriation for FY 2018-19
is $8.8 million compared to $9.7 million in FY 2017-18, and $12.7 million in FY 2016-17. This budget
goal is consistent with the County’s Long Range Financial Plan objectives and the FY 2018-19 budget
achieves the County’s 16% Unassigned Fund balance policy.

Article 46 Y4 cents sales tax was approved by the voters in a November 2011 referendum and became
effective April 1, 2012. Fifty percent of the % cent sales tax is allocated to both County school systems on an
average daily membership percent basis to fund school capital projects. The other fifty percent is allocated
to economic development initiatives including supporting water and sewer infrastructure funding in the



County’s three economic development districts. The Article 46 sales tax revenue is budgeted at $3.6 million
for fiscal year 2018-19.

The County has an extensive ten-year Capital Investment Plan to provide public safety upgrades, school
facilities, government facilities, affordable housing, parks and recreation, information technology, water and
sewer in the Economic Development Districts, and various equipment purchases. Pursuant to a November
2016 bond referendum, the County will issue General Obligation bonds to fund its two school systems;
the Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Schools and Orange County Schools improvements and affordable
housing land banking projects. The bond referendum authorized $120 million in School bonds and $5
million in Affordable housing bonds. The County expects to complete its voter approved General Obligation
debt issuances by fiscal year 2022.

Fiscal Policy. The County continues to demonstrate strong financial management as a result of its
compliance with its Board adopted financial policies. These policies have enabled the County to remain
financially strong through prior recessions and any downturns in the economic climate or in
intergovernmental funding. Financial modeling is used to determine the fiscal impact from both short and
long-term economic trends. The Board and County Manager regularly take action to contain expenditures
within the authorized appropriation levels.

The County adheres to a 15% Debt Policy as measured by debt service as a percentage of the budget below
the 15% of General Fund expenditures limit, which is the goal the County strives to maintain. The County
16% Fund Balance Policy as measured by the General Fund unassigned fund balance at 16.2% of
General Fund expenditures as of June 30, 2018 in conformance with the Board adopted policy. The
County’s required reserve by state statute adds to the available fund balance.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada ("GFOA") awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Orange County for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This marks the eighteenth consecutive
year that Orange County has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The County also received the GFOA's award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its 2018 annual
budget document. This is the 27th year that the award has been presented to the County. In order to qualify
for this award, the County's budget document was judged proficient in several categories including policy
documentation, financial planning and organization. The Budget Division believes the fiscal year 2018
budget continues to conform to program requirements and is submitting it to the GFOA to determine
eligibility for another award.

Orange County departments and respective employees are deeply committed to the goals, vision and
mission statement of the County government. This is evidenced by the high quality of service delivery to
the residents of the County. I appreciate the collaborative nature of each County department in assisting in
the preparation of this report and ongoing support in executing the daily financial activities of the
Department of Finance and Administrative Services. I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
members of the Department of Finance and Administrative Services for their professionalism, hard work,
and diligence in contributing to the preparation of this financial report. Special recognition is extended to



Paul Laughton, Deputy Finance Director, Howard Fitts, Senior Accountant, Pascal Moore, Accountant, and
Chaz Offenburg, Budget Management Analyst, for their tireless effort and commitment that they have
exhibited throughout the report preparation process and to Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC and their associates, for
their assistance.

I would like to thank the Board of County Commissioners, County Manager Bonnie Hammersley and
Deputy County Manager Travis Myren for their vision and leadership in contributing to Orange County’s
strong financial position.

Respectfully submitted,
Gary DZnaldson, CTP
Chief Financial Officer



The County Economy

General Description

The County is located in the North-Central Piedmont
section of North Carolina between the Research Triangle
Park and the Piedmont Triad. The County is midway
between Washington, D.C. and Atlanta, Georgia. Orange
County is approximately 401 square miles in area, of
which approximately 177 square miles are unincorporated,
39 square miles are farmland, 132 square miles are

forested, and 53 square miles are urbanized.
Source: Orange County Economic Development

Orange County is comprised of four municipalities:
Hillsborough, Chapel Hill, Carrboro, and a portion of
Mebane. The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill,
the oldest State-supported University in the United States,
is located in the County. The County is a diverse
community mixed with historic sites, scenic rural areas,

excellent healthcare and higher education facilities.
Source: Orange County Economic Development

Exhibit 1 indicates the historical population trend for the
County. The North Carolina Budget and Management
population metrics shows that the County population has

increased 3.0% the past five years. Source: Orange County
Economic Development

Exhibit 1:

Orange County Population
Year Population
2013 139,694
2014 141,596
2015 141,704
2016 143,264
2017 143,873

Source: North Carolina Budget and Management

General Economic Indicators

Exhibit 2 indicates Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
which is a prominent economic indicator for measuring
performance of the economy. The Durham-Chapel Hill
Metropolitan Statistical area is the best proxy for Orange
County.

Exhibit 2:
Durham-Chapel Hill Real GDP*

in millions

$39,357
$38,852 $38.682
] $37,288 $37,278
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Source: United States Bureau of Economic Analysis
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Exhibit 3 indicates Gross Retail Sales which is a reliable
indicator of consumer spending activity. Gross Retail Sales
has increased 24% from Fiscal Year 2013-14 to Fiscal
Year 2017-18.

Exhibit 3:
Gross Retail Sales

in millions
$1,766

1,726
$1,477 $1.568 °
$1,422 '

1l

FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18

Source: North Carolina Department of Revenue

Tax Base

Exhibit 4 indicates the change in the tax base (assessed
valuation) the past five fiscal years. The tax base has
remained stable. The County tax base is 80% residential
and 20% commercial with most of the population and
commercial base concentrated in the southern region in the
Towns of Chapel Hill and Carrboro.

Exhibit 4:

Assessed Valuations
in billions

16,632 16,502 16,778 17,025 18,331

11111

FY 2013-14 FY2014-15 FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2017-18

M Real Property M Personal Property ® Other

Source: Tax Administration

Exhibit 5 indicates the ten principal taxpayers which
account for approximately 3% of totaled assessed
valuation or $556,342,368. The principal taxpayers are
from the following industries: Public Utility, Apartment

Rental, Office/Retail, Banking and Condominiums.
Source: Orange County Financial Services




Exhibit 5:
Principal Taxpayers
Assessed
Taxpayers Industry Valuation
Duke Energy Carolinas LLC Public Utility $129,454,111
Village Plaza Apartments Apartment
LLC Rental $61,604,500
g‘:f;“"“t Electric Member b yic Utility  $60,474,276
Northwestern Mutual Life Office / Retail $57.505.,550
Insurance Co.
Public Service Co of NC Inc. Office / Retail $50,193,948
Sta‘te Employees Credit Bank $47.142.644
Union
East 54 Office Retail LLC Office / Retail $40,135,700
Chapel Hill At the Pointe Apartment
Villager LLC Rental $37,002,485
G&I VIII Midtown 501 LLC ~ /partment $36.468,100
Rental
Granville Towers LLC Condos $36,361,054
Total - $556,342,368
Percentage of County o
Assessed Valuation ) 2.85%

Source: Tax Administration

Employment and the Economy

Demographics

The County is home to the University of North Carolina at
Chapel Hill and UNC Health Care, which are major
employment sources in the County.

Exhibit 6 indicates the economic and employment
diversity in the County. The County’s predominant
occupations are in educational services, healthcare and
social assistance, and retail trade sectors. Industry sectors
such as Agriculture, Utilities, and Management of
Companies and Enterprises comprise small portions of the
Orange County Industry Structure.

Exhibit 6:
Industry Structure

Industry Employment
Educational Services 20,617
Health Care and Social Assistance 17,457
Retail Trade 6,732
Accommodation and Food Services 6,419
Professional and Technical Services 3,239
Public Administration 2,668
Other Services, Ex. Public Administration 2,396
Construction 1,809
Manufacturing 1,658
Administrative and Waste Services 1,286
Finance and Insurance 1,121
Information 1,086
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Wholesale Trade 941

Real Estate, Rental, and Leasing 830
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 827
Transportation and Warehousing 665

458

Management of Companies and Enterprises

Source: Orange County Economic Development

The County economy is characterized by a high degree of
institutional and public-sector activity, office, commercial
and service-oriented businesses. The County is the place of
residence for technical, professional and executive
professionals who work in the Research Triangle Park (the
“Park™) and neighboring cities of Durham, Raleigh, and
Burlington.

Exhibit 7 indicates the major employers in the County. The
County’s major employers has remained relatively
consistent in the education, health services, manufacturing,
trade, transportation, and utilities sectors.

Exhibit 7:
Major Employers

UNC Chapel Hill*

UNC Health Care System*
1000+ Employees
Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Schools*

Orange County Schools*

Orange County*
Town Of Chapel Hill*
UNC Physician Network LLC*

500 to 999 Employees

Sports Endeavors, Inc.
Wal-Mart

Harris Teeter

AKG of America, Inc.
General Electric Corp
PHE, Inc.*

The Chapel Hill Residential

250 to 499 Employees

Food Lion

Weaver Street Market*

Wellspring Grocery

Aramark Food & Support Services

A Southern Season

Residential Services, Inc.

Carolina Inn
100 to 249 Employees

Town of Carrboro*

US Postal Service

*Headquartered in the County
Source: Orange County Economic Development



Personal Income

Exhibit 8 indicates the County’s per capita personal
income which has consistently been well above both the
state and national averages.

Exhibit 8:

Per Capita Personal Income
in thousands

$55 S58 $60
40$5I2 $40I $41I $42I $43 l
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
N.C.

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis

Employment

Exhibit 9 indicates the average monthly unemployment
rates for each of the past five fiscal years. As noted on the
chart, the County’s unemployment rate has consistently
been below the state and national rates.

Exhibit 9:
Unemployment Rates

Average % for Each Fiscal Year

6,268
57 5358
48 49° aa 444246 e
l l I - ]

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018*
B U.S. BN.C. m Orange

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

Exhibit 10 indicates new residential construction by type,
which illustrates that the construction sector recovery from
the last recession has been sustained. New residential
construction increased by 205% from 2014 to 2018.

Exhibit 10:
New Residential Construction by Type
Single Multi
Year Apartments  Family Family Total
2014 0 182 26 208
2015 123 241 39 280
2016 208 228 62 290
2017 0 324 115 439
2018 0 402 25 427
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Source: Orange County Permits and Inspections Department

Exhibit 11 indicates building permit activity which
illustrates performance of the construction sector within
the County.

Exhibit 11:
Number and Value of Building Permits

Year Permits Residential Non-Residential
2014 3878 $160,628,677 $71,129,212
2015 4075 $255,541,888 $66,669,016
2016 2135 $216,131,293 $94,405,675
2017 2383 $185,101,902 $32,874,171
2018 1819 $136,323,216 $26,319,763

Source: Orange County Permits and Inspections Division

Housing Market

Exhibit 12 indicates the average home sale price in the
County the past five years in comparison to the Case-
Shiller National Home Price Index. Chapel Hill, a
municipality in Orange County, is the highest priced major
housing market in the Triangle Region. The Orange
County housing market has remained relatively consistent
with the Case-Shiller U.S. National Home Price Index.
Average home sales price in Orange County has continued
to increase with the average home sales price at $366,159
as of October 1, 2018.

Exhibit 12:

Average Orange County Home Sale Price
Versus Case-Shiller National Home Price Index

$385,000.00 198.0
$375,000.00 1915
$365,000.00 185.0
$355,000.00 1785
$345,000.00 1720
$335,000.00 165.5
$325,000.00 159.0
$315,000.00 152.5
$305,000.00 146.0
$295,000.00 139.5
$285,000.00 133.0
$275,000.00 126.5
$265,000.00 120.0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Orange County Average Sales Price
Case-Shiller National Home Price Index

Source: Triangle MLS and S&P/Case Shiller U.S. National Home Price Index




Other Key Data

Education

The County funds two school districts; Chapel Hill-
Carrboro City School District and Orange County School
District.

Exhibit 13 indicates the total budgeted students in both
school districts for the past five academic years.

Exhibit 13:
Total Budgeted Students

Chapel Hill-Carrboro

Orange County

Year City Schools Schools Total
2013-14 12,242 7,666 19,908
2014-15 12,339 7,863 20,202
2015-16 12,239 7,801 20,040
2016-17 11,993 7,966 19,959
2017-18 12,160 8,072 20,232

Source: Department of Public Instruction, March Planning Figures

A seven-member Board of Education is the policy-making
authority of Orange County School District and an eight
member Board of Education for Chapel Hill-Carrboro City
School District.

Board of Education members are elected to four-year
staggered terms on a non-partisan basis. Administrative
responsibility is vested in an appointed superintendent who
serves as chief executive officer.

Each Board of Education relies upon the County for local
funds needed to support public school current expense and
capital outlay needs.

Each Board of Education must present their current
expense and capital outlay budget requests to the County
by April 30 each year.

Appropriations to the Board of Education are discussed in
the County’s budget hearings and the approved amount for
the schools is appropriated in the County’s operating
budget adopted by July 1.

Exhibit 14 indicates County per pupil appropriation the
past twelve years. The County has consistently maintained
among the highest per pupil appropriations of any county
in North Carolina.

Exhibit 14:
Historical Per Pupil Appropriation
v Apl;)er:)[l::'lig ilion Annual % Increase
ear
2006-07 $2,957 5.8%
2007-08 $3,069 3.8%
2008-09 $3,200 4.3%
2009-10 $3,096 -3.3%
2010-11 $3,096 0.0%
2011-12 $3,102 0.19%
2012-13 $3,167 2.1%
2013-14 $3,269 3.2%
2014-15 $3,571 9.2%
2015-16 $3,697.50 3.5%
2016-17 $3,868 4.6%
2017-18 $3,991 3.2%

Source: Orange County Finance and Administrative Services

Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Schools District

The Chapel Hill-Carrboro City School District (CHCCS)
comprises ten elementary schools, four middle schools,
three high schools and a school for students being treated
at UNC Chapel Hill Hospital. Chapel Hill-Carrboro City
Schools has the highest average SAT score in the state and
its high schools have been recognized in national
publications for its excellent academic performance.

Orange County Schools District

Orange County School District comprises seven
elementary (one year-round school of choice), three
middle schools, two high schools and an alternative
school. Orange County Schools offers an International
Baccalaureate Diploma for advanced students. Orange
County Schools states itself to be the “First Choice for
Families”.

Graduation Rates

Exhibit 15 indicates graduation rates for Chapel Hill-
Carrboro City Schools and Orange County in comparison
to the National averages.

As illustrated graduation rates for both Chapel Hill-
Carrboro School District and Orange County School
District are above the state and national average.



Exhibit 15:
Graduation Rates
System Rate
Chapel Hill-Carrboro City 90%
Orange County 89%
North Carolina 86%
United States 83%

Source: National Center for Educational Statistics and North Carolina Department
of Public Instruction

Exhibit 16 indicates the most available College and
University enrollment data within the County. The County
offers the opportunity to attend an exceptional community
college or State university.

Exhibit 16:
Student Enrollment at Higher Education Facilities
Institution 2016 2017
UNC- Chapel Hill 29,084 29,911

Durham Technical
Community College*

Source: UNC Chapel Hill and Durham Technical Community College

2,401 2,403

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill (UNC) is
the nation’s oldest state university, with a rich history of
more than two centuries. UNC is one of the State’s top and
most progressive institutions of teaching, research, and
public services. The campus covers approximately 730
acres and provides education to more than 29,000 students.
UNC has earned a reputation as one of the best public
university investments and is one of the leading research
universities. ~ UNC-Chapel Hill’s doctoral programs
include Bio-medical sciences, Dentistry, Physics,
Education, and Chemistry. The University of North
Carolina also includes top ranked Medical and Law
Schools.

Durham Technical Community is situated on 20 acres
within the County. Durham Technical Community The
college curriculum includes a Nursing Assistant program,
Adult Education programs, and English as a Second
Language courses. The County funds a scholarship
program for Orange County high school students who
enroll in Durham Technical Community College
immediately following High School graduation. This
scholarship program is funded from Article 46 sales tax
proceeds.

Exhibit 17 indicates educational attainment within the
County. The County is ranked as 7th in the United States
with the greatest percentage of residents with graduate
degrees and 14th in the greatest percentage of people with
bachelor’s degrees. The presence of the University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill is a primary factor for the

County’s highly educated labor force.

Source: United States Census Data on Educational Attainment by County

Exhibit 17:

Educational Attainment
Population 25 years and over in 2016

Highest Education Level Orange N.C. U.S.

Did Not Graduate High

School 7.7% 13.7% 13.0%
High School Graduate 15.0% 26.4% 27.5%
Some College, No Degree 13.7% 21.8% 21.0%
Associate’s Degree 5.9% 9.1% 8.2%
Bachelor's Degree 26.1% 18.8% 18.8%
Graduate Degree or Higher 31.6% 10.2% 11.5%

Source: United States Census

Medical

Orange County residents have access to top quality
medical services. According to the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation, Orange County is highly rated in North
Carolina for Health Factors based on health behaviors,
clinical care, social and economic factors, and the physical
environment.

The County is predominantly served by UNC Hospitals, a
public, academic medical center. The Hospitals’ mission is
to provide high quality patient care, to educate health care
professionals, to advance research and to provide
community service. UNC Hospitals was established in
September 1952 under the name North Carolina Memorial
Hospital.

Exhibit 18 indicates the medical facilities located in the
County and their respective licensed bed capacities as per
the most available data.
Exhibit 18:
Hospitals in Orange County

Hospital Licensed Beds
UNC Medical Center 900
UNC Hillsborough Campus 86

Source: UNC Health Care

There are seven other hospitals within 30 miles of Orange
County including the following: NC Specialty Hospital,
Duke University Hospital, Durham Regional Hospital,
U.S. Veterans Medical Hospital, Alamance Regional
Hospital, Chatham Hospital, and Person Memorial
Hospital.

Transportation

Orange County is strategically located on the I-85/1-40
corridors. The County is served by Interstate Highways 40
(I-40) and 85 (I-85); by U.S. Highways 15, 70, and 501;
and by N.C. Highways 49, 54, 57, 86, and 751. Major
expansion, maintenance, and improvements of primary and
secondary highways within the County are primarily the
responsibility of the State. Each of the four municipalities




within the County bears the primary responsibility for
public streets within its limits. The County has no financial
obligation regarding road construction or maintenance.

Orange County Public Transportation provides transit and
commuting options for Orange County residents. Public
transit services are offered for the general public, seniors,
persons with disabilities, and providing non-emergency
medical transportation for Medicaid recipients. The
Hillsborough Circulator Route connects major destinations
throughout Hillsborough and is free to all passengers. The
Orange-Chapel Hill Connector Route connects major
destinations in Hillsborough, Chapel Hill and Cedar Grove
in Northern Orange County. Two additional routes
expanding to the Efland-Hillsborough Commuter Loop
and the Orange-Alamance Midday Connector are planned.

The Towns of Chapel Hill and Carrboro provide their
residents with buses primarily serving students at the
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill. The County is
a member of the Research Triangle Regional Public
Transportation Authority which is referred to as Go
Triangle. Go Triangle is a regional public transportation
offering public transit and vanpool services in the Triangle

Region and adjacent counties.
Source: Orange County Public Transportation

Orange County is approximately 20 miles east of the
Raleigh Durham International Airport (RDU Airport).
RDU Airport has passenger service to 38 destinations with
an average of 352 daily arrivals and departures. RDU
airport is served by 8 major airlines including American
Airlines, Delta Air Lines, JetBlue Airways, United

Airlines, and Frontier Airlines.
Source: Raleigh-Durham International Airport

Amtrak offers direct service to 56 cities from nearby
Raleigh. The Silver Star provides daily service to
Richmond, Washington, New York, Miami, and many
points in between. The Carolinian travels daily between
Charlotte and New York City, with stops in Raleigh,
Richmond, Washington, DC, Baltimore and Philadelphia.
The Piedmont makes daily trips between Raleigh and
Charlotte.

Source: Orange County Economic Development

Culture and Recreation

Music, history, and art offerings abound throughout the
County. Hikes through the Riverwalk in Hillsborough and
strolls down Franklin Street in Chapel Hill offer unique
ways to discover North Carolina. The Ackland Art
Museum, Eno Gallery, and Frank Gallery offer an array of
visual arts and bring special exhibits and local art to the
eye of County. UNC’s Memorial Hall, Cat’s Cradle, the
Arts Center, DSI Comedy Theater, and the Forest Theater
showcase the artistic, theatrical, and musical expressions
of renowned artists. The North Carolina Botanical
Gardens, Montrose  Gardens, Woodcrest Farms,
Occoneechee Mountain State Natural Area, and Eno State
River Park showcase the natural beauty of the County.
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The County offers nearly every sport and recreational
endeavor for its residents. The County’s park facilities
include tennis courts, play grounds, swimming pools,
soccer fields, ball parks, picnic areas, biking, hiking,
canoeing, a skate park, and dog parks. The Orange County
Sportsplex offers additional recreational activity. The
Sportsplex hosts many events such as swim meets, skating
competitions, hockey tournaments, and triathlons. Per the
Orange County Capital Investment Plan, the Sportsplex
hosts over 700,000 visitors each year.

The Orange County recreation center offers many courses
for youths and adults alike. Each year, summer and spring
break camps are offered, which include basketball, tac
kwon do, and general summer camps. Children and adults
are able to take art, cooking, and computer education
courses. The center offers a variety of sports leagues and
classes, as well as Tai Chi classes.

Four Municipalities

Orange County consists of four incorporated
municipalities: Chapel Hill, Hillsborough, Carrboro and a
portion of Mebane. Each is unique and, together, they are
the perfect blend of cosmopolitan culture and energy with
the relaxation of rural life.

The Town of Chapel Hill, or as locals call it, “the Southern
part of heaven,” is probably best known as the home of the
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, the nation’s
first state university and an institution that is continually
recognized for having one of the best undergraduate
programs in the U.S. As a result, the town’s culture blends
college town, quaint Southern charm and fine dining,
shopping and entertainment.

The Town of Carrboro was founded nearly a century and a
half ago. The town’s rustic charm still remains, with both
the original rail station and the textile mill listed on the
National Register of Historic Places. Carrboro features a
downtown that offers unique shopping and dining, a
growing arts community and a reputation for great
farmer’s markets.

The Town of Hillsborough was founded over 250 years
ago and was once the colonial capital of North Carolina.
Hillsborough now serves as the County seat of Orange
County. The town boasts over one hundred late 18th and
19th century structures and is listed on the National
Register of Historic Places. The town’s residents enjoy
charming shops and restaurants and many activities
celebrating the arts and history being held almost daily.

The City of Mebane’s namesake is Brigadier General
Alexander Mebane, a Revolutionary War officer and later,
a United States Congressman. The city of Mebane is at the
center of one of the fastest growing areas in North
Carolina, offering the conveniences of city life with all of
the escape opportunities that city dwellers often seek; the
mountains are just three hours to the west and the coast,
just three hours to the east.
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FINANCIAL SECTION




AULDIN
& | ENKINS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Members of the Board of Commissioners
Orange County, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Orange County,
North Carolina (the “County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Orange County ABC Board, which represents 100% of the assets, net position, and revenues of the
discretely presented component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Orange County ABC Board, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the
Orange County ABC Board were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

200 GALLERIA PARKWAY S.E., SUITE 1700 « ATLANTA, GA 30339-5946 * 770-955-8600 * 800-277-0080 « FAX 770-980-4489 » www.mjcpa.com
Members of The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Orange County,
North Carolina as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 10 and 14, the County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as of July 1, 2017. This standard
significantly changed the accounting for the County’s net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability and related
disclosures. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in the County’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios — OPEB Plan, the Schedule of County
Contributions — OPEB Plan, the Schedule of OPEB Investment Returns — OPEB Plan, the Schedule of Changes in Total Pension
Liability — LEOSSA, the Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll — LEOSSA, the County’s
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) — LGERS, the Schedule of the County’s Contributions — LGERS, the County’s
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) — Register of Deeds Supplemental Pension Fund, and the Schedule of the
County’s Contributions — Register of Deeds Supplemental Pension Fund, on pages 4-13, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 92, and
93, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining and individual fund statements and schedules,
and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules (the “supplementary information”) are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2018 on our
consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ManQin & &,&M L

Atlanta, Georgia
November 30, 2018



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

As management of the County, we offer readers of
Orange County’s (the “County”) financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the County for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in the
County’s financial statements, which follow this
narrative.

Financial Highlights

The liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the
County exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $57.2
million (net position). In accordance with North
Carolina law, liabilities of the County include
approximately $98.9 million in long-term debt
associated with assets belonging to the Orange County
Board of Education and the Chapel Hill-Carrboro City
Board of Education. As these assets are not reflected
in the County's financial statements and the full
amount of the long-term debt is reflected in the
County's financial statements, the County reports a net
deficit in net position.

The government's total net position increased by $1.9
million. This increase is attributed to revenues
exceeding expenses and strong cost containment
measures.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County's
governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $126.7 million, an increase of $21.1
million in comparison with the prior year. The
increases reflect additional debt issuance activity
during the fiscal year. The General Fund total ending
fund balance of $63.5 million includes $34.4 million
of unassigned fund balance.

The unassigned General Fund ending fund balance of
$34.4 million represented 16.2% of total General Fund
expenditures for the fiscal year consistent with the
County policy of unassigned fund balance of 16% of
General Fund expenditures.

Orange County maintains the highest credit quality,
with bond ratings of AAA (Fitch IBCA), Aaa
(Moody's Investor Services) and AAA (Standard &
Poor's) on its general obligation bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as
an introduction to the County's basic financial
statements. The County's basic financial statements
consist of three components; 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to basic financial statements. The basic
financial statements present two different views of the
County through the use of government-wide
statements and fund financial statements. In addition
to the basic financial statements, this report contains
other supplemental information that will enhance the
reader's understanding of the financial condition of the
County.

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial
statements are the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. They provide both short and long-term
information about the County's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements.
These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the County's government. These
statements  provide more detail than the
government-wide statements. There are four parts to
the Fund Financial Statements:

1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the
budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary
fund statements and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is
the notes to the basic financial statements (notes).
The notes explain in detail some of the data contained
in those statements. After the notes, supplemental
information is provided to show additional details
about the County’s major and nonmajor governmental
funds, proprietary and internal service funds, all of
which are added together in one column on the basic
financial statements. Budgetary information required
by the General Statutes also can be found in this part
of the statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide the reader with a broad overview
of the County's finances, similar in format to a
financial statement of a private-sector business. The
government-wide statements provide short and
long-term information about the County's financial
status as a whole.
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The two government-wide statements report the
County's net position and how they have changed.
Net position is the difference between the County's
total assets and deferred outflows of resources and
total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.
Measuring net position is one way to gauge the
County's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into
three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2)
business-type activities; and 3) component units.
The governmental activities include most of the
County's basic  services, such as general
administration, taxation and records, community
planning, community maintenance, human services,
education, public safety, and public works. Property
and other taxes and Federal and State grant funds
finance most of these activities. The business-type
activities are those that the County charges customers
to provide a related service. These include the sewer

and landfill services and recreational services offered
by the County. The final category is the component
units. Although legally separate from the County, the
ABC Board is important to the County because the
County exercises control over the Board by appointing
its members and because the Board is required to
distribute its profits to the County.

The government-wide financial statements are on
pages 14 through 16 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed
look at the County's most significant activities. A
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
County, like all other governmental entities in North
Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect
compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related
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legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the
County's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the
County can be divided into three categories:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for those
functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Most of the
County's basic services are accounted for in
governmental funds. These funds focus on how
assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and
out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be
available for spending in the next year.
Governmental funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting, which
provides a current financial resources focus. As a
result, the governmental fund financial statements
give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps
him or her determine if there are more or less financial
resources available to finance the County's programs.
The relationship between governmental activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is
described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund
financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General
Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The
budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates
input from the residents of the County, the
management of the County, and the decisions of the
Board about which services to provide and how to pay
for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain
funds from identified sources to finance these current
period activities. The budgetary statements provided
for the General Fund demonstrate how well the
County complied with the budget ordinance and
whether or not the County succeeded in providing the
services as planned when the budget was adopted.
The budgetary comparison statements use the
budgetary basis of accounting and are presented using
the same format, language, and classifications as the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: 1)
the original budget as adopted by the Board; 2) the
final budget as amended by the Board; 3) the actual
resources, charges to appropriations, and ending

balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or
variance between the final budget and the actual
resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds

The County has two kinds of proprietary funds.
Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County
uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer activity,
for its landfill operations, and Sportsplex operations.
These funds are the same as those functions shown in
the business-type activities in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities. Internal
service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
functions of the County. The County uses internal
service funds to account for three activities - its
employee health and dental insurance program and its
vehicle replacement program. Because these
operations benefit predominantly governmental rather
than business-type activities, the internal service funds
have been included within the governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets the
County holds on behalf of others. The County’s
fiduciary funds consist of twelve agency funds and an
OPEB Trust Fund.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to basic financial statements are on pages
26-82 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and
accompanying notes, this report includes certain
required supplementary information concerning the
County's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits and other post-employment benefits
to its employees. Required Supplementary
Information can be found beginning on page 83 of this
report.
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Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities Total

2018 2017-Restated 2018 2017-Restated 2018 2017-Restated
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 144684875 $ 119,411,957 $ 16310411 $ 17,525331 $ 160995286 $ 136,937,288
Capital assets 101,843,976 102,685,820 19,393,713 16,363,678 121,237,689 119,049,498
Total assets 246,528,851 222,097,777 35,704,124 33,889,009 282,232,975 255,986,786
Deferred Outflows 13,665,653 14,763,863 527,092 832,007 14,192,745 15,595,870
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities 316,390,962 300,853,464 18,103,855 19,215,421 334,494,817 320,068,885
Other liabilities 8,189,834 8,580,812 1,493,667 889,494 9,683,501 9,470,306
Total liabilities 324,580,796 309,434,276 19,597,522 20,104,915 344,178,318 329,539,191
Deferred inflows 9,338,726 1,088,906 106,649 32,742 9,445,375 1,121,648
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 30,229,146 29,924,257 10,361,313 6,883,243 40,590,459 36,807,500
Restricted 51,739,610 29,691,211 - - 51,739,610 29,691,211
Unrestricted (155,693,774) (133,277,010) 6,165,732 7,700,116 (149,528,042) (125,576,894)
Total net position $ (73,725018) § (73,661,542) $ 16,527,045 $§ 14583359 $§ (57,197,973) $ (59,078,183)

As noted earlier, net position serves, as one useful
indicator of a government's financial condition. The
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the
County exceeded assets and deferred outflows of
resources by $57.2 million as of June 30, 2018. Net
position is reported in three categories:  Net
investment in capital assets of $40.8 million, restricted
net position of $51.7 million, and unrestricted net
deficit of $149.8 million.

The net investment in capital assets category is
defined as the County's net investment in
County-owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
automotive equipment, office and other equipment,
and sewer lines). The County uses these capital
assets to provide services to residents; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the County's investment in its capital assets
is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the
resources needed to repay that debt must be provided
by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities. At June 30, 2018,
the net investment in capital assets increased by $4.0
million.

The final category of net position is unrestricted net
position. This balance may be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to residents and
creditors. At June 30, 2018, the total net deficit
reported of $57.2 million is attributable to the
unrestricted net deficit balance of ($149.8) million,
which results primarily from the debt financing related
to school system assets.

Consistent with other counties in the State of North
Carolina, the County's deficit in unrestricted net
position is due primarily to the portion of the County's
outstanding debt incurred for the two school systems
located within the County. Under North Carolina
law, the County is responsible for providing capital
funding for the school systems. The County has
chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the
school systems capital funding by using a combination
of County funds, general obligation debt, and
installment financing. It is important to note, that the
assets funded by the County are owned and utilized by
the school systems. The County is the issuing
government for school system debt but acquires no
capital assets; therefore the County has incurred a
liability without a related increase in assets. At the
end of the fiscal year, approximately $98.9 million of
the outstanding debt on the County's financial
statements was related to assets included in the school
systems’ financial statements. The majority of this
school system related debt is general obligation debt,
which is secured and pledged by the full faith, credit,
and taxing power of the County. The County is
authorized and required by State law to levy ad
valorem taxes, without limit as to rate or amount to
pay the debt service on its general obligation bonds.
Principal and interest requirements will be provided
by an appropriation in the year in which such
requirements are due and payable. The majority of
the non-general obligation debt is repaid from sales
taxes earmarked for school capital, education lottery
proceeds, and ad valorem property taxes allocated to
school capital.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Primary Government
Revenues, Expenses, and Unassigned Fund Balance
300

Millions

250

200 -

150

100

50

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

M Expenses MRevenue M Unassigned Fund Balance

As noted earlier, the government's total net position
increased by $1.9 million. This increase resulted from
a combination of an increase in revenues in
governmental activities and an increase in expenses.
The business-type activities provided a increase to net
position of $1.9 million. In addition, the following
positive operational initiatives and results are noted:

e  The County continued to lead the State in per
pupil funding for education.

e The unassigned fund balance in the County's
General Fund remained strong and unchanged at
$34.4 million or 16.2% consistent with the
County’s 16% fund balance policy. The county
exercises fiscal discipline and strong management
controls in managing the operating budget
throughout the fiscal year. The County’s
unassigned fund balance level provides a

e The County’s continued efficiency in the
collection of property taxes resulted in a

collection percentage of 99.1%, higher than the
State-wide average of 97%.

Sales tax revenue, which is the second largest
revenue source, increased by approximately $1.2
million from the prior fiscal year to $25.6 million
or 4.9%.

financial cushion to mitigate unforeseen changes
in the economic and business climate and
decreased revenues.
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Gover tal Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 15,719,203 $ 16,424,044 $ 13,482,011 $ 11,861,307 $ 29,201,214 $ 28,285,351
Operating grants and contributions 24,212,789 26,044,125 200,448 - 24,413,237 26,044,125
Capital grants and contributions 1,620,344 1,000,233 - - 1,620,344 1,000,233
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 160,185,898 155,565,259 - - 160,185,898 155,565,259
Other Taxes 31,012,534 29,522,796 - - 31,012,534 29,522,796
Other 1,583,643 618,793 138,915 261,713 1,722,558 880,506
Total Revenues 234334411 229,175,250 13,821,374 12,123,020 248,155,785 241,298,270
Expenses:
Community Services 15,223,280 14,528,306 - - 15,223,280 14,528,306
General Government 16,685,804 17,268,682 - - 16,685,804 17,268,682
Human Services 43,371,252 45,058,561 - - 43,371,252 45,058,561
Education 106,689,649 97,196,824 - - 106,689,649 97,196,824
Public Safety 32,247,386 29,634,987 - - 32,247,386 29,634,987
Support Services 12,733,446 14,579,007 - - 12,733,446 14,579,007
Interest on long-termdebt 5,707,204 3,311,756 - - 5,707,204 3,311,756
Landfill - - 9,566,421 10,197,990 9,566,421 10,197,990
Sewer - - 443,049 399,818 443,049 399,818
Sportsplex - - 3,608,084 3,354,734 3,608,084 3,354,734
Total Expenses 232,658,021 221,578,123 13,617,554 13,952,542 246,275,575 235,530,665
Increase/decrease in net position before
trans fers 1,676,390 7,597,127 203,820 (1,829,522) 1,880,210 5,767,605
Transfers (1,739,866) (1,568,349) 1,739,366 1,568,349 - -
Increase/Decrease in net position after
transfer (63,476) 6,028,778 1,943,686 (261,173) 1,880,210 5,767,605
Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1 (73,661,542) (22,343,678) 14,583,359 12,203,287 (59,078,183) (10,140,391)
Restatement - (57,346,642) - 2,641,245 - (54,705,397)
Total net position §  (13725018)  §  (73.661,542) 16,527,045  § 14583359  $  (57,197973) $  (59,078,183)

Governmental Activities.

Governmental activities decreased the County's net
position by $63,476.

Key elements of this change are as follows:

e Transfers to Housing, Sportsplex and Capital
Funds

e Increased Education expenditure

e Increased Public Safety expenditure

Business-Type Activities
Business-type activities increased the County's net
position by $1.9 million.

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds
As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate  compliance  with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the County's governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of usable resources. Such information
is useful in assessing the County's financing
requirements.  Specifically, available fund balance
can be a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the
County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was
$34.4 million or 16.2% of General Fund expenditures,
while total fund balance increased to $63.5 million or
29.9% of General Fund expenditures. As a measure
of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out.
Unassigned fund balance represents 16% of total
General Fund expenditures and transfers out, while the
total fund balance represents 29% of General Fund
expenditures and transfers out.
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General Fund revenues are $213.0 million or $4.9
million higher than the final amended budget. General
Fund revenues increased by $4.2 million from the
prior fiscal year. General Fund revenues were $4.9
million over the final budget. Property tax revenue
comprises 73% of the General Fund budget. Sales tax
revenue, the second largest revenue, increased by
$536 thousand compared to the final budget.
Investment earnings were notably higher than budget
reflecting efficient investment of cash in an improved
interest rate environment. General Fund revenues and
other financing sources total $247.6 million.

General Fund expenditures are $212.0 million or $6.4
million lower than the final amended budget. General
Fund expenditures increased by $7.1 million from the
prior fiscal year. General Fund expenditures were
2.8% under the final budget. This is attributed to
management’s commitment to effectively managing
the operating budget and strong collaboration and
cooperation with departments to monitor their budgets
through regular Finance reviews and a focus on
minimizing discretionary expenditures. General Fund
expenditures and other financing uses total $246.8
million.

The County Capital Improvement Fund reflects no
significant change in the fund balance. The County
Capital fund financed a majority of the current capital
outlay expenditures of $12.4 million during the fiscal
year.

The School Capital Improvement Fund reflects a
increase in fund balance of $22.4 million. The school
capital project fund increase is the result of financing
proceeds for both County’s two school districts while
the project construction will occur over the coming
year.

As of June 30, 2018, the non-major governmental
funds of the County reported a combined fund balance
of $12.7 million, a decrease of $2.2 million from the
prior year. The non-major governmental funds
consists of Article 46 Y4 cents sales taxes, fire district
property taxes, visitors bureau occupancy taxes,
housing grant revenue and impact fee revenue.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The approved General Fund budget for fiscal year
ending June 30, 2018 totaled $219.6 million, which
represents a 1.8% increase over the FY 2016-17
adopted budget. The County completed a re-
valuation of real property that aligns assessed values
for tax purposes with the current market value of
property within the County. The revaluation
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increased the tax base by 6%. The State requires
counties to publish a revenue neutral rate following
arevaluation. The revenue neutral rate is the tax rate
that produces a similar amount of revenue had a
revaluation not occurred. The revenue neutral tax
rate was $0.8377 per $100 of assessed valuation,
and that is the rate the County adopted. The FY
2017-18 Budget assumed $1.5 million in new tax
revenues due to new construction and new personal

property.

The fiscal year 2017-18 budget was balanced
without a property tax increase and fully funds all
positions of the County. The County budget
maintains a goal of allocating 48.1% of General
Fund revenues to Education spending. The budget
increases per pupil expenditures by $123 to $3,991
per pupil, which is among the highest amounts in
the State. The County annual appropriation to
education is consistently among the highest per
pupil expenditures among the 100 counties in North
Carolina. The County budget included a 2% wage
increase for County employees.

The County generally amends the budget during the
fiscal year. County budget amendments are delineated
in one of four categories:

1) amendments to revise estimates original
budget ordinance and amounts based on new
information;

2) carryover of funding for outstanding
purchase orders at year-end related to
significant commitments and projects;

3) amendments to recognize new funding
amounts from external sources, such as
Federal and State grants; and

4) amendments to increase appropriations to
fund and maintain service delivery
requirements.

Proprietary Funds

The County's proprietary funds provide the same type
of information found in the government-wide
statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net
position in the proprietary funds at the end of the fiscal
year amounted to $6.2 million. As previously
indicated, the increase in net position for the
proprietary funds was $1.9 million. The Sportsplex
Fund reported breakeven results with a net position of
$3.6 million. The Solid Waste Landfill Fund reported
the majority of proprietary funds increase attributed
the supplemental transfers from the General Fund.
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The County Capital Assets
(Net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land § 14948778 $§ 14,501,148 $ 1619059 § 1619059 § 16567837 $ 16,120,207
Land improvements 4,949,636 4,949,636 597,878 615,889 5,547,514 5,565,525
Water resources
- Lake Orange 481,624 481,624 - - 481,624 481,624
Buildings 52,003,855 54,941,117 8,814,391 9,282,705 60,818,246 64,223,822
Leasehold improvements 1,961,698 2,132,281 - - 1,961,698 2,132,281
Sewer lines - - 2,018,451 2,105,584 2,018,451 2,105,584
Automotive equipment 1,410,086 2,227,128 1,404,470 1,854,557 2,814,556 4,081,685
Office and other equipment 3,643,878 2,314,530 - - 3,643,878 2,314,530
Construction in progress 22,444.421 21,138,356 4,939,464 885,884 27,383,885 22,024,240
Total $ 101,843976 $§ 102,685820 § 19,393,713 $§ 16,363,678 § 121,237,680 $§ 119,049,498

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The County's investment in capital assets for its
governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2018 totals $121.2 million (net of
accumulated depreciation). These assets include
land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and
other equipment, and sewer lines.

Major capital asset transactions during the year
include:

e Purchased construction in progress on various

County projects.
e  Purchase of vehicles.
e Purchased various office equipment for

day-to-day operations.
e  Purchased landfill and recycling equipment.
Additional information on the County's capital assets

can be found in Note 6 of the Basic Financial
Statements.

Long-Term Debt and Obligations

As of June 30, 2018, the County had total bonded debt
outstanding of $71.2 million, all of which is debt
backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

11

In addition, the County has several installment notes
with a total outstanding balance of $122.7 million. A
summary of total long-term debt and other long-term
liabilities is shown in Figure 5. The County's total
long-term obligations increased by $14.3 million, or
4.5% from the prior fiscal year. The increase is
mainly due to the issuance of General Obligation
bonds.

The County's bond ratings are shown below:

Moody's Investor Services Aaa
Standard & Poor's AAA
Fitch IBCA AAA

These bond ratings are a clear indication of the sound
financial condition of the County. The County is one
of the few counties in the country that maintains the
highest financial ratings from all major rating
agencies. This achievement is a primary factor in
keeping interest costs low on the County's outstanding
debt.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of
general obligation debt that a unit of government can
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable
property located within that government's boundaries.
The legal debt margin for the County is approximately
$1.3 billion. The County has $198.0 million in net
debt applicable to the limit. The County has $112.3
million in bonds authorized, but unissued, at June 30,
2018.
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The County's Long-Term Obligations

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2018 2017-Restated 2018 2017-Restated 2018 2017-Restated
General obligations bonds $ 71185000 § 50,430,000 § - $ - $ 71185000 § 50,430,000
Installment notes payable 111,568,633 117,955,755 11,164,960 12,185,551 122,733,593 130,141,306
Resolving loan payable 2,242,677 2,388,317 - - 2,242,677 2,388,317
Premiums 13,049,290 7,382,845 328,071 - 13,377,361 7,382,845
Accrued compensated absences 3,728,489 3,265,421 241,826 213,756 3,970,315 3,479,177
Net pension liability - LGERS 10,932,395 15,718,303 649,884 934,386 11,582,279 16,652,689
Total pension liability - LEOSSA 4,016,727 3,542,524 - - 4,016,727 3,542,524
Post-closure liability - - 5,719,114 5,881,728 5,719,114 5,881,728
OPEB liability 95,924,108 96,503,866 - - 95,924,108 96,503,866
Total $ 312,647,319 § 297,187,031 $§ 18,103,855 $§ 19215421 $ 330,751,174 $§ 316,402,452
Additional information regarding the County's Property tax revenues comprise $156.6 million or 72%

long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 50-56
of this report.

Budget Highlights for the
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

The adopted General Fund Budget for FY 2018-19
totals $226.8 million which represents $7.2 million or
a 3.3% increase over the FY 2017-18 adopted budget.
The County Budget includes a 1.27 cent increase in
the property tax rate to fund a $3.2 million increase in
debt service. The County tax rate is recommended to
increase from $0.8377 per $100 of assessed valuation
to $0.8504 per $100 of assessed valuation. The
County tax base has increased by 1.4% to $17.3
billion. This tax base increase coupled with the tax
rate increase results in approximately 3.1% growth
over the FY 2017-18 property tax revenue projection
or an additional $4.4 million in additional property tax
revenues.

The County budget maintains a goal of allocating
48.1% of General Fund revenues to Education
spending. The budget increases per pupil expenditures
by $174 to $4,165 per pupil, which has consistently
been among the highest per pupil appropriation
amounts in the State. The FY 2018-19 appropriation
represents  50.1%  of total General Fund
revenues. The budget appropriates $3 million of fund
balance to establish a new schools deferred
maintenance program. The fiscal year 2018-19
budget fully funds all positions of the County and
provides a 2% across the board wage increase for all
County employees effective July 1, 2018.
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of General Fund revenues. Sales tax revenues
comprise $24.1 million or 11% of General Fund
revenues. The remaining 17% of General Fund
revenues are comprised of Intergovernmental
revenues, Charges for Services, Licenses and Permits,
and Miscellaneous revenues. The revenue budget
recognizes the loss of impact fee revenue that had
been used to support debt service associated with new
school capacity. The impact fee fund contained a
residual balance of $1.6 million that is appropriated in
the FY2018-19 Recommended Budget.

The budget controls expenditure growth, focusing on
funding the continuation needs of County departments
and education, and reduces the reliance on fund
balance for ongoing budget stabilization. The fund
balance appropriation for FY 2018-19 is $8.8 million
compared to $9.7 million in FY 2017-18, and $12.7
million in FY 2016-17. This budget goal is consistent
with the County’s Long Range Financial Plan
objectives and the FY 2018-19 budget achieves the
County’s 16% Unassigned Fund balance policy.

The residents of Orange County approved the Article
46 Y4 cents sales tax in a November 2011 referendum.
The Article 46 sales tax became effective April 1,
2012. Fifty percent of the %4 cent sales tax is allocated
to both County school systems on an average daily
membership percent basis to fund school capital
projects. The other fifty percent is allocated to
economic  development initiatives  including
supporting water and sewer infrastructure funding in
the County’s three economic development districts.
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The Article 46 sales tax revenue is budgeted at $3.6
million for fiscal year 2018-19.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the
County's finances for those with an interest in this
area. Questions concerning any of the information
found in this report or requests for additional
information should be directed to the Director of
Finance for the County, 200 South Cameron Street,
P.O. Box 8181, Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278.

Complete financial statements for the ABC Board
may be obtained at its administrative office, Orange
County ABC Board, 122 Highway 70 East,
Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018
Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type Orange County
Activities Activities Total ABC Board
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 73,833,835 S 15,843,847 S 89,677,682 2,914,301
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles 3,594,053 602,564 4,196,617 4,897
Taxes receivable, net of allowance for uncollectibles 2,385,074 - 2,385,074 -
Due from other governments 11,482,005 - 11,482,005 -
Internal balances 136,000 (136,000) - -
Inventories 16,973 - 16,973 1,971,185
Prepaid items 3,001 - 3,001 116,139
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 53,041,769 - 53,041,769 -
Net pension asset 192,165 - 192,165 -
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 42,824,459 6,615,640 49,440,099 2,345,291
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 59,019,517 12,778,073 71,797,590 4,020,648
Total assets 246,528,851 35,704,124 282,232,975 11,372,461
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items 9,323,039 523,812 9,846,851 284,739
OPEB related items 488,771 - 488,771 9,077
Deferred charges on refunding 3,853,843 3,280 3,857,123 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 13,665,653 527,092 14,192,745 293,816
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,869,591 740,570 5,610,161 769,481
Retainage payable 104,233 160,338 264,571 -
Accrued liabilities 3,216,010 389,972 3,605,982 518,698
Customer deposits - 202,787 202,787 -
Interest payable 2,147,408 - 2,147,408 -
Claims and judgements payable 1,596,235 - 1,596,235 -
Landfill post-closure liability, due within one year - 211,883 211,883 -
Landfill post-closure liability, due in more than one year - 5,507,231 5,507,231 -
Installment notes, due within one year 11,939,179 1,038,832 12,978,011 124,374
Installment notes, due in more than one year 105,434,426 10,454,199 115,888,625 1,293,572
Bonds payable, due within one year 9,845,000 - 9,845,000 -
Bonds payable, due in more than one year 68,584,318 - 68,584,318 -
Revolving loan, due within one year 145,640 - 145,640 -
Revolving loan, due in more than one year 2,097,037 - 2,097,037 -
Compensated absences, due within one year 2,237,093 145,095 2,382,188 -
Compensated absences, due in more than one year 1,491,396 96,731 1,588,127 -
Total pension liability, due in more than one year 4,016,727 - 4,016,727 -
Net pension liability, due in more than one year 10,932,395 649,884 11,582,279 405,458
Net OPEB liability, due in more than one year 95,924,108 - 95,924,108 984,167
Total liabilities 324,580,796 19,597,522 344,178,318 4,095,750
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred tax revenue 4,527,328 - 4,527,328 -
Pension related items 442,159 22,502 464,661 -
Deferred charges on refunding - 84,147 84,147 -
OPEB related items 4,369,239 - 4,369,239 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 9,338,726 106,649 9,445,375 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 30,229,146 10,361,313 40,590,459 4,947,993
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State Statute 14,222,179 - 14,222,179 -
Public safety 2,937,009 - 2,937,009 -
Human services 2,668,966 - 2,668,966 -
Community services 3,716,198 - 3,716,198 -
Education 26,763,497 - 26,763,497 -
Capital projects 1,431,761 - 1,431,761 606,178
Unrestricted (155,693,774) 6,165,732 (149,528,042) 2,016,356
Total net position $ (73,725,018) $ 16,527,045  $ (57,197,973) 7,570,527

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Community services
General government
Public safety
Human services
Education
Support services
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Solid waste
Sportsplex
Efland
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Unit:
Orange County ABC Board

Total component unit

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
15,223,280 S 2,908,631 S 701,288 S -
16,685,804 3,448,755 606,535 1,620,344
32,247,386 6,708,750 1,604,772 -
43,371,252 2,334,794 19,932,566 -
106,689,649 - 1,357,688 -
12,733,446 318,273 9,940 -
5,707,204 - - R
232,658,021 15,719,203 24,212,789 1,620,344
9,566,421 9,832,462 200,448 -
3,608,084 3,441,034 - -
443,049 208,515 - -
13,617,554 13,482,011 200,448 -
246,275,575 $ 29,201,214 $ 24,413,237 S 1,620,344
19,971,251 $ 20,184,369 $ - S -
19,971,251 S 20,184,369 S - S -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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General revenues:

Ad valorem taxes
Sales and use taxes
Occupancy taxes

Other taxes

Investment earnings (loss)

Gain on sale of capital assets

Transfers

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position, end of year

Net position, beginning of year, restated



Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Business-type Orange County

Activities Activities Total ABC Board
S (11,613,361) $ - (11,613,361) (11,613,361)
(11,010,170) - (11,010,170) (11,010,170)
(23,933,864) - (23,933,864) (23,933,864)
(21,103,892) - (21,103,892) (21,103,892)
(105,331,961) - (105,331,961) (105,331,961)
(12,405,233) - (12,405,233) (12,405,233)
(5,707,204) - (5,707,204) (5,707,204)
(191,105,685) - (191,105,685) (191,105,685)
- 466,489 466,489 932,978
- (167,050) (167,050) (334,100)
- (234,534) (234,534) (469,068)
- 64,905 64,905 129,810
S (191,105,685) S 64,905 (191,040,780) (190,975,875)
S - S - - 213,118
$ - S - - 213,118
S 160,185,898 S - 160,185,898 -
29,403,519 - 29,403,519 -
1,581,745 - 1,581,745 -
27,270 - 27,270 -
1,392,733 138,915 1,531,648 -
190,910 - 190,910 -
(1,739,866) 1,739,866 - -
191,042,209 1,878,781 192,920,990 -
(63,476) 1,943,686 1,880,210 213,118
(73,661,542) 14,583,359 (59,078,183) 7,357,409
S (73,725,018) S 16,527,045 (57,197,973) 7,570,527
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

County Capital School Capital Nonmajor Total
General Improvements Improvements Governmental Governmental
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Cash $ 60,245,130  $ -8 - 10,819,429 $ 71,064,559
Taxes receivable, net 2,112,266 - - 272,808 2,385,074
Accounts receivable 826,943 30,300 - 2,492,196 3,349,439
Due from other governments 11,482,005 - - - 11,482,005
Advances to other funds 136,000 - - - 136,000
Inventory 16,973 - - - 16,973
Prepaid items 3,001 - - - 3,001
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 25,365,304 27,676,465 - 53,041,769
Total assets S 74,822,318 S 25,395,604 S 27,676,465 13,584,433 S 141,478,820
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,743,598 $ 1,578,285 S 912,968 634,740 S 4,869,591
Retainage payable - 104,233 - - 104,233
Accrued payroll and withholdings 2,035,012 - - 44,976 2,079,988
Accrued liabilities 1,136,022 - - - 1,136,022
Total liabilities 4,914,632 1,682,518 912,968 679,716 8,189,834
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - ad valorem taxes 1,845,099 - - 181,084 2,026,183
Deferred revenue - prepaid taxes 4,527,328 - - - 4,527,328
Total deferred inflows of resources 6,372,427 - - 181,084 6,553,511
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Inventories 16,973 - - - 16,973
Prepaid items 3,001 - - - 3,001
Advances to other funds 136,000 - - - 136,000
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute 12,576,115 - - 1,646,064 14,222,179
Public safety - - - 2,755,925 2,755,925
Human services - - - 2,668,966 2,668,966
Community services - - - 3,716,198 3,716,198
Education - - 26,763,497 - 26,763,497
Capital projects - 23,713,086 - 1,431,761 25,144,847
Committed:
Health benefits 7,543,841 - - - 7,543,841
Human services - - - 125,878 125,878
Assigned:
Use in subsequent fiscal year 8,820,099 - - - 8,820,099
Capital projects - - - 148,396 148,396
Human services - - - 166,439 166,439
Community services - - - 64,006 64,006
Unassigned 34,439,230 - - - 34,439,230
Total fund balances 63,535,259 23,713,086 26,763,497 12,723,633 126,735,475
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 74,822,318 $ 25,395,604 $ 27,676,465 13,584,433
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 101,843,976
Some receivables are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds. 2,026,183
The net pension liability (assets), total pension liability, net OPEB liability, and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources
related to the County's defined benefit pension and OPEB plans are not expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (105,680,653)
Internal service funds are used by the County to charge costs to other funds. The assets and
liabilities are included in the governmental activities. 2,072,370
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. (200,722,369)
Net position of governmental activitie: S (73,725,018)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

County Capital School Capital Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Property taxes $ 154,116,874 - - 6,047,226 160,164,100
Sales tax 25,678,026 - - 3,725,493 29,403,519
Other taxes - - - 1,609,015 1,609,015
Intergovernmental revenues 17,328,187 1,479,793 - 6,810,084 25,618,064
Charges for services 12,322,736 - - 651,883 12,974,619
Investment earnings 800,469 241,616 240,474 110,174 1,392,733
License and permits 303,986 - - 636 304,622
Miscellaneous 2,432,400 140,551 - 97,080 2,670,031
Total revenues 212,982,678 1,861,960 240,474 19,051,591 234,136,703
Expenditures
Current:
Community services 11,967,488 - - 2,692,219 14,659,707
General government 9,515,280 - - 177,183 9,692,463
Public safety 24,065,971 - - 6,680,245 30,746,216
Human services 36,449,383 - - 6,573,300 43,022,683
Education 89,975,647 - 7,002,958 1,921,344 98,899,949
Support services 12,974,342 - - - 12,974,342
Capital outlay - 12,375,007 - - 12,375,007
Debt service:
Principal retirements 20,730,642 - - 433,552 21,164,194
Interest and fiscal charges 6,733,833 470,254 - 169,013 7,373,100
Total expenditures 212,412,586 12,845,261 7,002,958 18,646,856 250,907,661
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 570,092 (10,983,301) (6,762,484) 404,735 (16,770,958)
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 190,910 - - - 190,910
Bonds issued - 2,500,000 26,900,000 - 29,400,000
Premium on financing arrangements 4,995,148 747,310 2,122,685 - 7,865,143
Transfers in 3,564,097 2,442,685 1,357,688 864,230 8,228,700
Transfers out (4,281,784) (658,116) (2,122,685) (3,436,251) (10,498,836)
Installment notes issued 25,860,898 5,927,374 937,485 - 32,725,757
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (30,091,068) - - - (30,091,068)
Total other financing sources (uses) 238,201 10,959,253 29,195,173 (2,572,021) 37,820,606
Net change in fund balances 808,293 (24,048) 22,432,689 (2,167,286) 21,049,648
Fund balances, beginning of year 62,726,966 23,737,134 4,330,808 14,890,919 105,685,827
Fund balances, end of year $ 63,535,259 23,713,086 26,763,497 12,723,633 126,735,475

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the

treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of the County's insurance plan to individual
funds. The net expense of the internal service fund is reported within governmental activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in net position - governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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21,049,648
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variance with

Budget Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Revenues
Property taxes S 151,102,340 S 151,102,340 S 154,116,874 S 3,014,534
Sales tax 25,141,784 25,141,784 25,678,026 536,242
Intergovernmental revenue 15,942,282 18,122,725 17,328,187 (794,538)
Charges for services 10,659,112 10,728,754 12,322,736 1,593,982
Investment earnings 265,000 265,000 800,469 535,469
License and permits 328,000 328,000 303,986 (24,014)
Miscellaneous 1,774,465 2,378,854 2,429,026 50,172
Total revenues 205,212,983 208,067,457 212,979,304 4,911,847
Expenditures
Current:
Community service 12,336,329 12,692,994 11,967,488 725,506
General government 9,937,091 10,234,436 9,515,280 719,156
Public safety 25,105,778 25,968,986 24,065,971 1,903,015
Human services 37,219,597 38,800,737 36,449,383 2,351,354
Education 89,916,598 89,916,598 89,975,647 (59,049)
Support services 14,101,197 13,613,059 12,974,342 638,717
Debt service:
Principal retirements 20,553,939 20,865,377 20,730,642 134,735
Interest 6,205,597 6,345,084 6,340,310 4,774
Total expenditures 215,376,126 218,437,271 212,019,063 6,418,208
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (10,163,143) (10,369,814) 960,241 11,330,055
Other financing sources (uses):
Installment notes issued - 127,555 25,673,401 25,545,846
Cost of issuance - - (393,523) (393,523)
Premium on financing arrangements issued - - 4,982,645 4,982,645
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 25,000 25,000 190,910 165,910
Transfers in 3,765,600 3,836,251 3,564,097 (272,154)
Transfers out (3,396,517) (4,923,059) (4,281,784) 641,275
Appropriated fund balance 9,769,060 11,304,067 - (11,304,067)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - (30,091,068) (30,091,068)
Total other financing sources 10,163,143 10,369,814 (355,322) (10,725,136)
Net change in fund balances - - 604,919 604,919
Fund balances, beginning of year 62,726,966 62,726,966 62,726,966 -
Fund balances, end of year S 52,957,906 S 51,422,899 S 604,919

Reconciliation to the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance:
Community Loan Fund :
Net change in fund balance 203,374
S 63535059

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

Nonmajor Fund

Solid Waste SportsPlex Efland Sewer Internal
ASSETS Landfill Fund Fund Operating Fund Totals Service Funds
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 13,136,166 S 2,410,294 S 297,387 S 15,843,847 2,769,276
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 577,882 24,682 - 602,564 244,614
Total current assets 13,714,048 2,434,976 297,387 16,446,411 3,013,890
CAPITAL ASSETS
Nondepreciable 4,009,400 2,549,123 57,117 6,615,640 -
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 5,270,192 5,489,430 2,018,451 12,778,073 -
Total noncurrent assets 9,279,592 8,038,553 2,075,568 19,393,713 -
Total assets 22,993,640 10,473,529 2,372,955 35,840,124 3,013,890
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items 523,812 - - 523,812 -
Deferred charges on refunding - 3,280 - 3,280 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 523,812 3,280 - 527,092 -
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 326,061 346,485 68,024 740,570 -
Retainage payable 79,375 80,963 - 160,338 -
Accrued liabilities 72,214 166,376 151,382 389,972 -
Payroll withholdings 155,757 47,030 - 202,787 -
Claims payable - - - - 941,520
Installment contracts, current 564,334 474,498 - 1,038,832 -
Landfill post-closure, current 211,883 - - 211,883 -
Compensated absences payable, current 145,095 - - 145,095 -
Total current liabilities 1,554,719 1,115,352 219,406 2,889,477 941,520
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Installments contracts 4,673,506 5,780,693 - 10,454,199 -
Landfill post-closure 5,507,231 - - 5,507,231 -
Advance from other funds - - 136,000 136,000 -
Compensated absences payable 96,731 - - 96,731 -
Net pension liability 649,884 - - 649,884 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 10,927,352 5,780,693 136,000 16,844,045 -
Total liabilities 12,482,071 6,896,045 355,406 19,733,522 941,520
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items 22,502 - - 22,502 -
Deferred charges on refunding 84,147 - - 84,147 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 106,649 - - 106,649 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,878,230 4,407,515 2,075,568 10,361,313 -
Unrestricted 7,050,502 (826,751) (58,019) 6,165,732 2,072,370
Total net position $ 10,928,732 $ 3,580,764 $ 2,017,549 $ 16,527,045 2,072,370

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

21



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Other operating revenues

Employee contributions

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Landfill
Administrative and general
Operations and maintenance
Depreciation
Claims and payments to third party administrators

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Gain on disposal of capital assets and related notes
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year, restated

Net position, end of year

Nonmajor Fund

Solid Waste SportsPlex Efland Sewer Internal

Landfill Fund Fund Operating Fund Totals Service Funds
$ 9,832,462 $ 3,441,034 $ 208,515 $ 13,482,011 -
- - - - 250,553
- - - - 11,060,508
9,832,462 3,441,034 208,515 13,482,011 11,311,061
5,919,217 - - 5,919,217 -
2,333,740 2,947,299 276,863 5,557,902 2,388,810
- - 79,053 79,053 -
1,115,177 408,953 87,133 1,611,263 -
_ - - - 8,547,525
9,368,134 3,356,252 443,049 13,167,435 10,936,335
464,328 84,782 (234,534) 314,576 374,726
200,448 - - 200,448 -
136,151 - 2,764 138,915 17,526
- - - - 937,699
(198,287) (251,832) - (450,119) -
138,312 (251,832) 2,764 (110,756) 955,225
602,640 (167,050) (231,770) 203,820 1,329,951
1,426,972 168,009 144,885 1,739,866 530,270
2,029,612 959 (86,885) 1,943,686 1,860,221
8,899,120 3,579,805 2,104,434 14,583,359 212,149
$ 10,928,732 $ 3,580,764 $ 2,017,549 $ 16,527,045 2,072,370

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases and acquisition of capital assets
Receipt of intergovernmental revenues
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Bond premium
Refunding deposit with escrow agent
Interest paid
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deffered charges on refunding
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll withholdings
Increase in accrued liabilities
Decrease in post-closure liability
Increase in compensated absences payable
Decrease in claims payable
Increase in pension related items
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Nonmajor Fund

Solid Waste SportsPlex Efland Sewer Internal
Landfill Fund Fund Operating Fund Totals Service Funds

9,640,027 $ 3,433,716 S 208,515 S 13,282,258 $ 11,382,321
(4,100,448) (1,418,376) (297,220) (5,816,044) (11,319,869)
(4,008,933) (1,160,461) - (5,169,394) -
1,530,646 854,879 (88,705) 2,296,820 62,452
1,426,972 168,009 144,885 1,739,866 530,270
1,426,972 168,009 144,885 1,739,866 530,270
(2,867,260) (1,774,038) - (4,641,298) -
200,448 - - 200,448 -
1,487,393 416,850 - 1,904,243 -
(496,981) (472,068) - (969,049) -
246,911 81,160 - 328,071 -
(1,460,907) (494,824) - (1,955,731) -
(202,881) (254,077) - (456,958) -
(3,093,277) (2,496,997) - (5,590,274) -
136,151 - 2,764 138,915 17,526
136,151 - 2,764 138,915 17,526
492 (1,474,109) 58,944 (1,414,673) 610,248
13,135,674 3,884,403 238,443 17,258,520 2,159,028
13,136,166 S 2,410,294 S 297,387 S 15,843,847 S 2,769,276
464,328 S 84,782 S (234,534) $ 314,576 S 374,726
1,115,177 408,953 87,133 1,611,263 -
(192,435) (7,318) - (199,753) 71,260
233,678 315,607 22,470 571,755 -
84,147 (3,280) - 80,867 -
(53,617) 5,371 - (48,246) -
459 50,764 36,226 87,449 -
(162,614) - - (162,614) -
28,070 - - 28,070 -
- - - - (383,534)

13,453 - - 13,453 -
1,530,646 $ 854,879 S (88,705) $ 2,296,820 $ 62,452
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018
Agency OPEB
ASSETS Funds Trust Fund

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,103,163 S 85

Investments:
Fixed Income Fund - 440
Equity Index Fund - 283,253
Taxes receivable 336,943 -
Other receivable 120,665 -
Total assets S 1,560,771 S 283,778

LIABILITIES
Due to others S 1,223,828 S -
Uncollected taxes 336,943 -
Total liabilities S 1,560,771 -
NET POSITION

Net position restricted for OPEB benefits S 283,778

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ADDITIONS
Employer contributions
Investment income:
Net appreciation of fair value of investments
Net investment income
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments
Total deductions

Change in net position

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR OPEB BENEFITS
Beginning of year

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Orange County, North Carolina (the “County”) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The County’s significant
accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

Orange County, North Carolina (the "County"), was founded in 1752 and is located in the northcentral
portion of North Carolina on the Piedmont Plateau. The County has a commissioner/manager form of
government with a seven-member elected Board of Commissioners comprising the governing body. The
County provides the following services to its citizens: public health, public safety, mental health, social
service programs, planning and zoning, cultural and recreational programs, and housing and community
development service programs. In addition, inspections, environmental resources, land records, and vital
statistics information are provided. Elementary and secondary education is provided by the State through
locally elected educational boards with the assistance of the County.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial
statements of the reporting entity include those of the County and its component unit. The component unit
discussed below is included in the County’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational
and financial relationship with the County. The discretely presented component unit is reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from
the government.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Orange County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (the “ABC Board”) operates retail liquor stores within
the County and investigates violations of laws pertaining to retail liquor sales. The five members of the ABC
Board’s governing board are appointed by the County. The ABC Board is required by State statute to
distribute surpluses to the General Fund of the County. Complete separate financial statements for the ABC
Board may be obtained at its administrative office:

Orange County ABC Board

122 Highway 70 East
Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component unit. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally separate
component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable. The statement of net position
includes non-current assets and non-current liabilities. In addition, the government-wide statement of
activities reflects depreciation expense on the County’s capital assets.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to those who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
County considers most revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the current
fiscal period, except for property taxes which use a 60 day period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to other long-term liabilities, such as compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmental grants, and investment income
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange
Transactions, the corresponding assets (receivables) in non-exchange transactions are recognized in the
period in which the underlying exchange occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, when all
eligibility requirements have been met, or when resources are received, depending on the revenue source.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, individual major funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

(Continued)

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The Property
Revaluation Fund is a legally budgeted fund under North Carolina General Statutes, which for reporting
purposes is presented in the General Fund. The Community Loan Fund is also presented in the General
Fund, for reporting purposes.

The County Capital Improvements fund is used to account for the financial resources used the
acquisition, renovation, and improvement of public facilities.

The School Capital Improvements fund is used to account for the financial resources used the
construction, acquisition, and renovation of public school facilities.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Solid Waste Landfill Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses related to the provision of solid
waste disposal and recycling activities for the citizens of Orange County.

The SportsPlex Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of the Triangle
SportsPlex.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

The special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues, such as various grants and
contributions, which are legally restricted or committed to expenditures for particular purposes.

The capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition and construction
of major capital projects

The enterprise fund accounts for the maintenance and development of the County’s sewer system in
Efland.

The internal service funds account for the County’s partially self-insured health and dental benefits plan

which charges the other funds of the County for the insurance claims and the County’s vehicle
replacement fund which is used to account for the County’s fleet expansion.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The fiduciary funds consist of two types, the first is agency funds, which are custodial in nature and do
not involve measurement of results of operations. Agency funds are used to account for assets the
County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains the following agency funds: School District
Fund, which accounts for the collection and disbursement of taxes for the Chapel Hill-Carrboro City
School District for which the County acts as an agent; the Cooperative Extension 4-H Fund, which
accounts for the receipts and disbursement of funds on behalf of the 4-H program advisory board;
American Stone No Fault Well Repair Fund, which accounts for funds made available from American
Stone and the Orange Water and Sewer Authority for residents within 3,000 feet of the perimeter of the
American Stone Quarry to repair or replace residential wells that fail for any reason other than as the
probable result of American Stone quarry operation; Communication Tower Trust Fund, which is used to
account for application fees paid to the County by telecommunication companies, with these fees being
used to pay costs associated with determining tower location and construction with unused fees being
returned to the telecommunication companies; Jail Inmate Trust Fund, which accounts for the receipts
from jail inmates who are incarcerated in the County jail; the DSS Trust Fund that accounts for funds held
by the County for subsistence needs of specific social service clients; the Mental Health Insurance Fund,
which accounts for the funds received from Orange Person Chatham "OPC" Mental Health
Developmental Disabilities and Substance Abuse Authority and its former employees to cover insurance
costs for retirees; the Orange County Giving Fund, which accounts for donor specific contributions to
targeted initiatives; and the Crop Loan Fund, which accounts for the purchase of North Carolina grown
products to be used by clients of the Piedmont Food and Agricultural Processing Center.

The second type of fiduciary fund is a Trust Fund. The Other Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund
accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for the employer portion of retiree health
insurance premiums, at appropriate amounts and times in the future. Resources are contributed by the
County at rates determined by actuarial computations.

In accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations, the government applies all GASB
pronouncements. GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements incorporated into the GASB’s
authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance issued on or before
November 30, 1989 which did not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial

statements. However, any inter-fund services provided and used are not eliminated as this process would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in the various functions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds include the cost of these goods and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

D. Budgets

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all funds, with the exception of capital projects funds, the
Community Development Fund, Grant Projects Fund, and the Adoption Enhancement Fund, for which
project length budgets are adopted. Additionally, the County did not adopt a budget for the Recreation
Subdivision Fund, Heusner Fund, Library Development Fund, County Capital Reserve Fund, the School
Capital Reserve Fund, the Community Loan Fund, or the Vehicle Replacement Fund. In accordance with
State law, the budgets adopted for the enterprise funds are adopted on the modified accrual basis of
accounting, and a reconciliation is provided along with the budget schedule to reconcile from the modified
accrual basis to the accrual basis. The governmental funds’ budgets are adopted on a basis other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Budgets are adopted to show use
of fund balance as other financing sources for both governmental and proprietary funds, as well as the
proprietary funds are budgeted on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Annual operating budgets are
adopted each fiscal year through passage of an annual budget ordinance and amended as required for the
General fund, special revenue funds, and the enterprise funds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018,
the original budget was amended through supplemental appropriations. These changes are reflected in the
budgetary comparison schedules.

All budget appropriations lapse at the end of each year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. Deposits and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date within
three months of the date acquired by the County. The County pools cash resources of its various funds in
order to facilitate the management of cash. Cash applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable. The
balance in the pooled cash accounts is available to meet current operating requirements. Any deposit in
excess of the federal depository insured amounts must be collateralized by an equivalent amount of State or
U.S. obligations. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of less than 90 days are considered to be cash equivalents.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States, obligations of the State of North
Carolina, bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority, obligations of certain
non-guaranteed federal agencies, certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances,
and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The securities of the NCCMT- Cash Portfolio, a
SEC-registered (2a-7) external investment pool, is measured at amortized cost, which is the NCCMT’s share
price. The NCCMT- Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.

General Statue 159-30.1 allows the County to establish an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Trust
managed by the staff of the Department of the State Treasurer and operated in accordance with state laws
and regulations. It is not registered with the SEC and G.S. 159-30(g) allows the County to make contributions
to the Trust. The State Treasurer in his discretion may invest the proceeds in equities of certain publicly
held companies and long or short term fixed income investments as detailed in G.S. 147-69.2(b)(1-6) and
(8). Funds submitted are managed in three different sub-funds, the State Treasurer’s Short Term
Investment Fund (STIF) consisting of short to intermediate treasuries, agencies and corporate issues
authorized by G.S. 147-69.1, the Bond Index Fund (BIF) consisting of high quality debt securities eligible
under G.S. 147-69.2(b)(1)-(6), and BlackRock’s MSCI ACWI EQ Index Non-Lendable Class B Fund authorized
under G.S 147-69.2(b)(8).

F. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
The County has restricted cash and cash equivalents related to unspent proceeds from long-term debt

issued by the County Capital Improvements and School Capital Improvements Fund. These proceeds are
held to be disbursed as costs are incurred on the financed construction projects.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
G. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
portion that is expected to be uncollectible. In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)],
the County levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1st, the beginning of the
fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1st (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the
following January 6th. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2017.

H. Allowances

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing any currently doubtful accounts as well as the
percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

I. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year as well as all other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other
funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, represent long-term borrowing
arrangements with established repayment schedules and are offset by a fund balance account in applicable
governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
available financial resources.

J. Inventories

All inventories are valued at average cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
Inventories of the enterprise funds are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
K. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018, are recorded as

prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items are accounted for
using the consumption method in the governmental funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), and intangible assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
County as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets received prior to July 1,
2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received
after July 1, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Orange County Board of Education and Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Board of
Education properties that have not been included in capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the
County to permit installment purchase financing of acquisition and construction costs and to permit the
County to receive refunds of sales tax paid for construction costs. Agreements between the County and the
Board of Education give the Board of Education full use of the facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of
the facilities, and provide that the County will convey title to the property back to the Board of Education
once all restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requirements have been
met. The properties are reflected as capital assets in the financial statements of the Orange County Board of
Education and Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Board of Education.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated

useful lives:
Buildings and land improvements 20-30 years
Automotive equipment 3-5 years
Office and other equipment 5-20 years
Sewer lines 40 years

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. One item that qualifies for reporting in this
category is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund
statements of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value
of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred, as either a deferred outflow or
deferred inflow of resources, and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or the
refunding debt.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category which occurs in the governmental activities and governmental funds. The County reports a
deferred inflow of resources for the property taxes paid in advance of the period they were intended to
finance. Additionally, the County reports one (1) item which is reported as a deferred inflow of resources
which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue,
is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable
revenues from the accrual of ad valorem taxes and intergovernmental revenues which are earned by the
County but are not considered available for the liquidation of current expenditures. Additionally, deferred
inflows of resources are reported for outstanding lien receivables which are not collected within 90 days of
the County’s fiscal year-end.

The County also has deferred inflows and outflows related to the recording of changes in its net pension
liability — LGERS, net pension liability — ROD, total pension liability — LEOSSA, and net other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) liability. Certain changes in the net pension liability and net OPEB liability are recognized as
expense over time instead of all being recognized in the year of occurrence. Experience gains or losses
result from periodic studies by the County’s actuary which adjust the net pension liability and net OPEB
liability for actual experience for certain trend information that was previously assumed, for example the
assumed dates of retirement of plan members. These experience gains or losses are recorded as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and are amortized into expense over the expected
remaining service lives of plan members. Changes in actuarial assumptions which adjust the net pension
liability and net OPEB liability are also recorded as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources and are amortized into expense over the expected remaining service lives of plan members.
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of
contributions which adjust the net pension liability are also recorded as deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over the expected remaining service
lives of plan members. The difference between projected investment return on plan investments and actual
return on those investments is also deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five year period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
N. Compensated Absences

Permanent employees of the County can earn vacation leave at the rate of 12 days per year for the first two
years up to a maximum of 24 days per year after 20 years. Vacation leave may be accumulated with a
maximum until January 31 of each year. On that date, any accumulated vacation leave in excess of 240
hours is converted to sick leave. The maximum amount of vacation leave that can be carried forward to
February 1 is 240 hours. At termination, employees are paid for any accumulated vacation leave. These
amounts are paid from the same fund to which the employee's salary is charged. Permanent employees of
the County earn sick leave at a rate of 12 days per year. There is no limit on the accumulation of sick leave
for the County. Sick leave does not vest with employees and therefore the County does not report a liability
for unused sick leave.

O. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts are accrued and amortized over the term of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable discount or premium. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the
year of issuance.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during
the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

P. Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.” Fund equity
for all other reporting is classified as “net position.”
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
P. Fund Equity (Continued)

Fund Balance — Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources under the current financial resources management focus of accounting. In the
fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy
based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for
which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because
they are either: (a) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash), or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through enabling legislation adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. One component of the restricted fund
balance of the General Fund relates to the Stabilization by State Statute (G.S. 159-8(a)) which requires
total fund balance less the fund balance available for appropriation equals the total amount that must
be restricted.

Committed — Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the County’s Board of Commissioners. Approval of a
resolution after a formal vote of the County’s Board is required to establish a commitment of fund
balance. Similarly, the County’s Board may only modify or rescind the commitment by formal vote and
adoption of a subsequent resolution.

Assigned — Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the County’s
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The County’s Board
of Commissioners, through County Ordinance, has expressly delegated to the County Manager the
authority to assign funds for particular purposes.

Unassigned — Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do

not meet any of the above criterion. The County reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the
general fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
P. Fund Equity (Continued)

Flow Assumptions — When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use
for expenditures incurred, it is the County’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted
amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the County’s policy to use fund
balance in the following order: (1) Committed, (2) Assigned, and (3) Unassigned.

Net Position — Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, in reporting which utilizes the economic resources
measurement focus. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used (i.e., the amount that the County
has spent) for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Net position is reported as restricted using the same definition as used for restricted fund balance as
described in the section above. All other net position is reported as unrestricted. As with many counties in
the State of North Carolina, the County’s deficit in unrestricted net position is due primarily to the portion of
the County’s outstanding general obligation and installment debt totaling approximately $99 million
incurred for the Orange County Board of Education and Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Board of Education (the
“school system”). Under North Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing school system capital
funding and has done so using a mixture of County funds and general obligation debt. The deficit results
because the debt is recorded on the County's financial statements as the issuing government, while the
related assets are owned, operated, and recorded in the school system's financial statements.

The County applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Q. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and the Register of Deeds’ Supplemental
Pension Fund (RODSPF) and additions to/deductions from LGERS’ and RODSPF’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LGERS and RODSPF. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
R. Other Postemployment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County’s
Post-employment Healthcare Benefits Plan (PHCB Plan) and additions to/deductions from PHCB Plan's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the PHCB Plan. For
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

S. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental
funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $200,722,369 difference
are as follows:

Installment notes S (111,568,633)
Installment notes premiums (5,804,972)
Bonds payable (71,185,000)
Bond premium (7,244,318)
Deferred outflow of resources - deferred charges on refunding 3,853,843
Revolving loan payable (2,242,677)
Accrued interest payable (2,147,408)
Claims payable, not accounted for in an internal service fund (654,715)
Compensated absences (i.e., vacation) (3,728,489)

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to arrive at
net position - governmental activities S (200,722,369)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “the net pension liability (asset), total pension liability,
net OPEB liability, and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the County’s defined
benefit pension and OPEB plans are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $105,680,653 difference are as

follows:

Total pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources -

Law Enforcement Officers' Special SeparationAllowance (LEOSSA) - pension plan S (3,671,387)
Net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources -

LGERS - pension plan (2,452,397)
Net OPEB liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resouces (99,804,576)
Net pension asset and related deferred inflows and outflows of resouces -

Register of Deeds Retirement Plan - pension plan 247,707

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to arrive at net
position - governmental activities S (105,680,653)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the
Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net change in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.” The details of this $841,844 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay S 4,585,307
Depreciation expense (5,427,151)

Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at change in net position - governmental activities S (841,844)

Another element of the reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related
items.” The details of this $18,735,638 difference are as follows:

Debt service payments on long-term liabilities S 21,164,194
Refunding payments on long-term liabilities 30,091,068
Issuance of long-term liabilities (62,125,757)
Issuance of bond premium (7,865,143)

Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at change in net position - governmental activities S (18,735,638)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the
Government-wide Statement of Activities (Continued)

Another element of the reconciliation states that “some expenses reported in the statement of activities do
not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.” The details of this $2,481,165 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences (i.e., vacation) S (463,068)
Change in accrued interest (407,273)
Amortization of premium and deferred charges 2,073,169
Claims payable, not accounted for in an internal service fund (53,491)
Net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows - LGERS (179,397)
Total pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows - LEOSSA (133,754)
Net pension asset and related deferred outflows and inflows- ROD (16,641)
Net OPEB liability and related deferred outflows and inflows (3,300,710)

Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at change in net position - governmental activities S (2,481,165)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations. The budget is officially adopted by the governing body prior to
the beginning of its fiscal year, or a resolution authorizing the continuation of necessary and essential
expenditures to operate the County will be adopted. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at
which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department level, within the fund.
Transfers of appropriations within a department budget or within a non-departmental expenditure category
require only the approval of the County Manager. Increases in appropriations in a departmental budget or
in a non-departmental expenditure category, require approval of the governing body in the form of
amendments to the budget resolution.

The following is a list of the funds and departments which reported expenditures in excess of approved
budgets:

General Fund:
General government:

Non-departmental S 270,644
Register of deeds 20,692
Human services:
Library services 12,762
Education:
Fair funding 59,049
Support services:
Non-departmental 121,962
Dental and Health Insurance Fund 23,801

The over expended departments were funded through greater than anticipated revenues and other savings
noted in other departments within the funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Total deposits as of June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents S 89,677,682
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 53,041,769
Fiduciary - agency funds 1,103,163
S 143,822,614

Cash deposited with financial institutions S 51,994,477
Cash deposited with NCCMT 91,828,137

S 143,822,614

In addition to the above, the County’s OPEB Trust Fund includes $85 of cash equivalents invested with the
State Treasurer’s Short Term Investment Fund.

Credit risk. State statutes and the County’s policies authorize the County to invest in obligations of the
State of North Carolina or other states; obligations issued by the U.S. government; obligations fully insured
or guaranteed by the U.S. government or by a government agency of the United States; obligations of any
corporation of the U.S. government; prime bankers' acceptances; the North Carolina Capital Management
Trust (NCCMT); and obligations of other political subdivisions of the state of North Carolina. The County
does not have a credit rating policy which provides restrictions or limitations on credit ratings for the

County’s investments.

As of June 30, 2018, the County had $91,828,137 invested in the NCCMT’s cash portfolio which carried a
credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. The NCCMT'’s cash portfolio is valued using amortized costs.
The County has no policy regarding credit risk.

At June 30, 2018, the Orange County OPEB Trust Fund had $283,778 invested in the State Treasurer’s Local
Government Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Trust pursuant to G.S. 159-30.1. The State Treasurer’s
OPEB Trust may invest in public equities and both long-term and short-term fixed income obligations as
determined by the State Treasurer pursuant to the General Statutes. At year-end, the County’s OPEB Trust
investment in the State Treasurer’s OPEB Trust was invested as follows: State Treasurer’s BIF 0.2% and
BlackRock’s MSCI ACWI EQ Index Non-Lendable Class B Fund 99.8%.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurement. The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The County’s OPEB Trust Fund has the following recurring fair value measurements as
of June 30, 2018: (1) The State Treasurer’s STIF assets ($85) are valued using level 1 inputs; (2) the State
Treasurer’s BIF ($440) is valued using level 2 inputs; and (3) the Blackrocks’s MSCI ACWE EQ Index Non-
Lendable Class B Fund ($283,253) is valued using level 3 inputs.

The underlying investments in the STIF are recorded at fair value as of year-end in accordance with STIP
operating procedures using active market information for trades at year-end. For the BIF, fair value is
determined daily with the fair value for the fixed income securities in the BIF being calculated by a third
party pricing vendor based on future principal and interest payments discounted using market yields. Fair
values are determined for the Blackrocks MSCI ACWE EQ Index Non-Lendable Class B Fund using net asset
value measured as of the County’s year-end using the value of the underlying investments with are
predominately in international equities. The County invests in the Blackrock fund through the Office of the
State Treasurer and there are no restrictions on withdrawal.

Interest Rate Risk: The County does not have a formal investment interest rate policy that manages its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The State Treasurer’s STIF had a
weighted average maturity of 1.4 years at June 30, 2018. The State Treasurer’s BIF had a weighted average
maturity of 8.24 years at June 30, 2018. The County’s investments with the NCCMT reported a weighted-
average duration of 0.09 years at June 30, 2018.

Credit risk: The County does not have a formal investment policy regarding credit risk for the OPEB Trust
Fund. The STIF is unrated and authorized under NC General Statute 147-69.1. The State Treasurer’s STIF is
invested in highly liquid fixed income securities consisting primarily of short to intermediate term treasuries,
agencies, and money market instruments. The BIF is unrated and authorized under NC General Statute 147-
69.1 and 147-69.2. The State Treasurer’s BIF is invested in high quality debt securities eligible under G.S.
147-69.2(b)(1)-(6). The Blackrock MSCI ACWE EQ Index Non-Lendable Class B Fund is unrated.

Custodial credit risk — deposits: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State statutes (G.S. 159-31)
require all deposits and investments (other than federal or state government instruments) to be
collateralized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public authorities,
counties, or municipalities. As of June 30, 2018, the County’s deposits are insured or collateralized as
required by GASB and state statutes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2018, for the County’s individual major funds and aggregate nonmajor funds,
including any applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

County Capital Solid Waste Other
General Improvements Landfill SportsPlex Governmental

Receivables:

Taxes S 4,161,390 $ - S - S - S 272,808

Accounts 826,943 30,300 635,237 24,682 2,492,196

Due from other

governments 11,482,005 - - - -

Less allowance
for uncollectible (2,049,124) - (57,355) - -
Net total receivables S 14,421,214 S 30,300 S 577,882 S 24,682 S 2,765,004
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the County for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land and easements S 19,450,784 S 447630 S - S 19,898,414

Intangible rights 481,624 - - 481,624

Construction in progress 21,138,356 1,306,065 - 22,444,421
Total 41,070,764 1,753,695 - 42,824,459
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 97,323,589 - - 97,323,589

Leasehold improvements 3,411,653 - - 3,411,653

Automotive equipment 10,982,548 318,869 (574,273) 10,727,144

Other equipment 9,500,565 2,512,743 (247,761) 11,765,547
Total being depreciated 121,218,355 2,831,612 (822,034) 123,227,933
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (42,382,472) (2,937,262) - (45,319,734)

Leasehold improvements (1,279,372) (170,583) - (1,449,955)

Automotive equipment (8,755,420) (1,135,911) 574,273 (9,317,058)

Other equipment (7,186,035) (1,183,395) 247,761 (8,121,669)
Total (59,603,299) (5,427,151) 822,034 (64,208,416)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 61,615,056 (2,595,539) - 59,019,517
Governmental activities capital

assets, net S 102,685,820 $ (841,844) S - S 101,843,976

The Vehicle Replacement Fund, an internal service fund, was eliminated during the 2018 fiscal year and the
associated cost and accumulated depreciation of the Fund’s vehicles (54,754,678 and $2,672,574, respectively)
were absorbed by governmental activities and therefore, have been reflected in the beginning balance.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Solid Waste Landfill:
Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land S 8245593 § - S - S 824,593
Construction in progress 865,597 2,319,210 - 3,184,807
Total 1,690,190 2,319,210 - 4,009,400

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements 3,956,457 - - 3,956,457
Buildings 5,084,038 - - 5,084,038
Equipment 10,847,420 548,050 (504,788) 10,890,682

Total 19,887,915 548,050 (504,788) 19,931,177

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements (3,397,685) (18,011) - (3,415,696)
Buildings (1,417,691) (163,499) - (1,581,190)
Equipment (9,235,220) (933,667) 504,788 (9,664,099)

Total (14,050,596) (1,115,177) 504,788 (14,660,985)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 5,837,319 (567,127) - 5,270,192

Solid Waste Landfill

capital assets, net S 7,527,509 S 1,752,083 S - S 9,279,592
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Efland Sewer Operating Fund:
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land right of way S 57,117 S - S - S 57,117
Total 57,117 - - 57,117

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer Lines 3,707,847 - - 3,707,847
Less accumulated depreciation (1,602,263) (87,133) - (1,689,396)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 2,105,584 (87,133) - 2,018,451

Efland Sewer Operating Fund
capital assets, net S 2,162,701 S (87,133) S - S 2,075,568
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
SporstPlex
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land S 794,466 S - S 794,466
Construction in progress 20,287 1,734,370 1,754,657
Total 814,753 1,734,370 2,549,123
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 8,367,420 - 8,367,420
Equipment 549,475 39,668 589,143
Total 8,916,895 39,668 8,956,563
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (2,751,062) (304,815) (3,055,877)
Equipment (307,118) (104,138) (411,256)
Total (3,058,180) (408,953) (3,467,133)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 5,858,715 (369,285) 5,489,430
SportsPlex Fund
capital assets, net S 6,673,468 S 1,365,085 S 8,038,553
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the County as follows:
Governmental activities:
Community services 460,699
General government 3,617,009
Public safety 1,164,526
Human services 93,924
Support services 90,993
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 5,427,151
Business-type activities
Solid Waste Landfill 1,115,177
SportsPlex 408,953
Efland Sewer Operating 87,133
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 1,611,263
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7.

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds
Bond premium

General obligation bonds

Installment notes payable
Notes premium
Installment notes payable

Revolving loan payable

Net pension liability - LGERS

Total pension liability - LEOSSA

Compensated absences

Claims payable

Net OPEB liability

Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities

Business-type activities:

Installment notes

Notes premium
Installment notes

Post-closure liability

Net pension liability - LGERS

Compensated absences
Long-term liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT

Restated
Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
S 50,430,000 S 29,400,000 (8,645,000) $ 71,185,000 S 9,845,000
7,382,845 2,060,171 (2,198,698) 7,244,318 -
57,812,845 31,460,171 (10,843,698) 78,429,318 9,845,000
117,955,775 32,725,757 (39,112,899) 111,568,633 11,939,179
- 5,804,972 - 5,804,972 -
117,955,775 38,530,729 (39,112,899) 117,373,605 11,939,179
2,388,317 - (145,640) 2,242,677 145,640
15,718,303 4,950,051 (9,735,959) 10,932,395 -
3,542,524 626,938 (152,735) 4,016,727 -
3,265,421 2,275,490 (1,812,422) 3,728,489 2,237,093
601,224 224,088 (170,597) 654,715 654,715
96,503,866 7,707,121 (8,286,879) 95,924,108 -
S 297,788,275 $ 85,774,588 (70,260,829) S 313,302,034 24,821,627
12,185,551 1,904,243 (2,924,834) 11,164,960 1,038,832
- 328,071 - 328,071 -
12,185,551 2,232,314 (2,924,834) 11,493,031 1,038,832
5,881,728 32,553 (195,167) 5,719,114 211,883
934,386 294,259 (578,761) 649,884 -
213,756 152,690 (124,620) 241,826 145,095
S 19,215,421 §$ 2,711,816 (3,823,382) $ 18,103,855 S 1,395,810

For governmental funds, compensated absences are liquidated by the General Fund. The net pension

liability — LGERS, total pension liability - LEOSSA, net OPEB liability, and compensated absences are

liqguidated primarily by the General Fund.

Fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

General Obligation Bonds

All general obligation bonds, serviced by the County’s General Fund, are collateralized by full faith, credit,
and taxing power of the County. The outstanding balances for the bonds as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Balance as of

Governmental activities June 30, 2018
$15,140,000 2015 Refunding serial bond, due in annual installments of $670,000 to

$5,045,000 through April 1, 2019; interest at 1.63% $ 670,000
$22,455,000 2010 Refunding serial bond, due in annual installments of $150,000 to

$3,070,000 through February 1, 2022; interest at 2.00% to 4.00% 10,920,000
$24,440,000 2011 Refunding serial bond, due in semi-annual installments of $20,550 to,

$6,890,250 through February 1, 2023; interest at 2.00% to 4.00% 19,790,000
$13,300,000 2012 Refunding serial bond, due in semi-annual installments through April 30,

2021; interest at 2.00-4.00% 10,405,000
$5,900,000 2017 Series A bond, due in annual installments of $500,000 to $630,000 through

through February 1, 2028; interest at 4.00-5.00% 5,900,000
$21,000,000 2017 Series B bond, due in annual installments of $410,000 to $1,470,000

through through February 1, 2038; interest at 2.15-5.00% 21,000,000
$2,500,000 2017 Series C bond, due in annual installments of $560,000 to $970,000 through

through February 1, 2021; interest at 1.55-1.90% 2,500,000

Total outstanding general obligation bonds payable $ 71,185,000

Of the amount serviced by the County’s General Fund shown above, $53,619,633 is considered to be school
bond debt.

The debt service to maturity on the general obligation bonds is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30,

2019 S 9,845,000 S 2,464,676 S 12,309,676
2020 10,010,000 2,125,769 12,135,769
2021 13,930,000 1,714,045 15,644,045
2022 12,510,000 1,267,805 13,777,805
2023 2,840,000 872,555 3,712,555
2024-2028 7,350,000 3,054,775 10,404,775
2029-2033 7,350,000 1,737,542 9,087,542
2034-2038 7,350,000 676,200 8,026,200

Total $ 71,185,000 $ 13,913,367 $ 85,098,367

As of June 30, 2018, the County has $112.3 million of authorized but unissued bonds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Installment Notes Payable

Installment notes serviced by the County enterprise funds are as follows:

Balance as of
Business-type activities June 30, 2018

Solid Waste Landfill Fund:
$1,819,022 Refunding 2011 Limited obligation bond, due in annual installments of $106,136

to $182,211 through October 1, 2027; interest at 2.00% to 5.00% S 447,832
$2,711,195 Refunding 2012 Limited obligation bond, due in annual installments of $51,944

to $213,292 through October 1, 2033; interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 1,238,839
$1,034,661 2015 Limited obligation bond, due in annual installments of $13,892 to $110,360

through April 1, 2035; interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 751,428
$164,500 Installment note payable (2016), due in annual payments of $10,948 to $11,004;

interest at 2.55% through May 13, 2031 142,492
$543,953 Installment note payable (2016), due in annual payments of $72,686 to $83,207;

interest at 2.30% through May 13, 2023 397,146
$562,719 Installment note payable (2017), due in annual payments of $36,883 to $22,798;

interest at 2.83% through June 1, 2037 525,834
$1,152,393 Installment note payable (2017), due in annual payments of $49,000 to

$281,000; interest at 4.00% to 5.00% through October 1, 2032 1,152,393
$335,000 Installment note payable (2018), due in annual payments of $60,000 to $75,000;

interest at 3.25% to 5.00% through April 1, 2037 335,000
SportsPlex Fund:

$1,149,150 Refunding 2011 Limited obligation bond, due in annual installments of $67,050

to $204,630 through October 1, 2027; interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 282,806

$3,981,477 2015 Limited obligation bond, due in annual installments of $53,456 to $424,678
through April 1, 2035; interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 2,891,570

$2,764,001Installment note payable (2016), due in annual payments of $36,883 to $22,798;
interest at 2.83% through June 1, 2037 2,582,770

$416,850 Installment note payable (2017), due in annual payments of $67,000 to $146,700;
interest at 4.00% to 5.00% through October 1, 2032 416,850

Total outstanding limited obligation bonds payable (installment notes) $ 11,164,960
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NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Installment Notes Payable (Continued)

The debt service to maturity on the installment notes payable is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30,

2019 S 1,038,832 S 496,643 S 1,535,475
2020 1,055,541 459,269 1,514,810
2021 958,201 415,908 1,374,109
2022 971,699 376,305 1,348,004
2023 972,647 278,340 1,250,987
2024-2028 3,904,684 794,529 4,699,213
2029-2033 1,572,890 238,051 1,810,941
2024-2037 690,466 46,120 736,586

Total S 11,164,960 S 3,105,165 S 14,270,125

During 2018 the County issued $27,120,000 of installment notes which carry an interest rate of 4.00% to
5.00%. The proceeds of the notes were used to partially advance refund $16,583,634 of the 2011
installment notes, partially advance refund $12,982,205 of the 2012 installment notes, and current
refunding of $2,400,000 of the 2006 installment note. The proceeds, along with the $5,280,199 premium,
were used to refund three existing notes, as well as pay for the cost of issuance on the new note. The new
notes as well as the refunded notes are allocated between governmental activities and business-type
activities.

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $1,833,634 and $1,437,205, for
the 2011 note and the 2012 note, respectively. The deferred charges on refunding will be amortized over
the life of the life of new notes. The refunding of the old notes created as debt service savings of
$2,003,394, to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $1,727,504.
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NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Installment Notes Payable (Continued)

The County has various installment notes outstanding for buildings, equipment, and vehicle financing
arrangements. The outstanding balances for the notes as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Balance as of
Governmental activities June 30, 2018

A Certificate of Participation for $9,889,439 was issued in January 2011 with annual
payments of $659,296. The note bears an interest rate of 4% to 5% and matures in 2026. S 5,274,367

2011 Refunded limited obligation bonds for $35,336,828 issued in September 2011 with
annual payments of $2,163,291 to $2,190,966. The bond bears an interest rate of 2% to 5%
and matures in 2022. 8,699,288

2017 Refunding limited obligation bonds for $25,550,757 issued in November 2017 with
annual payments of $545,000 to $5,527,128. The bond bears an interest rate of 4% to 5%
and matures in 2032. 25,550,757

2012 Refunded limited obligation bonds for $56,268,805 issued in April 2012 with annual
payments of $3,143,535 to $4,426,708. The bond bears an interest rate of 2% to 5% and
matures in 2024. 25,711,162

2018 Limited obligation bonds for $7,510,000 issued June 2018 with annual payments of
$210,000 to $840,000. The note bears an interest rate of 3.25% to 5.00% and matures in

2039. 7,175,000
$4,136,434 of Qualified School Construction Bonds, due in annual installments of
$275,762 at 0% interest through March 15, 2025. 1,930,337

2015 Limited obligation bonds for $20,110,000 issued in June 2015 with annual payments of
$202,653 to $1,366,028. The bond bears an interest rate of 2% to 5% and matures in 2035. 10,962,001

A note issued by SunTrust Bank for $6,950,000 was issued in July 2013 with annual
payments of $447,000 to $500,000. The note bears an interest rate of 2.13% and matures in
2028. 4,755,000

A note issued by Sterling Bank for $10,144,279 was issued in June 2017 with annual
payments of $669,461 to $410,518. The note bears an interest rate of 2.83% and matures in
2037. 9,479,340

Continued
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NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Installment Notes (Continued)

Governmental activities (continued) June 30, 2018

A note issued by Bank of America for $10,589,000 was issued in January 2014 with annual
payments of $449,000 to $1,218,000. The note bears an interest rate of 2.42% and matures
in 2029. 5,716,000

A note issued by First Bank for $5,710,500 was issued in May 2016 with annual payments of
$380,052 to $381,996. The note bears an interest rate of 2.55% and matures in 2031. 4,946,538

A note issued by First Bank for $1,731,047 was issued in May 2016 with annual payments of
$235,879 to $264,793. The note bears an interest rate of 2.3% and matures in 2023. 1,263,855

A note issued by SunTrust Bank for $500,000 was issued in June 2014 with annual payments
of $99,830 to $103,294. The note bears an interest rate of 2.25% and matures in 2019. 104,988

Total outstanding installment notes payable $ 111,568,633

Of the original amount serviced by the County’s governmental activities shown above, $45,348,441 is
considered to be school related debt.

The debt service to maturity on the installment notes is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30,

2019 S 11,939,179 S 3,667,933 $ 15,607,112
2020 11,873,518 3,202,595 15,076,113
2021 11,633,857 2,766,809 14,400,666
2022 11,727,359 2,323,240 14,050,599
2023 11,075,411 1,230,231 12,305,642
2024-2028 38,197,759 6,591,629 44,789,388
2029-2033 11,717,005 1,651,552 13,368,557
2034-2038 3,189,545 274,149 3,463,694
2039 215,000 3,628 218,628

Total S 111,568,633 S 21,711,766 $ 133,280,399
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NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

State Revolving Loan Serviced by Governmental Funds

The June 21, 2011, the County was approved for a maximum loan amount of $3,500,000 from the U. S.
Environmental Protection Agency passed through the North Carolina Department of Environment and
Natural Resources under the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The loan proceeds are being used for the
construction of an extension to the Town Efland's Sewer System. The loan is being reported as long-term
debt in governmental activities and is repayable at 2.445% for 20 year beginning six months after the
completion of the project. Debt service on the loans are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30,

2019 S 145,640 50,830 S 196,470
2020 145,640 47,519 193,159
2021 145,640 44,207 189,847
2022 145,640 40,896 186,536
2023 145,640 37,585 183,225
2024-2028 728,200 138,256 866,456
2029-2033 728,200 55,476 783,676
2034 58,077 1,162 59,239

Total S 2,242,677 S 415,931 S 2,658,608

Landfill Closure and Post-Closure

State and Federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfills when it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the sites after closure.
The County reported a liability for closure and post-closure care in the Solid Waste Landfill Fund of
$5,719,114. The County’s municipal solid waste landfill is no longer accepting waste, has been closed and all
estimated post-closure costs have been accrued. Phase 1 of the County’s construction and demolition
landfill continues to accept waste while the remaining phases have not be opened and are not included in
the liability estimate. As of June 30, 2018, the construction and demolition landfill has used approximately
73% of the permitted 292,000 cubic yards of capacity. The remaining costs, not yet accrued for the
construction and demolition landfill of $825,570 will be recognized over the future life of the landfills as
capacity is used. Actual costs may be higher upon completion of the cost estimates, or due to inflation,
change in technology, or changes in regulations.
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NOTE 8. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Advance to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Efland Sewer Fund S 136,000
S 136,000

The Efland Sewer Fund has a payable to the General Fund for a reimbursement owed for prior financing
sources provided to the fund. The balance is expected to be repaid within the next several fiscal years.

Interfund transfers:

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount
General Fund Nonmajor governmental funds S 3,436,251
General Fund County Capital Improvements 127,846
3,564,097
County Capital Improvements General Fund 320,000
County Capital Improvements School Capital Improvements 2,122,685
2,442,685
School Capital Improvements General Fund 1,357,688
Nonmajor governmental funds General Fund 864,230
Solid Waste Landfill Fund General Fund 1,426,972
SportsPlex Fund General Fund 168,009
Efland Sewer Fund General Fund 144,885
Internal Service Funds County Capital Improvements S 530,270

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS

Orange County participates in three defined benefit pension plans: the Local Governmental Employees’
Retirement System (LGERS), Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance (LEOSSA), and the
Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF). Only the LGERS and RODSPF are funded with
qualifying trusts and accounted for by the County under GASB Statement No. 68. The LEOSSA is reported in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 73. The net pension liability (asset), total pension liability, and related
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for the LGERS, LEOSSA, and RODSPF are
summarized as follows:

LGERS LEOSSA RODSPF Total

Net pension asset S - S - $192,165 $§ 192,165
Net pension liability 11,582,279 - - 11,582,279
Total pension liability - 4,016,727 - 4,016,727
Deferred ouflows of resoureces

related to pensions 9,382,344 401,952 62,555 9,846,851
Deferred inflows of resources related

to pensions 401,036 56,612 7,013 464,661

A. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description. Orange County is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the state of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and
local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental entities. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter
128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.
Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members — nine
appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The
Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the state of North Carolina. The state’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at
WWW.0SC.NC.ZOV.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined
as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of creditable service. A
member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member’s four highest consecutive
years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five
years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of
creditable service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20
years of creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor
benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days
of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age
(15 years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty)
or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive
a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions. The plan does not
provide for automatic postretirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of
the plan.

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five
years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan members
are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an
officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in active
service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of
creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age
50, or have completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed
15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive
a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended
only by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Orange County employees are required to contribute 6%
of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS
Board of Trustees. The Orange County’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended
June 30, 2018, was 8.25% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 7.50% for general employees
and firefighters, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is
expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the
pension plan from the Orange County were $3,841,938 for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)

Refunds of Contributions — County employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of
LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at
least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service
termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual’s
right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the County reported a liability of $11,582,279 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017. The total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2016. The
total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2017 utilizing update
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the County’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan,
relative to the projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the County’s proportion was 0.75814%, which was a decrease of
0.02650% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the County recognized pension expense of $4,034,788. At June 30, 2018,
the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 667,247 § 327,858
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 2,812,192 -
Changes in proportion and differences between County
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 406,857 73,178
Changes in plan assumptions 1,654,110 -
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,841,938 -

Total S 9,382,344 S 401,036
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

A. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)

County contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of $3,841,938 are reported as deferred
outflows of resources and will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2019 S 832,539
2020 3,455,439
2021 1,732,821
2022 (881,429)
Total S 5,139,370

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 was determined by the December 31,

2016 actuarial valuation using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.50 to 8.10 percent, including inflation and productivity
factor

Investment rate of return 7.20 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on
published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy
mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not
included in the measurement.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of
current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and
historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields
across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated
for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections are established
through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories
and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2017 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return

Fixed Income 29.0% 1.4%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real Estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 4.0%

Total 100%

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2017
asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The
long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The
real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation
assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20%. This represents a
reduction from the discount rate used in the prior year rate of 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates,
actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Continued)

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.
The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(6.20 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)
County's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) S 34,770,264 S 11,582,279 S (7,772,368)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the state of North
Carolina.

B. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description. Orange County administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation
Allowance”), a single employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the
County’s qualified sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is administered by the State
of North Carolina. The Separation Allowance is equal to 0.85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base
rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The
retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. A separate report is not issued for the
Plan.

All full time law enforcement officers of the County are covered by the Separation Allowance. At
December 31, 2016, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation the Separation Allowance’s membership
consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 11
Active plan members 95
Total 106

63



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
B. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance (Continued)

Basis of Accounting. The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis.
Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the
plan. The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria, which are
outlined in GASB Statement 73 paragraph 4.

Actuarial Assumptions. The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 2016 valuation.
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50 percent

Salary increases 3.50 to 7.35 percent, including inflation and
productivity factor

Discount rate 3.16 percent

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is the Standard & Poor’s 20-year Municipal
Bond High Grade Rate Index. Since the prior measurement date, the discount rate has changed from 3.86%
to 3.16% due to a change in the Municipal Bond Rate.

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The
current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of
the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Contributions. The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations
made in the General Fund operating budget. The County’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established
and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation
Allowance are financed through investment earnings. The County paid $182,833 as benefits came due for
the reporting period.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

B. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows

of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the County reported a total pension liability of $4,016,727. The total pension liability was
measured as of December 31, 2017 based on a December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation. The total pension
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2017 utilizing update
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the County
recognized pension expense of $316,587. At June 30, 2018 the County reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Change in assumptions S 188,925 56,612
Differences between expected and actual experience 107,652 -

County benefit payments made subsequent to
the measurement date. 105,375 -
Total S 401,952 56,612

An amount of $105,375, reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting from
benefit payments made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the total
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflows

of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30

2019 S 48,664
2020 48,664
2021 48,664
2022 48,664
2023 45,309

Total S 239,965
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
B. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance (Continued)

Changes in the Total Pension Liability. The changes in the total pension liability of the County for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Total Pension Liability

Balance at June 30, 2017 S 3,542,524
Service cost 134,129
Interest 133,794
Experience differences 130,316
Assumption changes 228,699
Contributions (152,735)
Balance at June 30, 2018 S 4,016,727

The required schedule of changes in the County’s total pension liability and related ratios immediately
following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information.

Sensitivity of the County’s total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents
the County’s total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.16 percent, as well as what the
County’s total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (2.16 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.16 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.16%) (3.16%) (4.16%)
Total pension liability S 4,353,860 S 4,016,727 S 3,708,060

C. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. The County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund
(RODSPF), a noncontributory cost-sharing multiple-employer, defined benefit plan administered by the
North Carolina Department of State Treasurer. RODSPF provides supplemental pension benefits to any
eligible county register of deeds who is retired under the Local Government Employees' Retirement System
(LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is
vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members — nine appointed by the Governor,
one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the state House of Representatives, and the State
Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Registers of Deeds’
Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State
of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for the Resisters of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919)
981-5454, or at www.0sc.nc.gov.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
C. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (Continued)

Benefits Provided. An individual’s benefits for the year are calculated as a share of accumulated
contributions available for benefits for that year, subject to certain statutory limits. An individual’s eligibility
is based on at least 10 years of service as a register of deeds with the individual’s share increasing with years
of service. Because of the statutory limits noted above, not all contributions available for benefits are
distributed.

Contributions. Benefits and administrative expenses are funded by investment income and 1.5% of the
receipts collected by each County Commission under Article 1 of Chapter 161 of the North Carolina General
Statutes. The statutory contribution currently has no relationship to the actuary’s required contribution.
The actuarially determined contribution this year and for the foreseeable future is zero. Registers of Deeds
do not contribute. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 161-50 and may be amended
only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were
$6,229 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the County reported an asset of $192,165 for its proportionate share of the net pension
asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2017. The total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2016. The total pension
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2017 utilizing update procedures
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on
the County’s share of contributions to the pension plan, relative to contributions to the pension plan of all
participating RODSPF employers. At June 30, 2017, the County’s proportion was 1.12581%, which was a
decrease of 0.02726% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

67



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
C. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the County recognized pension expense of $26,550. At June 30, 2018, the

County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 3299 S 619
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 16,336 -
Changes in proportion and differences between County
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 4,268 6,394
Changes in assumptions 32,423 -
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 6,229 -

Total S 62,555 S 7,013

County contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of $6,229 are reported as deferred
outflows of resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability (asset) in the year
ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2019 S 27,093
2020 16,186
2021 1,869
2022 4,165
Total S 49,313

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.50 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity
factor

Investment rate of return 3.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
C. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (Continued)

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on
published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy
mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not
included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of
current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and
historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields
across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated
for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. These projections are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The adopted asset allocation policy for the RODSPF
is 100% in the fixed income asset class. The best estimate of arithmetic real rate of return for the fixed
income asset class as of June 30, 2017 is 3.75%, including inflation.

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2017
asset, liability, and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The
long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The
real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation
assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from employers will be made at
statutorily required rates. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 9.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
C. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (Continued)

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate.
The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the
discount rate of 3.75 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(2.75 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.75 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.75%) (3.75%) (4.75%)
County's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) S  (151,039) S (192,165) S (226,749)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the state of North
Carolina.

D. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (“Plan”), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The
Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S.
Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the state of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes
the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes
the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410,
or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute, each month, an amount
equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately.
Additionally, the law enforcement officers mhay make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions
for the year ended June 30, 2018 were $734,051 which consisted of $424,728 from the County and
$309,323 from the law enforcement officers.
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NOTE 10.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Administration and Benefits. The County, as authorized by the County Commission, administers a
single-employer defined benefit Postemployment Healthcare Benefits Plan (the “PHCB Plan”). The PHCB
Plan is administered by the County management, under the direction of the County’s Board of
Commissioners. The County pays 100 percent of the cost for “maximum retirees” of the County, while
“other retirees” are eligible to enroll in the County’s insurance plan, but must pay the full cost. Maximum
Retirees are defined as meeting one of the following criteria: (1) employee with thirty (30) or more years of
service with at least fifteen (15) of those years with the County; (2) employee with twenty-seven (27) or
more years of service and three (3) years of prior military service with at least fifteen (15) of those years
with the County; or (3) members of the governing board who have a total of sixteen (16) years of service in
office. To qualify as an “other retiree,” employees must meet one of the two following: (1) have twenty-five
(25) to twenty-nine (29) years of service with at least ten (10) with the County or (2) have twenty (20) or
more years of qualified service with at least ten (10) years with the County. Coverage for all retirees who are
eligible for Medicare will be transferred to a Medicare Supplemental plan after qualifying for Medicare. The
County’s Board of Commissioners established and may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was
not issued for the PHCB Plan.

Plan Membership. Membership of the PHCB Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2016, the date of
the latest actuarial valuation:

Active participants 893
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 325
Total 1,218
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NOTE 10.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Contributions. The Board of Commissioners established the contribution requirements of plan members
which may be amended by the Board. The Board establishes rates based on an actuarially determined rate.
For the year ended June 30, 2018, The County contributed $3,647 per active employee. Plan members,
once retired, contribute to the plan based on number of years of creditable service. The County’s
contribution is dependent on the employee’s number of years of creditable service. Retirees pay a monthly
premium of $370 with up to ten years of creditable service and $185 with ten to twenty years of creditable
service. Retirees with more than twenty years of creditable service do not contribute to the plan. The
Board of Commissioners may amend the benefit provisions.

Per a County resolution, the County is required to contribute the projected pay-as-you-go financing
requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits as determined annually by the Board. For the
year ended June 30, 2018, current year benefit payments made by the County were $3,137,462.

Investments

Investment policy. The HCB Plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and
may be amended by the Board of Commissioners by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the
Board to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio
across a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The HCB Plan’s discourages the use of cash equivalents,
except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class allocations over short
time spans. Investments are valued at fair value. The following was the Board’s adopted asset allocation
policy as of June 30, 2018:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Targe Allocation Rate of Return

Fixed income 30.00% 1.4%
Short Term Index Fund 30.00% 7.0%
Equity Index Fund 40.00% 5.3%

Total 100.00%

Rate of return. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the annual money weighted rate of return on investments
of the HCB Plan, net of investment expense, was 0.7 percent. The money-weighted rate of return expresses
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
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NOTE 10.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Net OPEB Liability of the County

Effective July 1, 2017, the County implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which significantly changed the
County’s accounting for OPEB amounts. The information disclosed below is presented in accordance with
this new standard.

The County’s total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 with the
actuary using standard techniques to roll forward the liability to the measurement date.

Actuarial assumptions. The net OPEB liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Discount Rate: 3.89%
Long-term expected rate of return

on OPEB investments 5.00%, net of investment expenses, including inflation
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate: 7.75% - 5.00%, Ultimate Trend in 2022 (Pre-Medicare)

5.75% - 5.00%, Ultimate Trend in 2019 (Medicare)

Inflation Rate: 2.50%
Salary increase: 3.50% to 7.35% (LEO) or 7.75% (other), including inflation
Participation rate: 75% to 100%, depending on length of service

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 mortality tables, with adjustments for LGERS experience and
generational mortality improvements using scale MP-2015.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period 2010-2014.

73



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the
major target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return

Fixed Income 30.0% 1.4%

Short Term Index Fund 30.0% 7.0%

Equity Index Fund 40.0% 5.3%
Total 100%

* Rates are shown net of the 2.50% assumed rate of inflation

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the net OPEB liability was 3.89 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the County will contribute in amounts
consistent with its formal contribution policy. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Trust Fund’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members until 2018. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OEPB plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments until 2018 to determine the net OPEB liability. For projected benefit
payments of current plan members after 2018, the index rate of 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA or higher — which was 3.89 percent as determined by the
Bond Buyer 20 year Bond GO Index Rate as of June 30, 2018 — was used. The discount rate of 3.89 percent
was the single rate which, when applied to all projected benefit payments, resulted in the same present
value of benefit payments when the above discussed calculations are combined. The discount rate of 3.89
percent was an increase from the discount rate of 3.57 percent utilized to determine the net OPEB liability
as of the beginning of the measurement period due to an increase in the underlying municipal bond rate
index utilized.
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NOTE 10.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability of the County. The changes in the components of the net OPEB liability
of the County for the year ended June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at 6/30/17 S 96,763,788 S 259,922 S 96,503,866
Changes for the vear:
Service cost 3,733,643 - 3,733,643
Interest 3,398,954 - 3,398,954
lefer.ences between expected and actual 574,520 i 574,520
experience
Assumption Changes (5,125,557) - (5,125,557)
Contributions—employer - 3,137,462 (3,137,462)
Net investment income - 23,856 (23,856)
Benefit payments (3,137,462) (3,137,462) -
Net changes (555,902) 23,856 (579,758)
Balances at 6/30/18 S 96,207,886 S 283,778 S 95,924,108
The Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 0.3%

The required schedule of changes in the County’s net OPEB liability and related ratios immediately following
the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net OPEB
liability of the County, as well as what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.89%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.89%) than the

current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.89%) (3.89%) (4.89%)
Total OPEB liability $ 113,347,177 $ 95,924,108 $ 82,153,318
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NOTE 10.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents
the net OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.75% decreasing to 4%) or
1-percentage-point higher (8.75% decreasing to 6%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Current 1% increase
(6.75% to 4.00%) (7.75% to0 5.00%) (8.75 t0 6.00%)

Net OPEB liability $ 79,437,919 $ 95,924,108 $ 117,339,245

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revisions as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan in
effect as of June 30, 2018 and the current sharing pattern of costs between employer and inactive
employees.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the County recognized OPEB expense of $6,438,172. At June 30, 2018,
the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 488,771  $ -
Changes in assumptions - 4,360,548
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
OPEB plan investments - 8,691
Total $ 488,771  § 4,369,239
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NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
(Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2019 S (681,433)
2020 (681,433)
2021 (681,433)
2022 (681,432)
2023 (679,260)
Thereafter (475,477)
Total S (3,880,468)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates in three
self-funded risk financing pools administered by the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners.
Through these pools, the County obtains property coverage equal to replacement cost values of owned
property subject to a limit of $125.5 million for any one occurrence, general, auto, professional, and
employment practices liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, auto physical damage coverage for
owned autos at actual cash value, crime coverage of $250,000 per occurrence, workers' compensation
coverage up to the statutory limits, and health insurance for County employees. The pools are audited
annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financial statements are available to the County
upon request. Both of the pools are reinsured through a multi-state public entity captive for single
occurrence losses in excess of a $500,000 retention up to a $2 million limit for liability coverage, and
$1,750,000 of each loss in excess of a $250,000 per occurrence retention for property, and auto physical
damage. For workers’ compensation there is a per occurrence retention of $750,000. The County provides
employee health and dental benefits through a self-insured plan provided by Dogwood Insurance Company
(DIC). Claims are administered and paid directly from the plan by DIC. Specific stop-loss is set at $100,000
per individual health insurance claim with an unlimited lifetime maximum. Aggregate stop-loss is set at the
level of 125% with a minimum aggregate attachment point of $6,516,502 and a contract period maximum of
$1,000,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The County carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because the County is
in an area of the State that has been mapped and designated an “A” area (an area close to a river, lake, or
stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County is eligible to purchase coverage of
$1,000,000 per structure through the NFIP. The County also is eligible to and has purchased commercial
flood insurance for another $5,000,000 of coverage per structure.

A limited risk management program is also maintained for employees' health and dental benefits
administered by a third-party administrator. Premiums are paid into the Health and Dental Internal Service
Fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims and administrative costs of the program. During fiscal
year 2018, a total of $8,547,525 and $1,676,818 were incurred for benefits and administrative costs for the
dental and health plans, respectively.

The County’s Internal Service Fund was established to account for an employee self-insurance health benefit
program. The purpose of the fund is to pay medical claims of County employees and their covered
dependents and minimize the total cost of annual medical insurance to the municipality. Funding is
provided by employee contributions and charges to the various funds of the County based upon estimated
claim and employee participation. Expected claims are determined annually by the reinsurance carrier. The
County carries aggregate stop loss insurance coverage of 125% of annual expected paid claims and
individual stop loss coverage of $100,000 per covered individual and an aggregating specific deductible of
$250,000 through the plan administrator utilizing a reinsurance carrier. The County has recognized a
provision for claims incurred, but not reported, in the accompanying financial statements. This provision is
estimated based upon actuarial claims history utilizing a two month lag on outstanding claims.

The County participates in the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners’” Workers’
Compensation Plan for workers’ compensation claims up to $150,000 for each occurrence. The County has
reinsurance for all individually claim occurrences in excess of the $150,000.

The County also purchases commercial insurance to protect against claims for property, general liability,
auto liability, public officials, and employee bonds. Claims have not exceeded coverage in the past three
years. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the past three years.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time
of the County’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Officer and
Tax Collector are each individually bonded for $100,000 each. The remaining employees that have access to
funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $250,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the Dental and Health Insurance Internal Service Fund, a total of $10,515,487 in claims and changes in
estimates were incurred for benefits during the year ended June 30, 2018. Changes in the fund’s claims
liability amounts in the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

DENTAL AND HEALTH INSURANCE CLAIMS PAYABLE

Beginning of Current Year End of
Fiscal Year Claims Claims and Changes Claims Year Claims
Year Liability in Estimates Paid Liability
2018 S 1,325,054 S 10,515,487 S 10,899,021 S 941,520
2017 1,141,804 10,409,343 10,226,093 1,325,054

WORKERS COMPENSATION CLAIMS PAYABLE

Beginning of Current Year End of
Fiscal Year Claims Claims and Changes Claims Year Claims
Year Liability in Estimates Paid Liability
2018 S 601,224 S 224,088 S 170,597 S 654,715
2017 488,585 240,197 127,558 601,224

Litigation:

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of management and legal counsel, the resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County.

Grant Contingencies:

The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to the disallowance of certain expenditures previously
reimbursed by those agencies. Based upon prior experience, management of the County believes such
disallowances, if any, will not be significant.

Construction Commitments:

The County has active construction projects as of June 30, 2018. At year-end, the County has contractual
commitments on uncompleted contracts of approximately $5,353,091.
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NOTE 13.

JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

Orange Water and Sewer Authority. The Orange Water and Sewer Authority is a public authority created
under North Carolina law, which was established for the purpose of providing water and sewer service in a
defined area within the County. The Authority has a nine-member governing body with two members
appointed by the Orange County Board of Commissioners, two members appointed by the Board of
Aldermen of the Town of Carrboro, and five members appointed by the Mayor and Town Council of the
Town of Chapel Hill. The County is not responsible for any debt of the Authority or any of its deficits. The
County is not entitled to surpluses of the Authority, has no responsibility for the designation of its
management, does not have any significant influence over its operations, and the Authority is not
accountable to the County for fiscal matters.

Triangle Transit Authority. Orange County, in conjunction with other area local governments, is a member
of the Research Triangle Regional Public Transportation Authority. Orange County appoints one member to
the governing board. The Authority possesses final decision making ability and is solely responsible for the
management, budget, and fiscal operations of the Authority.

JOINT VENTURES

Orange-Person-Chatham Area Mental Health, Mental Retardation, and Substance Abuse Authority.
Mental health, mental retardation, and substance abuse services within the County are provided by a tri-
County regional authority. Each County appoints one Commissioner to the Authority's sixteen-member
Board. The remaining thirteen members are selected by the three appointed Commissioners. Since the
Authority does not have the power to issue debt obligations, any such obligations would be issued by the
counties involved. The County is not responsible for the Authority's deficits and is not entitled to its
surpluses. It also has no responsibility for the designation of management and does not have significant
influence over the operations of the Authority.

The County makes an annual appropriation to the Authority, but the majority of the funding comes from
other sources. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the County contributed $1,050,187 to the
Authority. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Authority, so no equity
interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2018. Complete financial statements for
the Authority can be obtained from the Authority's offices at 100 Europe Drive, Suite 490, Chapel Hill, North
Carolina 27517.

80



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14.

RESTATEMENTS

The County has determined a restatement to beginning net position was required in the County’s
governmental activities, business-type activities, and the solid waste fund, for the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 75, which requires retroactive reporting of opening balances. The effect of the restatement
resulted in a change to beginning net position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and
solid waste fund, are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Net Position, governmental activities, as previously reported $ (16,314,900)
Restatement for implementation of GASB Statement No. 75:
Total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 (96,503,866)
Removal of prior Net OPEB obligation reported June 30, 2017 -
Governmental activities 39,157,224
Net Position, governmental activities, as restated $ (73,661,542)
Business-type
Activities
Net Position, business-type activities, as previously reported $ 11,942,114
Restatement for implementation of GASB Statement No. 75:
Removal of prior Net OPEB obligation reported June 30, 2017 2,641,245
Net Position, business-type activities, as restated $ 14,583,359
Solid Waste Fund
Net Position, solid waste fund, as previously reported $ 6,257,875
Restatement for implementation of GASB Statement No. 75:
Removal of prior Net OPEB obligation reported June 30, 2017 2,641,245
Net Position, solid waste fund, as restated $ 8,899,120

The Orange County ABC Board (the “Board”) implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, which requires retroactive reporting of opening balances. The effect of the restatement resulted
in a change to beginning net position of the governmental activities is as follows:

Orange County

ABC Board
Net Position, solid waste fund, as previously reported $ 8,350,348
Restatement for implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 (992,939)
Net Position, solid waste fund, as restated $ 7,357,409
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NOTE 15.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 12, 2018, the County issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 with par values of $64,400,000.
The proceeds of 2018 Series are to be used in funding various school construction projects and the issuance
costs. Interest on the bonds are payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1,
2019. The final maturity of the principal payments occurs in August 2038.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

OPEB RETIREMENT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S NET OPEB LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS

Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest on total OPEB liability
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions and other inputs
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses
Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

County's net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

Covered-employee payroll

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to the Schedule:

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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2018 2017
3,733,643 4,183,701
3,398,954 3,039,332

574,520 -
(5,125,557) (9,448,990)
(3,137,462) (3,300,768)

(555,902) (5,526,725)
96,763,788 102,290,513
96,207,886 96,763,788
3,137,462 3,550,768
23,856 9,922
(3,137,462) (3,300,768)
23,856 259,922
259,922 -
283,778 259,922
95,924,108 96,503,866
0.29% 0.27%
45,902,461 42,769,990
209.0% 225.6%



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OPEB RETIREMENT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY CONTRIBUTIONS

2018 2017 2016
Actuarially determined contribution S 7,192,181 S 6,820,935 S 5,374,915
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 3,137,462 3,550,768 2,361,272
Contribution deficiency (excess) S 4,054,719 S 3,270,167 S 3,013,643
Covered employee payroll $45,902,461 $45,902,461 $42,769,990
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 6.84% 7.74% 5.52%

Notes to the Schedule:
(1) Actuarial Assumptions

Valuation Date June 30, 2016
Cost Method Entry Age
Actuarial Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets
Assumed Rate of Return on Investments 5.00%, net of investment expenses, including inflation
Projected Salary Increases 3.50% to 7.75%, including 3.5% for inflation
Cost-of-living Adjustment None
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Assuming 3.50% Payroll Growth
Remaining Amortization Period 27 years, closed
Health Care Cost Trends:
Pre-Medicare 7.75% for 2016, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00% by 2022
Medicare 5.75% for 2016, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00% by 2019

(2) The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OPEB RETIREMENT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF OPEB INVESTMENT RETURNS

2018
Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses
for the County's OPEB Plan 0.7%

Notes to the Schedule:

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

JUNE 30, 2018

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE

Beginning balance of the total pension liability

Service Cost

Interest on the total pension liability

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions or other inputs

Benefit payments

Ending balance of the total pension liability

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years.

available.
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2018 2017
S 3,542,524 S 3,494,747
134,129 135,380
133,794 122,514
130,316 -
228,699 (84,160)
(152,735) (125,957)
S 4,016,727 S 3,542,524

Additional years will be displayed as they become



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE OF COVERED PAYROLL
LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE

2018 2017 2016
Total pension liability S 4,016,727 S 3,542,524 S 3,494,747
County's covered-employee payroll S 5,086,750 S 4,842,049 S 4,190,815
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 78.96% 73.16% 83.39%

Orange County has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits.

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COUNTY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS*

LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.75814% 0.78464% 0.70825% 0.69420% 0.66320%
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) S 11,582,279 16,652,689 3,178,584 S (4,094,256) S 7,994,107
County's covered payroll S 44,203,050 45,272,812 43,233,224 S 41,507,819 S 39,732,374
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered payroll 26.20% 36.78% 7.35% (9.86%) 20.12%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS

LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

County's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years.
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2018 2017 2016 2015

$ 3,841,938 $ 3,525,190 $ 3,104,810 $ 3,041,550

3,841,938 3,525,190 3,104,810 3,041,550

$47,246,720 $44,203,050 $45,272,812 $43,233,224

8.13% 7.97% 6.86% 7.04%

Additional years will be displayed as they become available.



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions : The actuarially determined contribution
rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of December 31, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which
contributions are reported.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COUNTY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

REGISTER OF DEEDS' SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION FUND

County's proportion of the net pension asset (%)
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($)
County's covered payroll

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years.

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
1.12581% 1.15307% 1.09301% 1.05600% 1.11000%
$ (192,165) S (215,578) S (253,294) (239,437) (236,989)
83,374 78,416 76,112 74,594 72,016
-230.49% -274.92% -332.79% -320.99% -329.08%
153.77% 160.17% 197.29% 193.88% 194.35%

Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS

REGISTER OF DEEDS' SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION FUND

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

County's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years.
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2018 2017 2016 2015
S 6,229 S 6,103 S 4,573 S 8,746
6,229 6,103 4,573 8,746
$ -8 -8 - S -
S 82,394 S 83,374 S 78,416 S 76,112
7.56% 7.32% 5.83% 11.49%

Additional years will be displayed as they become available.



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions : The actuarially determined contribution
rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of December 31, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which
contributions are reported.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Local Fire Districts Fund -accounts for the collection of special fire district taxes that are returned quarterly to the fire districts
on a budgeted basis.

Grant Supported Fund -accounts for grants awarded for various County departments on the County's fiscal year basis.
Grant Projects Fund -accounts for grants awarded for various County departments on a federal fiscal year basis.
Sheriff Forfeitures Fund — accounts for Federal and State seizure revenues and the expenditures of those restricted revenues.

Community Development Fund -accounts for federal funds used for residential rehabilitation, street improvements, water
and sewer, recreational facilities, relocation assistance in low income neighborhoods and affordable housing initiatives. This
multi-year project is accounted for on a federal fiscal year basis.

Section 8 Housing Fund -accounts for HUD-funded programs, Section 8 Vouchers Program.

Article 46 Sales Tax Fund — accounts for the revenues received from the Article 46 % cents sales tax and the related project
expenditures for the fund.

Emergency Telephone System Fund -accounts for revenues from E-911 subscriber fees and wireless 911 fees and
expenditures associated with the purchase and maintenance of emergency communications equipment for the enhanced 911
computer aided dispatch system.

Visitors' Bureau Fund -accounts for proceeds of a 2% County-wide hotel/motel occupancy tax which is used by the Visitors'
Bureau to maximize the economic benefit derived from visitors to the County.

Spay/Neuter Fund -accounts for donations and fees received by private individuals to promote pet sterilization throughout
the County.

Adoption Enhancement Fund -accounts for monies collected by Social Services from parents for the fees related to the
adoption of a child.

Impact Fee Fund -accounts for fees assessed on new residential development within the County. These fees are to be used for
the construction of public school facilities throughout the County.

Recreation Subdivision Fund -accounts for payments received from local developers to assist in construction of recreation
projects in and around County subdivisions.



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Heusner Fund -accounts for donations made by private individuals for use in foster care programs administered by the
Department of Social Services.

Library Development Fund -accounts for donations made by private individuals for use in the County library.
Capital Project Funds
School Capital Reserve Fund — accounts for restricted capital reserves and the interest earned on the assets.

County Capital Reserve Fund — accounts for restricted capital reserves and the interest earned on the assets.



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Taxes receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Payroll withholdings

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues - ad valorem

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES

Restricted:

Stabilization by State Statute

Public safety

Human services

Community services

Capital projects
Committed:

Human services
Assigned:

Capital projects

Human services

Community services

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows

of resources, and fund balances

Special Revenue Funds

Local Fire
Districts

Grant
Supported

Grant
Projects

Sheriff
Forfeitures

Community
Development

1,369,020

272,808

$ 87,808
25,000

$ 655,802
152,248

820,051

764,057
1,039,760

1,641,828

$ 112,808

$ 808,050

820,051

1,803,817

48,000

3,056

$ 23,916
1,534

15,189
11,218

48,000

3,852

25,450

26,407

181,084

181,084

91,724
1,321,020

108,956

782,600

820,051

1,777,410

1,412,744

108,956

782,600

820,051

1,777,410

1,641,828

S 112,808

$ 808,050

820,051

1,803,817
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Special Revenue Funds

Emergency
Section 8 Article 46 Telephone Visitors Adoption

Housing Sales Tax System Bureau Spay/Neuter Enhancement Impact Fees
181,749 2,717,449 779,443 S 729,291 64,930 130,583 1,712,515
1,602 1,076,975 49,613 146,998 - - -
183,351 3,794,424 829,056 S 876,289 64,930 130,583 1,712,515
9,634 279,373 160,361 S 91,842 924 4,705 -
7,278 - 4,228 17,662 - - -
16,912 279,373 164,589 109,504 924 4,705 -
- 1,076,975 49,613 146,998 - - 280,754
- - 614,854 - - - -
- 2,438,076 - 619,787 - - -
- - - - - - 1,431,761
- - - - - 125,878 -
166,439 - - - - - -
- - - - 64,006 - -
166,439 3,515,051 664,467 766,785 64,006 125,878 1,712,515
183,351 3,794,424 829,056 S 876,289 64,930 130,583 1,712,515
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Taxes receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Payroll withholdings

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues - ad valorem

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute
Public safety
Human services
Community services
Capital projects
Committed:
Human services
Assigned:
Capital projects
Human services

Community services
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows

of resources, and fund balances

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Funds

Recreation
Subdivision

Library
Heusner Development

School Capital

Reserve

County Capital
Reserve

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

544,285

9,313 $ 104,737

115,342

33,054

10,819,429
2,492,196
272,808

544,285

9,313 $ 104,737

115,342

33,054

13,584,433

634,740
44,976

679,716

181,084

181,084

544,285

9,313 104,737

115,342

33,054

1,646,064
2,755,925
2,668,966
3,716,198
1,431,761

125,878

148,396

166,439
64,006

544,285

9,313 104,737

115,342

33,054

12,723,633

544,285

9,313 S 104,737

115,342

33,054

13,584,433
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Local Fire Grant Grant Sheriff Community
Districts Supported Projects Forfeitures Development
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 6,047,226 S -8 - S -8 -
Sales tax - - - - -
Other taxes - - - - -
Intergovernmental revenues - 58,971 740,239 617,065 474,765
Charges for services - 55,082 - - -
License and permits - - - - -
Investment earnings 14,874 - - 5,919 1,812
Miscellaneous - - - - 23,750
Total revenues 6,062,100 114,053 740,239 622,984 500,327
EXPENDITURES
General government - - - - -
Community services - - - - -
Public safety 5,804,068 - 141,893 69,188 -
Education - - - - -
Human services - 153,972 616,468 - 1,081,965
Debt service:
Principal - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Total expenditures 5,804,068 153,972 758,361 69,188 1,081,965
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 258,032 (39,919) (18,122) 553,796 (581,638)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 45,676 10,000 - 574,957
Transfers out - - (70,651) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 45,676 (60,651) - 574,957
Net change in fund balances 258,032 5,757 (78,773) 553,796 (6,681)
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 1,154,712 103,199 861,373 266,255 1,784,091
FUND BALANCES, end of year S 1,412,744 S 108,956 S 782,600 S 820,051 S 1,777,410
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Special Revenue Funds

Emergency
Section 8 Article 46 Telephone Visitors Adoption
Housing Sales Tax System Bureau Spay/Neuter Enhancement Impact Fees
- s - s - s - s - s - s -
- 3,725,493 - - - - -
- - - 1,581,745 27,270 - -
4,527,176 - - 341,468 - 50,400 -
- - 595,351 - - 1,450 -
- - - - - - 636
1,519 27,956 6,942 6,515 794 1,315 35,522
- - - - 46,147 19,528 -
4,528,695 3,753,449 602,293 1,929,728 74,211 72,693 36,158
- - - 177,183 - - -
- 982,239 - 1,641,584 60,376 - -
- - 665,096 - - - -
- 1,921,344 - - - - -
4,693,001 - - - - 27,894 -
- 433,552 - - - - -
- 169,013 - - - - -
4,693,001 3,506,148 665,096 1,818,767 60,376 27,894 -
(164,306) 247,301 (62,803) 110,961 13,835 44,799 36,158
189,148 - 44,449 - - - -
- - - - (12,600) - (3,353,000)
189,148 - 44,449 - (12,600) - (3,353,000)
24,842 247,301 (18,354) 110,961 1,235 44,799 (3,316,842)
141,597 3,267,750 682,821 655,824 62,771 81,079 5,029,357
166,439 S 3,515,051 S 664,467 S 766,785 S 64,006 $ 125,878 $ 1,712,515
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes
Sales tax
Other taxes
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
License and permits
Investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Community services
Public safety
Education
Human services
Debt service:

Principal

Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Funds

Recreation
Subdivision

Heusner

Library
Development

School Capital County Capital

Reserve Reserve

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

5,416
7,562

93

107

1,153 330

6,047,226
3,725,493
1,609,015
6,810,084
651,883
636
110,174
97,080

12,978

93

107

1,153 330

19,051,591

177,183
2,692,219
6,680,245
1,921,344
6,573,300

433,552
169,013

8,020

18,646,856

12,978

93

(7,913)

1,153 330

404,735

864,230
(3,436,251)

(2,572,021)

12,978

531,307

93

9,220

(7,913)

112,650

1,153 330

114,189 32,724

(2,167,286)

14,890,919

544,285

$ 9,313

104,737

115342 $ 33,054

12,723,633
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues

Ad valorem taxes:
Property taxes
Tax penalties and interest
Gross receipts tax
Total ad valorem taxes

Sales tax:
Local option sales tax

Intergovernmental revenues:
Animal tax
Beer and wine tax
Federal and State grants
Local grants
ABC Board law enforcement distribution
ABC Board profit distribution
Total intergovernmental revenues

Charges for services:
Register of Deeds
Inspection fees
Health service fees
Aging fees
EMS fees
Sheriff and court charges
Other charges
Total charges for services

Investment earnings

Licenses, permits and fees:
Privilege licenses
Franchise fees

Total licenses, permits and fees

Miscellaneous revenues:
Donations
Rent
Other
Total miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

100

Budget Variance With

Original Final Actual Final Budget
150,432,340 S 150,432,340 153,426,401 2,994,061
600,000 600,000 602,521 2,521
70,000 70,000 87,952 17,952
151,102,340 151,102,340 154,116,874 3,014,534
25,141,784 25,141,784 25,678,026 536,242
185,000 185,000 178,504 (6,496)
270,428 270,428 237,505 (32,923)
14,313,787 16,492,230 15,887,826 (604,404)
957,187 959,187 807,641 (151,546)
215,880 215,880 216,711 831
15,942,282 18,122,725 17,328,187 (794,538)
1,778,900 1,778,900 1,835,388 56,488
1,412,000 1,429,800 1,671,788 241,988
1,818,220 1,823,444 1,796,215 (27,229)
168,244 171,744 123,638 (48,106)
2,445,715 2,445,715 3,334,631 888,916
2,100,000 2,100,000 2,538,546 438,546
936,033 979,151 1,022,530 43,379
10,659,112 10,728,754 12,322,736 1,593,982
265,000 265,000 800,469 535,469
13,000 13,000 13,761 761
315,000 315,000 290,225 (24,775)
328,000 328,000 303,986 (24,014)
286,314 410,173 448,636 38,463
301,664 301,664 316,303 14,639
1,186,487 1,667,017 1,664,087 (2,930)
1,774,465 2,378,854 2,429,026 50,172
205,212,983 208,067,457 212,979,304 4,911,847
continued



GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Expenditures
Current:

Community Services:

Animal services

Cooperative extension

Department of environment, agriculture,
parks & recreation

Economic development

Orange public transportation

Planning and inspections

Recreation municipal

Non-departmental
Total

General Government:

Board of county commissioners

Board of elections

County attorney's office
County manager's office

Register of deeds

Tax administration

Non-departmental
Total

Public Safety:

Courts

Emergency services

Sheriff

Criminal justice

Non-departmental
Total

Human Services:
Child support services
Department of social services
Department of aging

Health department

Housing, human rights, and community

development
Library services
Library municipal
OPC area program
Non-departmental
Total

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget

2,095,292 2,120,616 2,068,260 52,356
384,780 385,530 347,545 37,985
4,068,800 4,322,197 4,086,580 235,617
578,725 607,475 553,092 54,383
1,492,545 1,423,494 1,403,708 19,786
3,134,861 3,186,672 3,016,263 170,409
125,108 125,108 125,108 -
456,218 521,902 366,932 154,970
12,336,329 12,692,994 11,967,488 725,506
898,708 929,230 872,802 56,428
830,014 838,969 670,818 168,151
605,669 624,104 603,458 20,646
2,821,481 2,855,040 2,373,786 481,254
985,215 1,036,526 1,057,218 (20,692)
3,693,504 3,847,176 3,563,163 284,013
102,500 103,391 374,035 (270,644)
9,937,091 10,234,436 9,515,280 719,156
70,000 70,000 40,687 29,313
10,975,924 11,204,613 10,380,449 824,164
13,638,496 14,246,570 13,254,659 991,911
3,311 29,756 5,207 24,549
418,047 418,047 384,969 33,078
25,105,778 25,968,986 24,065,971 1,903,015
1,062,393 1,106,062 1,060,507 45,555
18,483,833 19,382,712 18,147,094 1,235,618
2,123,029 2,404,080 2,145,330 258,750
9,881,975 10,334,947 9,687,828 647,119
386,298 319,917 230,962 88,955
2,243,717 2,344,305 2,357,067 (12,762)
649,741 679,741 674,320 5,421
1,050,187 1,050,187 1,050,187 -
1,338,424 1,178,786 1,096,088 82,698
37,219,597 38,800,737 36,449,383 2,351,354

continued
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Education:
Current expenditures
Fair funding
Durham Tech (Orange campus)
Recurring capital
Total

Support Services:
Asset management services
Community relations
Finance and administrative services
Human resources
Information technologies
Non-departmental

Total

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Installment notes issued
Cost of issuance
Premium on installment notes
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses

Appropriated fund balance

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Reconciliation to GAAP statements:
Change in fund balance in Community Loan Fund

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget

80,745,847 80,745,847 80,745,847 -
5,454,000 5,454,000 5,513,049 (59,049)
716,751 716,751 716,751 -
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
89,916,598 89,916,598 89,975,647 (59,049)
4,541,095 4,796,818 4,368,984 427,834
291,874 304,984 276,176 28,808
1,405,885 1,437,745 1,430,339 7,406
935,443 961,565 941,244 20,321
3,328,135 3,401,476 3,125,166 276,310
3,598,765 2,710,471 2,832,433 (121,962)
14,101,197 13,613,059 12,974,342 638,717
20,553,939 20,865,377 20,730,642 134,735
6,205,597 6,345,084 6,340,310 4,774
26,759,536 27,210,461 27,070,952 139,509
215,376,126 218,437,271 212,019,063 6,418,208
(10,163,143) (10,369,814) 960,241 11,330,055
- 127,555 25,673,401 25,545,846

- - (393,523) (393,523)

- - 4,982,645 4,982,645

25,000 25,000 190,910 165,910
3,765,600 3,836,251 3,564,097 (272,154)
(3,396,517) (4,923,059) (4,281,784) 641,275
- - (30,091,068) (30,091,068)

394,083 (934,253) (355,322) 578,931
(9,769,060) (11,304,067) 604,919 11,908,986
9,769,060 11,304,067 - (11,304,067)
- - 604,919 604,919
62,726,966 62,726,966 62,726,966 -
52,957,906 S 51,422,899 604,919

203,374
63,535,259
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

LOCAL FIRE DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
5,724,102 5,724,102 6,047,226 323,124
1,966 1,966 14,874 12,908
5,726,068 5,726,068 6,062,100 336,032
5,726,068 5,804,068 5,804,068 -
- (78,000) 258,032 336,032
- 78,000 - (78,000)
- - 258,032 258,032
1,154,712 1,154,712 1,154,712
1,154,712 1,076,712 1,412,744 258,032
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GRANT SUPPORTED

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Restricted intergovernmental
Charges for services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Human services

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Appropriated fund balance
Transfers in
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
S 40,000 S 57,750 S 58,971 S 1,221
50,000 54,085 55,082 997
90,000 111,835 114,053 2,218
373,527 160,242 153,972 6,270
(283,527) (48,407) (39,919) 8,488
- 2,731 - (2,731)
45,676 45,676 45,676 -
45,676 48,407 45,676 (2,731)
(237,851) - 5,757 5,757
103,199 103,199 103,199 -
S (134,652) S 103,199 S 108,956 S 5,757
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GRANT PROJECTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
PROJECT LIFE AS OF JUNE 30, 2018

Project Actual
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues S 14,980,558 S 11,404,833 S 740,239 S 12,145,072
Charges for services 70,712 - - -
Miscellaneous 60,155 - - -
Total revenues 15,111,425 11,404,833 740,239 12,145,072
EXPENDITURES
Support services 96,000 - - -
Community services 1,694,549 805,430 - 805,430
Public safety 7,153,717 4,877,659 141,893 5,019,552
Human services 7,381,829 6,070,901 616,468 6,687,369
Total expenditures 16,326,095 11,753,990 758,361 12,512,351
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (1,214,670) (349,157) (18,122) (367,279)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,340,165 1,235,447 10,000 1,245,447
Transfers out (125,495) (24,917) (70,651) (95,568)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,214,670 1,210,530 (60,651) 1,149,879
Net change in fund balance S - S 861,373 (78,773) S 782,600
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 861,373
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 782,600
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SHERIFF FORFEITURES

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues S 872,305 S 872,305 S 617,065 S (255,240)
Investment earnings 2,879 2,879 5,919 3,040
Total revenues 875,184 875,184 622,984 (252,200)
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 888,233 888,233 69,188 819,045
Total expenditures 888,233 888,233 69,188 819,045
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (13,049) (13,049) 553,796 566,845
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from sale of assets 13,049 13,049 - (13,049)
Total other financing sources 13,049 13,049 - (13,049)
Net change in fund balances - - 553,796 553,796
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 266,255 266,255 266,255 -
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 266,255 S 266,255 S 820,051 S 553,796
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
PROJECT LIFE AS OF JUNE 30, 2018

Project Actual
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues S 18,280,022 S 15,410,033 S 474,765 S 15,884,798
Charges for services - 1,329,285 - 1,329,285
Investment earnings 1,000 8,409 1,812 10,221
Miscellaneous 21,080 666,805 23,750 690,555
Total revenues 18,302,102 17,414,532 500,327 17,914,859
EXPENDITURES
Human services 23,618,058 20,449,324 1,081,965 21,531,289
Total expenditures 23,618,058 20,449,324 1,081,965 21,531,289
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (5,315,956) (3,034,792) (581,638) (3,616,430)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 7,390,072 5,605,974 574,957 6,180,931
Transfers out (2,074,116) (787,091) - (787,091)
Appropriated fund balance - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,315,956 4,818,883 574,957 5,393,840
Net change in fund balance S - S 1,784,091 (6,681) S 1,777,410
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 1,784,091
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 1,777,410
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SECTION 8 HOUSING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues S 4,210,664 S 4,491,265 4,527,176 35,911
Investment earnings 500 500 1,519 1,019
Total revenues 4,211,164 4,491,765 4,528,695 36,930
EXPENDITURES
Human services 4,473,230 4,871,413 4,693,001 178,412
Total expenditures 4,473,230 4,871,413 4,693,001 178,412
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (262,066) (379,648) (164,306) 215,342
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 262,066 361,148 189,148 (172,000)
Appropriated fund balance - 18,500 - (18,500)
Total other financing sources (uses) 262,066 379,648 189,148 (190,500)
Net change in fund balances - - 24,842 24,842
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 141,597 141,597 141,597 -
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 141,597 S 141,597 166,439 S 24,842
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ARTICLE 46 SALES TAX

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Project Actual
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total
REVENUES
Sales tax S 18,636,386 S 16,221,145 S 3,725,493 S 19,946,638
Investment earnings - 19,439 27,956 47,395
Miscellaneous - 319,120 - 319,120
Total revenues 18,636,386 16,559,704 3,753,449 20,313,153
EXPENDITURES
Education 11,404,594 7,196,874 1,921,344 9,118,218
Community services 3,256,102 3,502,376 982,239 4,484,615
Debt service:
Principal 3,975,690 2,284,206 433,552 2,717,758
Interest - 308,498 169,013 477,511
Total expenditures 18,636,386 13,291,954 3,506,148 16,798,102
Net change in fund balances S - S 3,267,750 247,301 S 3,515,051
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 3,267,750
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 3,515,051
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Charges for services S 595,350 595,350 S 595,351 S 1
Investment earnings - - 6,942 6,942
Total revenues 595,350 595,350 602,293 6,943
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 753,460 816,988 665,096 151,892
Total expenditures 753,460 816,988 665,096 151,892
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (158,110) (221,638) (62,803) 158,835
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 44,449 44,449 -
Appropriated fund balance 158,110 177,189 - (177,189)
Total other financing sources (uses) 158,110 221,638 44,449 (177,189)
Net change in fund balances - - (18,354) (18,354)
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 682,821 682,821 682,821 -
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 524,711 505,632 S 664,467 S (18,354)
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
VISITORS BUREAU

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Occupancy taxes S 1,278,341 S 1,278,341 S 1,581,745 303,404
Intergovernmental revenues 230,830 334,402 341,468 7,066
Investment earnings 100 100 6,515 6,415
Total revenues 1,509,271 1,612,843 1,929,728 316,885
EXPENDITURES
General government 168,856 179,673 177,183 2,490
Community services 1,459,003 1,756,758 1,641,584 115,174
Total expenditures 1,627,859 1,936,431 1,818,767 117,664
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (118,588) (323,588) 110,961 434,549
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Appropriated fund balance 118,588 323,588 - (323,588)
Total other financing sources 118,588 323,588 - (323,588)
Net change in fund balances - - 110,961 110,961
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 655,824 655,824 655,824 -
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 537,236 S 332,236 S 766,785 434,549
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SPAY/NEUTER

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Other tax S 27,000 S 27,000 S 27,270 S 270
Investment earnings 100 100 794 694
Miscellaneous 19,500 41,340 46,147 4,807
Total revenues 46,600 68,440 74,211 5,771
EXPENDITURES
Community services 48,250 72,430 60,376 12,054
Total expenditures 48,250 72,430 60,376 12,054
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,650) (3,990) 13,835 17,825
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Appropriated fund balance 14,250 16,590 - (16,590)
Transfers out (12,600) (12,600) (12,600) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,650 3,990 (12,600) (16,590)
Net change in fund balances - - 1,235 1,235
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 62,771 62,771 62,771 -
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 62,771 S 62,771 S 64,006 S 1,235
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ADOPTION ENHANCEMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Project Actual
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total
REVENUES
Charges for services S - S 21,894 S 1,450 S 23,344
Intergovernmental 121,665 189,765 50,400 240,165
Investment earnings - 17,586 1,315 18,901
Miscellaneous 416,542 406,613 19,528 426,141
Total revenues 538,207 635,858 72,693 708,551
EXPENDITURES
Human services 698,338 631,724 27,894 659,618
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (160,131) 4,134 44,799 48,933
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 160,131 76,945 - 76,945
Total other financing sources 160,131 76,945 - 76,945
Net change in fund balance S - S 81,079 44,799 S 125,878
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 81,079
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 125,878
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IMPACT FEES

ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Licenses and permits

Investment earnings

Total revenues

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers out

Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
3,353,000 S 3,353,000 S 636 S (3,352,364)
B - 35,522 35,522
3,353,000 3,353,000 36,158 (3,316,842)
(3,353,000) (3,353,000) (3,353,000)
(3,353,000) (3,353,000) (3,353,000)
- - (3,316,842) (3,316,842)
5,029,357 5,029,357 5,029,357
5,029,357 S 5,029,357 S 1,712,515 S (3,316,842)
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
PROJECT LIFE AS OF JUNE 30, 2018

Project Actual
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total

REVENUES

Federal grants S 14,360,707 S 8,940,039 S 1,433,121 S 10,373,160

State grants 10,125,814 5,890,889 46,672 5,937,561

Investment earnings 2,624,400 3,537,335 241,616 3,778,951

Miscellaneous 2,285,704 3,914,809 140,551 4,055,360

Total revenues 29,396,625 22,283,072 1,861,960 24,145,032

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 190,843,928 127,973,075 12,375,007 140,348,082

Debt service:

Interest and fees - 1,277,448 470,254 1,747,702
Total expenditures 190,843,928 129,250,523 12,845,261 142,095,784
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (161,447,303) (106,967,451) (10,983,301) (117,950,752)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from bond issuance 34,036,020 132,448,500 2,500,000 134,948,500
Premiums on financing arrangements 2,000,000 21,728,756 747,310 22,476,066
Installment loan issuance 124,744,254 100,138,426 5,927,374 102,638,426
Capital lease issuance - 2,540,999 - 2,540,999
Payment to escrow agent (21,500,000) (144,673,482) - (144,673,482)
Transfers in 24,711,460 22,018,150 2,442,685 24,460,835
Transfers out (3,891,368) (3,496,764) (658,116) (4,154,880)
Appropriated fund balance 1,346,937 - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 161,447,303 130,704,585 10,959,253 138,236,464
Net change in fund balance S - S 23,737,134 (24,048) S 20,285,712
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 23,737,134
FUND BALANCE, end of year S 23,713,086
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
PROJECT LIFE AS OF JUNE 30, 2018

Project Actual
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total
REVENUES
Investment earnings 60,000 S 656,126 240,474 896,600
Sales tax 180,000 482,334 - 482,334
Lottery proceeds 2,892,139 2,959,057 - 2,959,057
Miscellaneous - 33,759 - 33,759
Total revenues 3,132,139 4,131,276 240,474 4,371,750
EXPENDITURES
Orange County Schools 45,131,293 23,703,917 2,919,937 26,623,854
Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Schools 138,201,582 63,068,511 4,083,021 67,151,532
Other - 43,215 - 43,215
Total expenditures 183,332,875 86,815,643 7,002,958 93,818,601
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (180,200,736) (82,684,367) (6,762,484) (89,446,851)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Bond issuance 103,391,210 14,170,873 26,900,000 41,070,873
Premiums on financing arrangments - - 2,122,685 2,122,685
Installment loan issuance 33,028,426 41,954,714 937,485 68,854,714
Transfers in 43,733,355 30,889,588 1,357,688 32,247,276
Transfers out - - (2,122,685) (2,122,685)
Appropriated fund balance 47,745 - - -
Total other financing sources 180,200,736 87,015,175 29,195,173 142,172,863
Net change in fund balance - S 4,330,808 22,432,689 52,726,012
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 4,330,808
FUND BALANCE, end of year 26,763,497
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SOLID WASTE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Landfill fees
Sanitation fees
Recycling
State grants
Other operating
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Administration
Landfill
Recycling
Sanitation
Debt service
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt proceeds
Proceeds from premium
Escrow payment to refunding agent
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Appropriated fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in net position

Adjustments to full accrual:
Capital outlays
Payments of debt service - principal
Payments to refunding agent
Decrease in estimated post-closure costs
Issuance of installment notes
Issuance of premium on notes
Increase in compensated absences
Decrease in net pension liability
Change in accrued interest
Depreciation expense

Change in net position - GAAP Basis
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Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
392,800 392,800 531,958 139,158
1,282,322 1,282,322 87,252 (1,195,070)
6,708,170 6,708,170 9,049,201 2,341,031
8,000 8,000 211,778 203,778
130,000 130,000 152,720 22,720
40,000 40,000 136,152 96,152
8,561,292 8,561,292 10,169,061 1,607,769
2,216,797 2,302,407 1,937,879 364,528
1,099,350 1,498,271 3,339,831 (1,841,560)
4,219,689 4,514,577 3,645,698 868,879
2,873,800 5,195,048 2,337,050 2,857,998
765,863 765,863 699,828 66,035
11,175,499 14,276,166 11,960,286 2,315,880
(2,614,207) (5,714,874) (1,791,225) 3,923,649
- - 1,487,393 1,487,393
- - 246,911 246,911
- - (1,460,907) (1,460,907)
584,837 584,837 1,426,972 842,135
145,050 145,050 - (145,050)
1,884,320 4,984,987 - (4,984,987)
2,614,207 5,714,874 1,700,369 (4,014,505)
- - (90,856) (90,856)
2,867,260
496,981
1,460,907
162,614
(1,487,393)
(246,911)
(28,070)
5,697
4,560
(1,115,177)
2,029,612



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SPORTSPLEX

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Charges for services S 3,402,574 S 3,402,574 S 3,441,033 S 38,459
Total revenues 3,402,574 3,402,574 3,441,033 38,459
EXPENDITURES
Operations 1,072,196 5,080,362 2,947,299 2,133,063
Capital outlay 1,774,038 1,774,038 1,774,038 -
Debt service 724,349 724,349 728,459 (4,110)
Total expenditures 3,570,583 7,578,749 5,449,796 2,128,953
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (168,009) (4,176,175) (2,008,763) 2,167,412
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Appropriated fund balance - 4,008,166 - (4,008,166)
Debt proceeds - - 416,850 416,850
Payment to refunding agent - - (494,824) (494,824)
Transfers in 168,009 168,009 168,009 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 168,009 4,176,175 90,035 (4,086,140)
Net change in fund balance S - S - (1,918,728) $ (1,918,728)
Adjustments to full accrual:
Capital outlays 1,774,038
Issuance of installment notes (416,850)
Refunding payments on principal 494,824
Payments of debt service - principal 472,068
Change in accrued interest 4,560
Deprecation expense (408,953)
Change in net position - GAAP Basis S 959
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
EFLAND SEWER OPERATING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Charges for services S 227,805 S 227,805 S 208,515 S (19,290)
Investment earnings - - 2,764 2,764
Intergovernmental (412,829) (412,829) - 412,829
Miscellaneous 422,998 422,998 - (422,998)
Total revenues 237,974 237,974 211,279 (26,695)
EXPENDITURES
Operations 362,346 312,346 276,863 35,483
Repairs and maintenance 21,880 87,840 79,053 8,787
Capital outlays 24,921 24,921 - 24,921
Total expenditures 409,147 425,107 355,916 69,191
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (171,173) (187,133) (144,637) 42,496
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 146,714 146,714 144,885 (1,829)
Total other financing sources 146,714 146,714 144,885 (1,829)
Net change in fund balance S (24,459) S (40,419) 248 S 40,667
Adjustments to full accrual:
Deprecation expense (87,133)
Change in net position - GAAP Basis S (86,885)
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Dental and

Health Insurance Vehicle Replacement

Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,769,276 S - 2,769,276
Accounts receivable 244,614 - 244,614
Total assets 3,013,890 - 3,013,890
LIABILITIES
Claims payable 941,520 - 941,520
Total liabilities 941,520 - 941,520
NET POSITION

Unrestricted 2,072,370 - 2,072,370
Total net position S 2,072,370 S - 2,072,370
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Dental and

Health Insurance Vehicle Replacement

Fund Fund Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Other operating revenues S 250,553 S - 250,553
Employee contributions 11,060,508 - 11,060,508
Total operating revenues 11,311,061 - 11,311,061
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative and general 1,676,818 711,992 2,388,810
Claims and payments to third party administrators 8,547,525 - 8,547,525
Total operating expenses 10,224,343 711,992 10,936,335
Operating income 1,086,718 (711,992) 374,726
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Net value of capital assets and loans transferred to governmental activities - 937,699 937,699
Investment earnings 15,330 2,196 17,526
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 15,330 939,895 955,225
Income (loss) before transfers 1,102,048 227,903 1,329,951
Transfers in - 530,270 530,270
Change in net position 1,102,048 758,173 1,860,221
Net position, beginning of year 970,322 (758,173) 212,149
Net position, end of year S 2,072,370 §$ - 2,072,370
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in

Net cash provided by noncapital related financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

Decrease in claims payable

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

122

Dental and
Health Insurance  Vehicle Replacement
Fund Fund Totals

$ 11,202,795 $ 179,526 S 11,382,321
(10,607,877) (711,992) (11,319,869)
594,918 (532,466) 62,452

15,330 2,196 17,526

15,330 2,196 17,526

- 530,270 530,270

- 530,270 530,270

610,248 - 610,248

2,159,028 - 2,159,028

$ 2,769,276 S - S 2,769,276
$ 1,086,718 $ (711,992) S 374,726
(108,266) 179,526 71,260
(383,534) - (383,534)

$ 594,918 $ (532,466) S 62,452




ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
DENTAL AND HEALTH INSURANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Charges for services S 10,536,309 S 10,536,309 S 11,060,508 524,199
Investment earnings - - 15,330 15,330
Miscellaneous - - 250,553 250,553
Total revenues 10,536,309 10,536,309 11,326,391 790,082
EXPENDITURES
Operations 10,584,076 10,584,076 10,607,877 (23,801)
Total expenditures 10,584,076 10,584,076 10,607,877 (23,801)
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (47,767) (47,767) 718,514 766,281
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Appropriated fund balance 47,767 47,767 - (47,767)
Total other financing sources 47,767 47,767 - (47,767)
Net change in fund balance S - S - 718,514 718,514
Adjustments to full accrual:
Increase in claims payable 383,534
Change in net position - GAAP Basis S 1,102,048
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash

Other receivables

Taxes receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to others

Uncollected taxes
Total liabilities

American

School Cooperative Stone No Fault Communication

District Jail Inmate Extension 4-H Well Repair Tower Trust
128,539 10,948 83,964 S 159,885 S 4,223
120,665 - - - -
336,943 - - - -
586,147 10,948 83,964 S 159,885 S 4,223
249,204 10,948 83,964 S 159,885 S 4,223
336,943 - - - -
586,147 10,948 83,964 S 159,885 S 4,223
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Mental Health

Orange County

DSS Trust Insurance Giving Crop Loan Total
116,874 419,161 S 167,069 12,500 1,103,163
- - - - 120,665
- - - - 336,943
116,874 419,161 S 167,069 12,500 1,560,771
116,874 419,161 S 167,069 12,500 1,223,828
- - - - 336,943
116,874 419,161 S 167,069 12,500 1,560,771
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

School District Fund

Cash
Other receivables

Taxes receivable

Total assets

Due to others

Uncollected taxes

Total liabilities

Jail Inmate Fund

Cash

Total assets

Due to others

Total liabilities

Cooperative Extension 4-H Fund

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Cash

Total assets

Due to others

Total liabilities

(Continued)

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreases June 30, 2018

S 130,534 S 23,669,196 (23,671,191) 128,539

122,936 1,311,675 (1,313,946) 120,665

315,448 22,280,629 (22,259,134) 336,943
S 568,918 S 47,261,500 (47,244,271) 586,147
S 253,470 S 24,980,871 (24,985,137) 249,204

315,448 22,280,629 (22,259,134) 336,943
S 568,918 S 47,261,500 (47,244,271) 586,147
S 49,356 S 333,620 (372,028) 10,948
S 49,356 S 333,620 (372,028) 10,948
S 49,356 S 333,620 (372,028) 10,948
S 49,356 S 333,620 (372,028) 10,948
S 79,924 S 25,964 (21,924) 83,964
S 79,924 S 25,964 (21,924) 83,964
S 79,924 S 25,964 (21,924) 83,964
S 79,924 S 25,964 (21,924) 83,964
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

American Stone No Fault Well Repair

ASSETS
Cash

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to others

Total liabilities

Communication Tower Trust Fund

ASSETS
Cash
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Due to others
Total liabilities
DSS Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash
Total assets
LIABILITIES

Due to others

Total liabilities

(Continued)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreases June 30, 2018
S 141,841 S 31,524 (13,480) 159,885
S 141,841 S 31,524 (13,480) 159,885
S 141,841 S 31,524 (13,480) 159,885
S 141,841 S 31,524 (13,480) 159,885
S 1,723 S 18,000 (15,500) 4,223
S 1,723 S 18,000 (15,500) 4,223
S 1,723 S 18,000 (15,500) 4,223
S 1,723 S 18,000 (15,500) 4,223
S 114,412 S 639,584 (637,122) 116,874
S 114,412 S 639,584 (637,122) 116,874
S 114,412 S 639,584 (637,122) 116,874
S 114,412 S 639,584 (637,122) 116,874
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Mental Health Insurance Fund

ASSETS
Cash

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Due to others

Total liabilities

Orange County Community Giving Fund

ASSETS
Cash

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to others

Total liabilities

Crop Loan Fund

ASSETS
Cash

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to others

Total liabilities

Total Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables

Taxes receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to others

Uncollected taxes

Total liabilities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreases June 30, 2018

S 418,337 4,200 (3,376) 419,161
S 418,337 4,200 (3,376) 419,161
S 418,337 4,200 (3,376) 419,161
S 418,337 4,200 (3,376) 419,161
S 128,689 38,872 (492) 167,069
S 128,689 38,872 (492) 167,069
S 128,689 38,872 (492) 167,069
S 128,689 38,872 (492) 167,069
S - 25,000 (12,500) 12,500
S - 25,000 (12,500) 12,500
S - 25,000 (12,500) 12,500
S - 25,000 (12,500) 12,500
S 1,064,816 24,785,960 (24,747,613) 1,103,163

122,936 1,311,675 (1,313,946) 120,665

315,448 22,280,629 (22,259,134) 336,943
S 1,503,200 48,378,264 (48,320,693) 1,560,771
S 1,187,752 26,097,635 (26,061,559) 1,223,828

315,448 22,280,629 (22,259,134) 336,943
S 1,503,200 48,378,264 (48,320,693) 1,560,771
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE

JUNE 30, 2018

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year June 30, 2017 Additions and Credits June 30, 2018
2017-2018 - $ 153,783,722 $ 152,424,863 1,358,859
2016-2017 1,208,195 640,295 567,900
2015-2016 547,729 - 211,126 336,603
2014-2015 358,861 - 115,090 243,771
2013-2014 304,484 - 70,171 234,313
2012-2013 278,848 - 46,084 232,764
All- prior 1,293,741 - 96,930 1,196,811
3,991,858 $ 153,783,722 $ 153,604,559 4,171,021
Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts - General Fund (2,058,755)
Ad valorem taxes receivable - net 2,112,266
Reconciliation to revenues:
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 153,426,401
Reconciling items:
Less 60 day collections (267,120)
Interest and penalties 602,521
Miscellaneous adjustments (157,243)
Total collections and credits 153,604,559
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
COUNTY-WIDE LEVY

JUNE 30, 2018
Total Levy
Property
excluding
County - Wide Registered Registered
Property Total Motor Motor
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original levy:

Property taxed at current rate S 18,340,511,217 0.084 $ 153,693,484 $ 143,698,851 S 9,994,633

Motor vehicle taxed at prior
year rate - 0.084 - - -
Penalties - 79,566 79,566 -
Lien advertisement - 10,672 10,672 -
Total 18,340,511,217 153,783,722 143,789,089 9,994,633
Adjustments (14,764,081) 0.084 (123,723) (123,723) -

Total property valuation S 18,325,747,136

Net levy 153,659,999 143,665,366 9,994,633
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2018 (1,358,859) (1,358,859) -
Current year's taxes collected S 152,301,140 $ 142,306,507 S 9,994,633
Current levy collection percentage 99.12% 99.05% 100.00%
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of Orange County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding

what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the

County’s overall financial health.

Page
[T = T Lol =1 I =T e L3 131
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.
REVENUE CaPaCity . iieeeiiiieeiiiiiiniiiiinniiiiieniiiieniiiesiisiessisiesmisissmesitessstiessssstssssssssssssstsssssstessssstsssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssasnsssssans 135
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County’s most significant local revenue source,
property tax.
[ T=Y &Y O T - Lo | N 139
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and ECONomic INfOrMatioN.........cciiiiiiiieeciiiiiiiiciieececese e s eeennesseesseeeenanssssssesseeesnassssssssssssnnnsssssssseessnnnnsssssssanes 143
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the County’s financial activities take place.
OPerating INFOrMation ...t se ettt e e sassssssssssteessssssssssssssessssssssssseesssssssssssssteennsssssssssssssnnnssssnss 145

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
County’s financial report relates to the services the County provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial report for the relevant year.



LEL

‘uonisod 1au ul 31D1ap e s1uodal Auno) ayl ‘syuswalels

|edueuly 5,AJUN0D BY1 UO Pa1I3|4aL 1GaP WIS-SUO| JO JUNOWE [N} BYL |IYM ‘SJUSWIBIE]S [BIDUBULY S,A1UNOD BYL UO P31I3|Ja. 10U BJE S19SSe 3SaY) Sy "UOIIeINP3 JO pieog 010g.ied-||IH [adey) ay)

pue uoneanp3 jo pseog Aluno) aguelQ ay) 01 SuISUO|aq S1ASSe YIIM Pa1eId0Sse 1Gap W.dl-8uo|

uol|jiw y6$ Aj9rewixoidde apnjaur Ayuno) ay3 4o sal

‘Me| BUI|0JED YLION Y3IM 30UBp.IodIe U

*G/ "ON IU3W=a3eIS gSVYD JO UoleIuaW|dw 3Y) 103|§2] 03 PI1LISBI 9I9M SISqUINU JB3A [BISH] £TOT

(87%'092'16) $ (#02'106%L) $ (918'721'09) $ (556'692°0S) S (S9L°685vY) $ (5€0°058°8€) S (E€T'9EL'YT) S (€S1'996'8)  $ (8ev'61L'19) § (€46461°4S) 0d 33U JuawuIaA08 Asewnd 3oL
(¥9L'€85VTT) (Tez'eze L) (€89'cztOTT) (zos'6zL82T) (809°0L€"L6) (v06'T1588) (9€5°6v€26) (0£9°0€592) (s¥T°950°8ZT)  (2¥0'8TS'6¥T) pajpLisaiun
- - 760°0S2'T 6TT'€05'LT 8TSTSSTT 00€'£8C'Y 0S9°€6Y'y 605'STT €T €L6'V9T'LT TEV'LTS'LE 43410 ||e ‘pandLISaY
- - G5S°LTL'8 ETT'EST'TT 6TH'9€0'VT ¥¥6°LT9'ST 9v6'SY8'TT LEE'98I'ET Y¥T'vr9T'TT 6L1'TTT'YT a1nels a1els Aq uonezljigels
1104 PadLIISY
9TE‘ETEET $ LT0'TTY'6E $ 0zz'ozoov $ STT'E08'6E $ 906'T6T'9C $ §79'98L'6T $ LOL'€ELT'0S $ TL9'TS9'0€$ 005'£08'9€$  657°065°07$ s19sse [e3ided ul JuaWISaAUI 19N
BawuIdA0S Asewld
668'T6€'6 $ ¥91's0z’L S VIL'EL8'9 $ G8S'8ST'L S /8%'T06'0T S 9v0'Tr0'TT S T1¥'998'6 S 060'S8L0T $ VIT'ZTY6'TT $ S¥0'LTS9T  § uonisod 13U sal3IAIRde adAl-ssaulsng [e30]
TTS'657'T (928°£5S) (€61'7) S09'€SL'T ¥66'798°€ ¥8L'€9S'T T6T'6€S'T UYTTE'E T/8'850'S TEL'SIT'9 paRLsalun
L8E'TE6'L $ 066'T9L'L $ L06'LL8'9 $ 086'70V'Y $ €60'8€0°L $ 79T'8LY'8 $ 0TT'LTE'L $ 8I9'T9V'L $ €pT'ess8’9  $ ETETIEOT  $ s19sse |e3ided ul JuaWISaAUL 19N
sa1MAoe adAy-ssauisng
(£v€'259°00T)  $ (89€'901°28) $ (0€5°866'99) S (eps'8ey'Ls) s (zss'16v'sS) $ (180'268'6) $ (Sv9'z09'v€) S (evz'tss'sr)  $§ (zvs'199'es) $ (810'SszL'€L)  $ uoiisod 313U S3NIAIIR [BUBWUIBAOS [e30L
(9£2°€¥0'9TT) (SOv'S9L'ETT) (067°8TT°0TT) (0TT'€8Y'TET) (zo6'e€z'T0T) (889°S0T°16) (878°888'76) (zyT'ess’sL) (9TO'STT'EET)  (v£L'€69°SST) pajpLisaiun
- - 760°0S2'T 6TT'€05'LT 8TSTSSTT 00€'£8C'Y 0S9'€6Y'y 605'STT€T €L6'V9T'LT TEV'LTS'LE Jayo ||e ‘pandLIsay
- - G5S°LTL'8 ETT'EST'TT 6TH'9€0'VT ¥¥6°LT9ST 9v6'Sy8'TT LEE'98I'ET YvT'y9TTT 6L1'TTT'YT a1njels a1els Aq uonezljigels
110} pa1olIIsay
676'06€'ST $ L£0'659'TE $ ETETHT'EE $ GET'86E'SE $ ETY'PST'6T $  €9€'80€'TT S £85'9V6'Th $ €S0°061°€T$ LST'YT6'6TS  9VT'6TT0ES s19sse [e3ided ul JuaWISaAUI 19N
S3I1IAI10B [EIUBWIUIDAOD
600C 0102 1102 (4144 €102 ¥10T ST0C 910 £102 8107
0€ aunf papu3 Jea\ Jo4
(8unnunoday jo siseg |enuddy)
sJeaj |edsiy ua] ise]
juauodwo) Ag uonisod 19N
13l9eL

VNIT0¥VD HLYON ‘ALNNOJ I9NVYO



el

*a8ueyp |euoneziues.o siyl Jo palda|aL dJe SIdqUWINU 9TOZ dY) {(|EUOCIIEIIII PUE [BINYND pUE
JUAIUOIIAUS PUB AJUNWIWOY ‘S3DIAIDS [BIDUID ‘QUdWSeUBW Pue SUIUIBA0D Pade|dal s2IAIRS 110ddNS PUE JUIWIUIBAOD [EIBUID ‘SATIAIS ANUNWWO)) 9T-GTOT Ad Ul swea] diysiapea [euondund o) pagueyd Ajuno) asuelQ 210N

(8v¥"092'T6) S (v0Z'T06%L) S (918%2109) S (556'692°05) S (592'685vY) S (€cL'6veveE) S (vET'9eL YY) S (€51996'8) S (98L77L€r) S (€L6°L6TLS) S
(92v'6€6'96) (8v¥'092'16) (¥07'T06'7L) (918%21°09) (8LV"TY1'TS) (S9£'685 V) (S€0058'8€) (09£7T52T7) (T6E0VT0T) (€81'8£0'65)
- - - - (€25T8) - (zT€0097) VLY Y8Y'E (8€TVLTT) (£6€S0LYS)
(9zv'6€6'96) (8v¥'092'16) (v0T'106'VL) (918'¥Z1°09) (556'692°05) (59£'685'vY) (ezL'6vT'vE) (veT'9eL'vT) (€51'996'8) (98L°2LE'Y)
(€£5265T) (S€£79817) (osv'TEE) vL8'78T 668'TVLE (089°29T7¢) (evL'LTv) (y10'STY) (€£1T97) 989'€V6'T
TSSTLTL 6L6'SYS'8T 8€8'L0T'ST £86'695'6 ¥18°808'C TTLILOSET VS TYS9T 129°00LZT 8£1'820°9 (9Lv°€9)
08€ETLS 006766 0ET'€L0T TE9'SSET S68TIET 966'0€LC EVLILETT 8YSVE]T 6v€'895'T 998'6€L'T
(08€'T£S) (006'766) (0€T'€£02) (T€9'55€7) (S68'TTET) (966°0€L7) (evL'9LE"T) (8vS'VES'T) (6v€'895°T) (998°6€L'T)
98£°056'70C 062'06990C 77.'TT6'60C 008'LLSVTT 780'TZE9TT 800'968'7CC 66€'8EL'8TT SET'LLT'9ET 042'86T'THC S8L'SST'8YC
€EV'SSETT wUSUTT 6€9°0TY'TT L9Y'L0L'TT 8TLLL9TT 0€5'586'8 €€6'169'6 580'Z88'TT 020°€CTTT YLETT'ET
9€E'0TL €6GETTT €5L'ST £90°0T ¥29'6 696'C 8TET §55T9T €TLTIT ST6'8ET
08T'TOY 896'VEY €58'VTY YSE6TY 996'997 6Tr'vLT L68'T6T'T - - 87%°00C
LT6'€ETOT T10%ZL0T €€0086°0T 9¥0'8LT'TT 8ET'TOT'TT TET'S0L'8 80L'961'8 0€S'6TLTT LOE'TI8'TT TI0Z8Y'ET
€5E'S65'€6T 8TLLTY'V6T SOT'TTS'86T €€€'0£8'70C YSE'EYI V0T 8L7'0T6'ETT 99%°9v0'6TC 050°56772C 0S7'SLT'6TC TV VEEVET
¥S0T2TT (€TT"29€) 778701 78E'9SL L15°20T vIv'6T 897'ST €1T'29C €6L'8T9 €79°€8ST
TLL'9EL'T 00T‘TY'ST 8TY'STTST 996'TLT'8T TYE'BYT'TT 6TY'v26'TT TT8'8LE'IT TETTTL LT 96L'725'6T YESTIOTE
895'€LL'0ET 6TT'996'LET 78L'LYTOrT 178965 TYT 60T'TS6'TYT 6L5'0V6'8YT 795'509'6YT €€T'650'€ST 657595'SST 868S8T'09T
L18'006'S 9pS0LTY STE'BLS'S T0S'SL0°9 80%'68Y'C L1T'959'T TL6TITT 8L7'650'T €€7°000'T PrE0TIT
8TT'SST'ET §L9°08TST €8EVEEYT L6E'E0V'ET 0LS'TT9'VT T9€'657°9C 816'vTT'9T 679'8TH'9T STT'P0'9T 68L'TTT'VT
¥T0°L0L'TT 187'926'TT SLE'TESTT 992'99L'TT 80V'SET'ET L87'00T VT S76'869'ST 995°8LL'ST YY0'vTY'9T €0T'6TL'ST
808'T/Z66T S O9VOTEE06T S 9SESYI'S6T S 6E6TCLVOT S 69E69L'60C S 996'SSSCTC  $ 8657C9VIT S 8TST68ETT S G99'0£S'SEC S SLS'SLT'IVT S
T8ETSY'ET LOE'6SY YT 6TC'ST8'ET YTT'BLLET ¥ZL'9vT'0T 90Z'¥88YT 61796V T LY9TET YT TrSTS6'ET YSSLT9'ET
€65'SYT'E SL6'LE6'T €ST'LL6T 0Z1'606'C 979'020°€ T6L'SET'E G9E'STT'E ¥29°0Tr'E VELVSE'E 6v0°Evy
778'69C TLT'SOE 689'T0% ¥89°9TE 895'EEE €LL'78T £66'€1C 9v8'0EY 818'66€ 780809'€
996°9€0°0T T9T'9TZ'TT LLE'IEYOT 0Zv'7SS0T 0€5'768'9 TY9'EIV'TT T90'LEO'TT L£LT'08T0T 066'L6T°0T 127’9956
LTY'618'S8T 6€LTL8'SLT LET'0EETST STLYv6'06T 579725661 09£'TL9°L6T 6.1'871°00C 188'65L'60C €C1'8L5'TTC 120'859'T€C
878'6€5'6 88L'S67'0T €90'8%6'8 TS9'6LY VT SEL'S89'L SS6'295'S v68°78LY TEEEEB'E 9SLTTE'E v0T'L0L'S
Y6ETSL'E Y0E'L00'T 899'708'T ST9'89TC €05°279TC €ESVSET 955°98Y'C - - -
00%'991°0C T6096L'TT 60T'ZSETT 9Y8LTLET 8€9'695'7C S85'6LY'ST TIO€T9'LT Tr6'9LY'8T L86'7€9'6T 98E'LYT'TE
0SE‘9LT'YL 669'T%9'99 9LL'€S0'VL 206'6€9°9L TS0'IST'T6 SET'TEL'T8 TTT'798'78 6L6'6L9'58 vT8'96T'L6 679'689'90T
€06'709'LE LEL'TTO'EE €EL'9ES'EE 60E'TEV'EE 8LY'9TT'SE LET'SSL'9E S06'TVT'8E 199'£80°9% 195850°SY TSTTLE EY
£66'7€6°0T 0Lz'9TL'TT Lyy'88T'0T vLL'98L'6 6151286 T76'79S'TT YTO'ELL'ET - - -
TY8'0EL'ST 607'928'9 SE9'SST'L oLL'TTT'L €8€'086'9 T€9'L98L L9Y'8LT'6 - - -
€69'9T8°0T TY9'99€'€T 90LT6T'ET 8Y8'L6V'ET LEE'STO'TT TY8'T9E'9T TOT'682'6T - - -
- - - - - - - VT YYETT L00'6L5'VT IYEEL'TT
- - - - - - - T9Y'6EY'TT 789'897'LT 708'589°9T
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 097'86LTT S 90€'8TSYT  $ 08T'ETT'ST $

600C 010¢ T10C 710C €107 ¥10C ST0C 910¢ £10C 810C

Q€ @unf papuj Jesp Jo4
T3|qeL
1 Jo | abed

[ACLIR

0€ aunf ‘uoiisod 1au [e30L

pajeisal ‘T Ainf ‘uonisod 19N
juswisnipe pouad Joud

pawiodad Aisnoinsud ‘1 Ajnf ‘uonisod 19N

uonyisod 3au ui a8uey)

saniAnoe adAy-ssauisng
SOMIAIIE [BIUBWUIBN0D
uoinsod 3au ui (asealdap) aseasdu|

sanIAne adAy-ssauisng
SIMIAIIIE [BIUBWIUIBNOD
s1ajsues]

sanuanaJ wesdoud Juswuianos Aewnud |ejo|
sanuaAaJ wesdoud saniande adAy-ssauisng [e3o ]
43410
suonnqliuod pue syuesd Sunesado
$921AI3S J0j Sa8iey)
:sa11Anoe adAy-ssauisng

SanuaAaJ weu3o.d sa1IAIOE [BIUBWUIBAOS |10
43410
SaXe} Jay10
saxe} Apadoud
1S9NUIABI [BJSUID
suonnqlIuod pue syuesd [eyide)
suonnqLiuod pue syuesd Sunesado
S21AI3S 10} s98JeyD)
:saNuUaAaJ Wesgold
198 [BIUSWIUIBA0D
HELTENEN]

1S9

sasuadxa Juswu.tanos Atewnd [ejo|
sasuadxa saniAnoe adAy-ssauisnq |e10]
x3|dsmods
JEVIEN
915eM pIjOS
10e adA|-ssauisng

sasuadxa Sa1IAII0. [BIUBWUISAOS |10
199p WwJ91-8u0| Uo I58J83U|
|euoneasdal pue [eanyn)
Ayayes a11qnd
uoneanp3
S$92IAJS UBWINH
JuBWUOJIAUB pue Ajlunwwo)
S9IIAIDS [RIBUSD
juswadeuew pue SujuIaA0D
$921A195 110ddng
JUBWUIBA0S [eIBURD

$921A3S AjlUNWwo)
91111108 [BIUBWIUIBA0D
:sasuadxy

(8unnunodoy jo siseg [enJdoy)
SIeaA [edsl4 UL Ise
uonIsod 19N ui sadueyd

VNITOYVI HLYON ‘ALNNOD IONVHO



SLT'T6S'TL  $ T9T'SSS'LS S

OvZ'0svTy 0ZTETT'9C

€L¥T0S8E €T1°909'7C

¥15'966°S EES66LY

687'TL LTV'SLE

0v8'607'T 6895099

0€8v20°0€ vL¥'ST80T

L9L°LT6'E £00°£0S'E

10998 819965

9zLT90°E 68€0T6'C

SE6'09T°0E 0TYYTE

216'596°0C ¥62°66v'TC

OLY'LL6"ST 129°L60'TT

Trr'886'T €£9°T0V

£20'S61°6 8vL'Tv6'6

v8YLESL 9799S6'L

80S9LT'T YY0'EV8‘T

TE0T8T 8LO'EVT

- $ - $
600C 0102

0€ aunf papu3 Jeaj 104

€319vl

SpuN4 [BIUSWUISAOD |BI0L

Spuny [BIUBWILISA0Y 13430 ||V [e30L

panIasalun [eJo|

anuanal [epads Jolew-uou ul payoday

paieusisapun

«S8Inypuadxa s eaA Juanbasqng

anuanal [epads Joflew-uoN

sjuawanoidwi [eyded jooyds

sjuawanoidwi [eyded Ayuno)

:ul payodals

sainyipuadxa sJeaA yuanbasqng

:pajeusisaq
:pansasalun

panasal [ejo]
a1nels ajels
saduBIqUINOUT
110§ panIasay
SpuUN4 [B3UBWILIBA0D JBYIO IV
(1) poysssepoy

puny [eJauag [ejo)
paniasaiun ejo)
paieusisapun

sainyipuadxa sJeaA juanbasqng

:pajeusisaq
:pansasalun

panasal [ejo]
ainels aels
s9dueIqUINOUT
S3LI0JUBAU|

110§ PanIasaY
puny |esausn

€€l

*a8ueyp |euopieziuesio

1J0 pa193|}2. 9.e SIAqWINU 9TOT 3Y3 {(jeu

£33 pUE [eIn)|n) pue

‘JUBLIUOIIAUS pUB AJJUNWWIO) ‘S32IAIDS [EIBUSD ‘Juawadeuew pue Sujuianoo pade|dal s921AIas Hoddng pue ‘JUaWUIBA0D [BIBUDD ‘S3IAIDS AYUNWWO)) 9T-STOT A4 Ul swea] diysiapeaT [euonouny o3 pagueyd Ajuno) aguelQ 310N

ejuawa|dw s1y) 303|431 131 pue TTOZ sieah ayL

‘suoniuya@ adAL pung [eJusWwuIaA0Y pue Suioday aduejeg puny ‘pS "ON 1eIS pJeog SpJepuels SuBUNOIIY [BIUBWUIBA0D
30 uonejuaWa|dwi TTOZ Y3 Jo 19edwi 3Y3 193|421 0} PaILISAI USI] 10U dARY SBIUE|RG pUNy TTOZ 03 Jold syuawaless ayl (T)

65L'6v8'69 995'9€8'76 S BET'0SS'E8 S 6C00v€'96  $ OVL'SLETIT  $ v08'9T8'Z0T $ L8'SBY'SOT § SLV'SEL'9LT S
TL8Y95TE 090°2L6'Y TES'0L8'8T 780'STT'YE 65T°9S€'9Y L19°0SE°EY 198'856'TH 912'002'€9
- - (ST¥'299°€) (€£0'569'7) (62°9L2) - - -
- - - - - YYT'ovT €16'97T 96€'8YT
YI6°0VL'T 060'S8TZ 691'6€0' LTLT0L'T T98'TVEY - - -
819'96T 0ST'6 ¥ST'6 ¥ST'6 €€T'TL - - -
S¥9'006'T TZH'60L €09'60L' T8'SLO'T 095€9€'T - - -
- - - - - 62749 TLL29 9009
- - - - - £€90'877 L65'THT 67991
LLT'BER'E T99'€06'7 9T6'LSL'Y €v£'98LE ySSLLL'S
008'SE0'C 99v2€ 37443 88Y'Z€ 1443 - - -
LLELTTT 06t€85 TSEETT TLE'ETT 88E'ETT - - -
TY6'€9S oz6‘szL €0L'THL 701'659 719'88L zer'se 6018 8L8'STT
- - - - - 079'08L'€Z LEL'S8Y'8T Ly8'YYT'ST
186'79€ ¥68'99T'T £68'750'T L88'LYLT 6LE'L6T'T - -
- - - - - SYE'09T'E €6T'6TH'E 86T9TL'E
TT1'588 080'6L6 €/5'180'T €T'6EST £89'20'C T9L'065'T 90£'£10'C S26'SSL'T
606'758'8 T65°TLSL €€8'787'S 05578271 0828012 - -
- - - - - ¥69'€€S'T €99'8L 996'899'
8902’6 SYT'6SE'ST 615'6v7°0T 90v'vSt'8 €8EVPY'9 018'992°0T 808'0EE'Y L6Y'€9L'9T
TE€6LES TS0'VSL'T YEL'LIY'Y TSH'STSE STT'06S'T Y9LTYS'T Y6EYTST ¥90°9%9'T
£88V8TLE 905'658'LY £09'6L9'%S LY6YTT'T9 185'610'59 £81°99Y'79 996'92L'79 652'SES'E9
£00T8LLT Y6E'SPT'SE ¥50°809'9€ 6TTET6'EE €78'8YS'SE 09T7€0'TE S88LTS'VE 0€T'6EY'VE
575126 - - - - - -
LTY'TET'T [ 7234243 8TT'06T'S £€'890°0T 0££059°0T v6'92L'TT 090'69L6 660'078'8
YTSES 616'StT £927'S0T'E 97009 TY8'ErS'L - - -
- - - - - TY8'ErS'L TY8'ErS'L TY8'EVS'L
¥79'681'8 790°66€°8 YIT'9EL'S T6v'20T'TT 128'SST'TT €LS'PYT'TT 058'6€L°0T STT'9LS'TT
- - - - - - 000°9€T 000°9€T
12S'STT 88L'LT 800°€7 Tre'er 90£'02 899'€T 62€'L €L6'9T
v6LTT 9v6'9T S 9v6'9T $ - S - $ T00°E $ T00°€ $ 100t $
1102 210z €102 102 S10Z 9102 £102 8107

0€ aunf papu3 Jea Jo4

910N

SpUN4 JUSWUISAOY [eI0]

SpuUN4 JUBWIUIAA0D J3Y31Q ||V [eI0L

pausisseun
spafoid [ende)
uonesnpy
S3IIAIBS [2I2UDD
JUBWIUOIAUD puE AjuNwwo)
sa21A18s AjUNWWo)
$92IAIBS UBWINY
:paudissy
juawaseuew pue Sululanoy
uonesnpy
$92IAIBS UBWINY
pamwiwo)
spafoid [ende)
JUBWIUOIAUD puE Ajunwwo)
sa21A18s AjUnWwo)
Ayages aijgnd
juawaseuew pue Sululanoy
$92IAIBS UBWINY
uonesnpy
13Y30 |je ‘papLISaY
21n3elS 23e)S J0j UOIEZI|IgRIS
1104 pa1oLIISAY

Spuny [BIUWUIBA0D J13Y30 |IV
puny |esauap [eo]
pausisseun

panpLisay
sainyipuadxa Jeah Juanbasqng
:paudissy

SIINIBS |eIBURD
siyauag yieaH
‘pawwio)

21NjelS 91e1S 10} UOIEZI[IGeIS
110} paYOLISAY

S9IUBAPY
S3LI0JUBAU|

sway piedald

:9|qepuads-uoN
puny jesausn

(8ununodoy jo siseq [entddy payipoIAl)

siea [edsty ua) 1se]

SPUN [EIUSWILIBAOD JO S3dUEleg puny

VNIT0¥VD HLYON ‘ALNNOJ IONVHO



puE JUSWUOJIAUS pue AIUNWWO) ‘53!

vel

*a8ueyd |euoneziuesio siy) Jo Pa1d3|4aL dJe SIaquinu 9TOZ Ay {(|eUOIEaIdA pUE [einyn)

J9S [BJ2UDD “uaWISeurw pue SuIUIdA0D Pade|dal S3DIAIIS 14oddNS PUB QUIWUISA0Y [BJAUSD ‘SIIIAIDS AUNWWOD) 9T-GTOT A4 Ul Swea] diysiapea] [euoidound o) pagueys Ayuno) asuelQ 910N

*s99 10edwi 1oy 98.eyd jo paniwiad Ja8uo| ou ale s21UIN0D 3y} ‘ainiesiSa| ul a8ueyd e 0y anq (z)

*Ayuno) 8y} Aq 3asse ue se

pazijeyided Juaixa ay3 01 Ajuo 1nqg sali08a1ed [UOIOUNY ||B Ul SaINYIpuUadXa |eded ssa) saunyipuadxe |e10] Jo Wns ay3 Aq papIAIp Ajuo 3saia)ul pue [edidulid $193|43. saunlipuadxa |eidesuou jo adejusdlad e se 921AJ9s 192Q (1)

%8E €T %8T YT %88'ST %CT8T %L8'TT %S0°CT %0L'TT %86 TT %0€TT %65 TT
965'€V0°0T S (v00'9€0'ST)  $ 0ZY'9SY'8 S Tw8'08y'TeT $ (zrZ'00L6) S VLOTILET $ 006%v0'€T S 819'8TZT (£L6°0€T2) S 8%9°6v0'TC S
/€698 OET'8EE'E 677'SL9'6 0v972S'9C 99€V/6 €TC6LL'ST 000'9€2'CT 1117758 87C'188'L 909°028'LE
(00£T¥9%T) (£86'009°ST) (£68758°6) (zvT'620°0T) (185'589°€T) (¥0Z'908°0T) (662'€€T'6) (86z'sTT'OT) (LTL'vLTTT) (9€8861°0T)
0TE'0L0'YT £80'909'tT £880€9°L TTS'€99L Tr9'S9T'TT 9€€'9€0'8 9559529 0S£'082'8 89€90L'6 00L'8228
- - - - - - - £9T°CE 910's6 016061
£19'295 - - - - - - - - -
000°00£8€ YEV'IET'Y 6E7'668'TT 005'T€0°TT 660'660'C 180'6%/5'8T 9S‘0¥0°9T 851S59'9 T9SVSE'6 LSL'STL'TE
- (85€'T20'VT) - (680°0€0°70T) (000°589°€T) - (S€0'2L6°LT) - - (890'160°0€)
- - - - - - - - - €Y1'S98'L
- 000°SSt'TT - 00566996 000°00€'€T - 0000vT'ST - - -
- ¥S6°79L'T - 09€S6T YT 907089'T - TETV06'T - - 000°00t'6C
(T¥9°2¥9'87) (vET'vLE'ST) (600°612T) (86L'€v0Y) (8£5'7£9°0T) (6€1°8107) 006°80€ (6ST'vE9E) (soz'zTo'0T) (856'0££°9T)
618'767'TCC YYT'9E6'ETT 60€'S/5'86T T08'TEE'90T L08'8T6'VTC €9€€L9'STT 615'Sr9'TTC LLY'SSE'8TT 678L97'6€C 199206'05C
S87°0LT'6 7€67€9°8 6€6'606'6 €61°08Z'ST 899'65L'8 6760899 Tr8'69€'8 6572989 £T9%58'9 00T'ELE"L
6LT'8E0LT LEO'0ST'LT OTL'STL'ST SSO'8TL'8T 60T°£97'9T €56'€088T 8YTvrE'6T T8L'6%0°0C 9TL'0€E8'6T Y6Tv9T'TT
8TL'L09'8E 699'70T €€ LYT'9LE'ST LY6'6LL'6T YLS‘SOT'TE 095876'0C 0r9'0€0°ET €06'085'L T66'8€S'S LO0'SLE'TT
€TT'TTEE 66T°06L'T €€6'0T8'T 796'8L0'C 9/8'L9T'T T89'S6€C 6L0'L¥9'T - - -
- - - - - - - Y0T'T99'TT 6€9'626'€T TEVLE'TT
0T€'926°0C 0T¥'018'0C T8TEV9'TT SY9'€90°€T TTTV0E'ET 915'8£9'5T €L5'7€9'9T 8E8'96€'8T €18'€60'6C 9TT'9vL'0E
STL'TTL'Y9 67L'8%0°€9 €TSTT6'E9 €06'6€6'€9 16588Y'L9 T66'TTTTL €6€815'8L 6L6'6L9'58 vT8'961L6 676'668'86
¥9T'0T6'SE 0T5'8v0'vE €90060'€E §85'T99'T€ 690'689'V€ 08LSET'9E S9TV8S'LE 807'69L'9 veT'Ley'ey €89'720°€Y
€6€'TETOT 8YSVTETT 6T9'€S8'TT 96780€'TT LYT'STR'TT €0L'ST6'TT TET'TI9'ET - - -
67T'TI6'TT 0£0°05%'6 TLT'9TL'9 7909559 S00THO'L YS6'E6L'L 056'€28'8 - - -
ETETSY'6 0€0'VSY'ET TEO'LYS'TT 6YT'9Y6'TT LYS08T'TT SOE'LT0ET LEV'0SO'ET - - -
- - - - - - - TEL'69€E6 7€6'602'8 €9Y'269'6
- - - - - - - €£9'086'TT 090981 VT L0L'659'YT
8LT'Sy9'€6T 070'795'S6T 00€'95€'L6T €00'682'70C 622 7T'v0T ¥2Z'SS9'ETT 6T77S6'TCC 8TETTLYIT ¥29'ssT'6TC €0L'9ET'VET
686'6€8'T 796'6T5C LTTEELT v29'8SY'T T09TrTT 759’696 097'855T €T8'EVT €6L785T T€E0'0£9T
YEv'8ET'T 6T8'VTC'T T06'651'T SET'8YI'T ¥0Z'120'T YY6'TI8'T 9SL'€9LT YZE'Y00'T 8Z0'VIT'T (@ -
765€9€ 91Z'8TE YT0‘€0Y S9T'62€ LLY'TTE LES'VTE 0TS'TEE 9ELVIT'E YSYYTE TT9'v0€
069'€6L TL9'sTt 98€°20T TrT'9sL 0€Y'L0T T0E'6C SST'ST €TT'29C €6L'8T9 €EL'T6ET
T.8'6€9'6 £99'98€0T ¥00'TTE0T 18076001 TTr'LTEOT 99€866'0T 806029'TT SYT'L8L°0T L6T'STO'TT 6T9'vL6'TT
SY6'SST'6C T06'9LLLT T90'8TT'6C 796'885°8T 990'S6€'9T vT6'TTT'LT 688'LEE'LT 8£9'700°LT 0€6'SY'9T 790'819'5C
0SY'vT8'8T 00T'THY'ST 8TY'STT'ST 996'TLT'8T TE'BYT'TT 6TY'726'TT 9TT'TZ0'sT L18'202°9T TLT'700'8T 6TS€0V'6T
- - - - - - 90L'LSE'T YIv'v0ST ¥Z9°8TS'T ST0'609'T
SYT'66L'TET  $ TL9'89LLET  § 86TTIT'6ET  § SBLSTYITVT S 989'68STWT  $ 6L0'VBE'6YT  $ 6TI'8E6'0ST  $ 89Z'6ES'EST €€9°0€9'SST  $ 00T%9T'09T  $
600C 010C TT0C 7107 €10C ¥10C ST0C 9107 1107 8107

0€ aunf papu3 JeaA Jo4

sainyipuadxa |eyides-uou
40 98ejua04ad e se 921AI3S 199

saduejeq puny ul agueyd 19N

ueuly Jay1o [e30]
N0 siajsued |

Ul siajsuel)
s)asse |e)ded JO 3|es WOy SPAIT0Id
aouenss| sasea) |eyde)

32UENSS| SUBO| JUAWI|BISU|

Suipunyau - JuaSe Moudsa 03 sjusWAeq
PaAI22aL swniwald

aouenss| Buipunjay

2ouenss| spuog

(s@sn) sazunos Supueuy 1230

(sasn) sa2unos 8

sainypuadxa (Japun) JaA0
SINUINSI JO S530X3

sainypuadxa |e3ol
153J91U]
ledipulg
HERIINEIN ]
Aejino jeyde)
|euoiealdal pue [ean3n)
$92IAI9s 110ddng
Aiaes aljqnd
uoneosnp3
S92IAIDS UBWINH
JUBWUOJIAUR puE AJlUNWIWo)
S9IAISS [IBUID
Juawadeuew pue 3uluian0D
JUBWUIaA0S [eIBURD
$32IAIBS Ajunwiwo)
BUCYIT )
sainjipuadxy

SaNUAA3J [BIO]
SNOBUE||3SIN

s994 pedw|

syuwJad pue sasuadi
s8ujulea Juswisanu|
$921AI3S J0j S981eYD
S3NUBA3J [EIUBWUIBA0SIR U]
xey sajes

xe} AouednaoQ

soxe} Ajiadoud

sanuanay

(8unnunodoy jo siseg [enJidoy PalIPOAI)
SIea [edsi4 ua] Ise]
Spun4 |e3USWIUIBA0D O sIduejeg pund ul sasueyd

VNIT0Y¥VJ HLYON ‘ALNNOD 3IONVYO



el

uolleN|BA SYIUOW 334y} [BUOIHPPE UE SApN[oUl Aadoud [euosiad JO anjea passassy 4

‘oljel sojes ay} JOo ajewllss 1a)1aq e sjuasasdal YaIiym uoizenjeaad ayi Jo aAllI9|jal Sl Oljed anjeA [enldy jo wmmucmu\_wn_ B SB 9N|eA pPassassy 8T0OC @Y1 - 910N

$31A97 Xxe| Aladoud pue uonenjep jo poday Ayuno) |enuuy :324n0s

%Y’ S6 TL6°090°LVT'6T 8€8°0 0£8°006°0€€'8T 807'T80°T8 8ET'E8S'STE 99€'0ST'TTL'T ¥LL'8¥T'S8E'9T 810¢C
%1Y'S8 9T0°00L'CE6'6T 8480 ¥80'6TS'VT0'LT TE9'VYT'TL 0€8‘VEY'90€ 855'8/5'029'T LTE'0SL'89T'ST LT0C
%LT°S8 0L1'9€5'9£9°6T 8/8°0 T6€°C8T'8LL9T S00°219°29 S08‘vvL C8¢ 8EE'L68'TYY'T ¥ST'LST'020'ST 910¢C
%07°S8 YTY'8TT'ECE'6T 8480 YET'EV6'TOS9T 6S€°005°L9 TI8'T6T Ve 7ST'T68'TIV'T 0€Y'0SE'€98' VT STOC
%LS°S8 79L'79¢€'86€°6T 8980 89€°09€'7€9°9T GETLTS'99 e'eT6'6e 8TV TV VLT * €€8TOSVEL VT ¥710C
%L0°S8 7S0'T89'968'8T 8580 TLY'€L6°SLO'9T T¥9'6EY V9 €£0'595'SET €86°LTT'VLT'T 950°0€L'0€9'VT €T0¢
%0678 G988017'97L 8T 8980 STI'9€T'668'ST 0Sv'Z€8°T9 TO0'6TT'VET 9vL'T99°LTT'T 8¢8°/80'60S VT [41014
%88°58 981°/99'69¢'8T 8580 081'066'689°ST S00°L6T°29 TSL'V€E6'8CC TrY'09C'ELTT 766'T66'6VEVT T10¢
%68°S8 0S6°LEV'T60'ST 8980 950'9€L'8€S'ST 166°956'6S 676'66€'€ET LOT'SVO'VET'T TT0'8VC'TET VT 010¢C
%0€'C8 T6E'ShY'LLS'ST 8660 8GG°L€T'028'CT S EE9VVTVY S 089'6L2'9TC $ £90'STLYTT'T S WWYLLE'ETYTT S 600¢
anjeA |enypy anjeA 1IeN 21ey xe] 102414 aN|e/ passassy Ayadoud sajuedwo) Ayadoud Ayadoud IEENN
J01Ud213d e se |enjoy pajewiisy |eyol |eyol 1dwax3-xe| ssa 92IAI95-21|qNd |euosiad |eay |easiq

oN|eA PIssSassy

s ajqeL

(paupneun)
SIeaA |easiq ua) 1seq
Ayiadoud ajqexe] jo anjep |en3dy pue anjep passassy

VNITO¥VI HLYON ‘ALNNOD I9NVIO



ogl

'sanjen Auadoud passasse ayy Suisn paindwod s yaiym ‘a1es agelane paySiam e sl SA0GE UMOYS 31l 193JIP ,SIOLISIP 31 YL "SIXE] 1DLIISIP 341} SA[9M] JO U0 03 123[qns S| seale pajesodiodouiun ayy ui Auadoud 1soN (z)

*a1e4 xey Auadoud 10a.1p 3y aJe sa1ed xe) [edidiuniAl pue Ajuno) v (1)

221J0 J0ssassy xe| Ajuno) a8uelQ :924nos

004170 00410 00410 004170 004170 00410 006t°0 006t°0 006t°0 00410 SueqaN
00£9°0 0029°0 0029°0 0029°0 0089°0 0089°0 0089°0 0089°0 0089°0 0029°0 ysnoJoqs|iiH
€989°0 6850 6850 76850 6850 76850 6850 6850 6850 6850 oJoqlie)y
01850 0ov6¥°0 0ov6¥°0 ov6¥°0 0ov6¥°0 0v1S°0 0veso 0veso 0veso 08050 IIH |2deyd

:sajes Ayjedpiuniy

00€T°0 ¥881°0 ¥881°0 ¥881°0 ¥881°0 ¥807°0 ¥807°0 ¥807°0 ¥807°0 81200 1213510 |00Y2S 040GIED-||IH [2deyD
00900 00900 00900 00£0°0 $504) @UYM
00900 00S0°0 00S0°0 00S0°0 9J3ueli] uiayinos
0S60°0 G8L0°0 G8L0°0 G8L0°0 a8uelQ yinos
0€90°0 9€90°0 9€90°0 19500 |eany a8ueQ
0zv0'0 08500 8S€0°0 8070°0 anoug aguelp
SL90°0 S690°0 S690°0 56800 adoH maN
09v0°0 90v0°0 90v0°0 90¥0°0 Jany smn
04500 66500 66500 66500 ouj
€¢S00 09v0°0 99v0°0 99v0°0 puej3
0090°0 0090°0 00S0°0 00S0°0 snoseweq
06v0°0 0S£0°0 0S£0°0 0S£0°0 IIH |2deyd
0€L0°0 9€L0°0 9€L0°0 9€L00 9A0JD Jepa)

1S1OLIISIP 2414
1S¥1°0 S TZSTO S LLYTO0 T0ST'0 18¥1°0 $ 0SST0 S 93el3llp [ej0L

€650°0 €990°0 66500 €290°0 €090°0 TL00 (2) s1ous1q 2414
85800 8580°0 8/80°0 8/80°0 8/80°0 8€80°0 91ed 103.41p [eJ3uas [e30L

08660 $ 85800 $ 85800 $ 85800 $ 85800 $ 85800 $ 8/80°0 8/80°0 8/80°0 $ 8€80°0 S (1) Aunop a8uesp

sajey 3a41q Ayuno)

600C 010¢ T10C 10T €10C 1414 S10T 910T £L10T 810C
0€ aunf papu3 Jea Jo4

(papneun)

SIBDA [BISI4 U] ISET

93|qeL sajey xe] Ajadoud Suiddepsang pue paliq

VNIT04VJ HLYON ‘ALNNOJ I9NVYO



€1

*10ssassy xe| Ajuno) aguesQ :224n0S

%VEE 09.°T6S'LTy %88°C 89€‘TVE 9SS |elol
%8T°0 ot T€6°LLSTT 91e157 |edy D77 493ud) a8e||IA JUOWMOPEIN INYAd
%10 6 TEV'TEO LT |910H J711433ud) edoing
%1C°0 8 761°C7S0'TE Aunn agnd '0) ydeu3s|a| pue auoyda|a] yinos ||og
%SC°0 L 9Th 9e€TE |1e1ay saladoud ||elN AdsiaAlun uosipey
%SC'0 9 98Y'¥8S'C€E J3p1noad dduednsu) 9771 wnuo)
%80 S 6V TEY9E oueINSU| Y3|eaH *J'N 4O p[21YyS an|g pue ssou) an|g
%6€°0 € STT'0CT'0S 1snJ| siaumQ padold 21119 SN
%6170 C 952'70LT9 |ejuaJ syuswedy diyssaunied paywi] IVA
%6T°0 1)1 vS0‘19€9€ |ejuas Juswedy 177 S49MO] 3||IAuelD)

%61°0 6 001‘89%°9€ |e3uas Juswpedy OJ717T0S UMOIPIAIIIA I'8D

%6T°0 8 S8200°LE |ejuas Juswedy 777 498e||IA 21U10d 9Y1 1Y [|IH |19dey)d

%1C0 L 00L'SET‘OV |1e1ay /32140 J71 [1B19Y 321H0 ¢S 3se3

%vC0 9 v9‘TYT LY jueg uolun 3paJs) ,sasAo|dw] a1e1s

%9C°0 S 8v6'€6T'0S Aynin agnd JU| DN 40 03 33IAIBS dljqnd

%0€°0 14 0SS‘S0S°LS |eauau Juswnedy 0D 3dUBINSU| 3417 |ENINIA] UIDIDMYLION

%9€°0 ¥ LLY'6ES'9Y %IE0 € 9LZ'vLY'09 Aujian olgnd diysiaquis|y 2143033 Juowpald
%CE0 T 00S‘v09'T9 |elual suswedy D71 syuawiedy eze|d a8e||IA

%L9°0 T 966'STC'98 %L9°0 T TIT'PSP'62T Aynin agnd A31au3z n@
uonenjep quey uonenjep uonenjep yuey uonenjep ssauisng jo adAL 19Aedxe)

passassy |e10L passassy passassy |e101 passassy
J0 98ejuaouad J0 98ejuadiad
600¢ 810¢

L3|qeL

(paupneun)
08y SIE3A U] pue JBDA JUALIND
siahed xe] Ayjadoud jedpund

VNIT0¥VI HLYON ‘ALNNOD I9NVHO



8¢l

*3)e|nd|ed 0} pasn AAa| Ajuo ay3 sem AAa| JeaA Jua.ind 3yl €T 01 JOlid "AAd| JeaA Juauind By} pue
9|qeA1adaJ Ans| sieaA Jolid ay3 Suisn palejndjed sem Juauad SIYL 4

Ss1013sIp [e1dads sapn|pul AAS| Xe ]

%IL'T T20TLTY %6€°L6 *x 6SS'V09'EST 9696LT'T %CT°66 €98vTr'TST TTLEBL'EST 8102 L10T
%L9°C 898'T66'E %6€°L6 +x VEC'ETS6YT 6TT'SST'T %6166 STO'8SE'SYT 0TZ'9956YT L10¢ 9T0¢
%89°C £88'8€6'E %6E°L6 xx T€9'LSOLYT 796'60€'T %L1'66 £99°LYL'SYT LLY'L96°9VT 910¢ ST0C
%LL'T LEO'620'Y %0€°L6 +% CEV'SOV'SYT Sv6v0S'T %8066 L8Y'€E06'EVT TEV'BETSYT SToT 102
%Y6°C LEO'B6T Y %YE'L6 ++ 9VE'6SO'EVT 6L2°920C %8L'86 L90°€EE0TYT £09'8LL TYT ¥10¢ €T0¢
%SC'E 9LL'6LY'Y %LY'66 SLY'SET'LET €LV'9€9T %0t°'86 916°0SL'SET LT9'T96°LET €T0C [4114
%S8'C 855'706°E %VE'66 680°€L8'SET LEE'LST'T %6786 TSL'STL'YET TT9'6LL'9ET (45014 110
%E€9'C €L0°0SSE %YL'66 €ST'OLLVET 875909'T %5586 ST9'E9TEET LVE'9TTSET TT0C (01014
%96°C 9595°€S6'E %8L'66 906°Z8T'EET 6TV'0VST %€9'86 LLY TV TET 9Z6'SLY'EET 010¢ 600¢
%98°C 9€5°099°€ %SL'66 6LT'86¥'LTT S L¥8T8TT %SL'86 TEV'STT'9TT S DOIS'EI8LTT S 600¢ 800¢
Ano7 xe] paisnlpy saxe] juanbuijag Ana1 xe] paisnipy 1eap Sunng suo01393]|0) Anaq pa3129||10D suo01393]|0) Anaq Ana7 xe) 0€ aunr B3\ Xej
03 saxe] juanbuijag Suipueising 0} SUO0I29]|0) SuoI33||0) |e30L S4ed) Jold a8ejuadiad ,SABIA JUBLIND paisnfpy ,uauin) papu3 Jeap

83jqeL

30 JuddIdd

|eloL

|e30] }O Juddidd

(paupneun)
SJed |edsiq uay iseq

Su01393]|0) pue saIAdT Xe] Auadoud

VNI104VD HLYON ‘ALNNOD I9NVHO



6€l

*1eaA Jepuajed Joud ayj 1oy uonejndod

pue awodul [euostad uisn paje|ndjed aJe soned asay L “eyep uone|ndod pue awodul |euosiad 4oy €1 3|qe 335 (T)
*AJuUno) 3y} JO S921N0S3J JUBWIUIAA0S [elaud8 wouy ajqeAed ale sueo| SUIAJOASI 91€IS pUE SUBO| JUBW|[eISU| - 310N

%IET 9St'T T€9'8€5°60C TL0'8TE - 096v9T‘TT 062'6v0ET LL9'Tve'T - €£9'895°TTT 000°S8T‘TL 810C
WYT'T 67E'T 88V TVE06T - - 1SS'S8TCT SY8'Z8E'L LTE'88E'T - SLL'SSE'LTT 000°0€V‘0S L10T
%95°C 9TH'T €€£'509°00C - - 9T6'66L°6 058°S66°6 LS6'EES‘T - 0T9°S66'8TT 000°087°65 910C
%88'C 8€S'T 9TT'S9L'LTT - - S08'086'6 LSL'STT'VT £65'6L9'T - £SO'TEYTTT 000°SSE‘89 ST0T
%Y0°€ L6S'T 910°Lv0'€TT - - 806'v7L'8 195'8TE'ST €0L'€99°T - v¥8'681°0CT 000°0ST‘LL ¥10T
BIT'E S09'T ¥29'58072T - 8TT'STE STT'6TY'6 69£'€85'9T 660'660'C €ETOVLT 0LT'£69°S0T 000°50Z°98 €T0T
%19°€ veL't 0€L°£98'8€C - 558909 8TE'SLTOT 9v8°589°ST - 9LT°98Y°C SESE6EVTT 000°025°S6 [4X04
%19°€ ¥69'T 91966592 - 1787207 SSP'T99°L 981'06v'T - 000°00Z‘€ ¥S8'TEL'60T 000°06v€0T TT0Z
%8L'E 89L'T LS8'SYO'VET - STL'Y00°T S68°LYT'S £19°09T°T - 02S'6v0°C 00T‘€9T°60T 000°02SZTT 010C
%Ly 6/8'T T80'V9€E'9YT - v68'TrY'T S ESE'VEI8 S (68€'6Y5) - 9IVETBET $ LL8'S8E0'ETT $ 000'STY'1ZT S 600T
(1) awodu| [euosiad (1) ended sad JUBWUIaN0D swnjwaid saseaq sueoq swnjwaid Sueo7 SUIAjoAY sasea] sueo] spuog uonesiiqo 123 |edsly
30 a8ejuddIad Aewnd |eyo) |eade) juawjjessu| ajels |eade) Juswjessu| |esauan

69IqeL

sanIAldy adA]-ssauisng

DY |EJUBWIUIBN0D

SJea |edslq uay iseq
adA] Aq 1ga@ Suipueising jo soney

VNIT0HVI HLYON ‘ALNNOJ IDNVHO



ovl

‘ejep anjea Auiadoud Joj g 9|qe) 93S (7)
*JeaA Jepusjed Jowd sy Joj uonejndod
pue sawodul |euosiad Suisn pajenajed aJe soljes asay) ‘eiep uoljejndod pue swodul [euosiad Joj €T 3|qe) 995 (T)

*SJUSWIIE]S [BIDUBULY JISEq SY) O} SII0U B Ul PUNOy 3q UEd 1gap Suipuelsino s,Auno) ayi Sulpiesas

1e19Q :SAI0N

*3]qe|IeAe 194 10U UOIBWLIOJU|

LLET %80°T %ET'T 009°st0'86T 06Z°610°€T LL9TrT'T €€989S'TTT 000°SST‘TL 810¢
't %S0T %10°C LE6'9STSLT SY878EL LTE88ET SLL'SS6'LTT 000°0€¥'0S LT0C
LYET %Y1’ T % T LT%'S08°06T 058°5666 LS6'EEST 019S66'STT 00008265 9T0¢
L9V'T %9C'T %SL'T TT¥'¥8L'L0T LSLSTTVT £65°6£9C LSO'TE9TTT 000°SSE'89 SToC
YEST %6C'T %C6'C 80TTTEVTIT 195°8T€'ST €0L°€99'T ¥78°681°0CT 000°0ST'LL ¥10¢
[44°0 %IET %596'C 8€0'585°01C 69L°€85°9T 660°660'C 0LT°L69'SOT 00050298 €T0¢
8791 %V’ nas 18€'665'57T 9¥8°G89'ST - GES'E6EVTT 000°02S'S6 [41014
S09'T %LE'T %EV'E OVE'ETLVTT 987°06v7'T - ¥S8T€L'60T 000°06%'€0T TT0C
€89'T %EV'T %09°€ LTL'EV8TTT L19°09T°T - 00T€9T'60T 000°0ZSCTT [0)10]4
v8LT %C8'T %16'€ 88Y'V06'EET S (68€6¥S) S - S 0°LL8'SE0ETT $ 000'STY'1ZT S 600¢
(1) euded 194 (2) Aaadoud jo anjep (1) awoou| jeuosiad |eloL wniwald (3unodsiq) ueo| Suinjonay sueoq spuog uonesiqo Je3A |eIsly
a|qexe] [en1y Jo a8ejuadiad alels juawijjeIsu| |esauan
JLEY S UELIEN] SuipueisinQ 19aQ papuog |esausd

SIeaj [edsl4 ua] iseq
SulpuelsinQ 1qaq |e42UdD 13N JO soney

0T 3|qeL VNITO¥VI HLYON ‘ALNNOD IDNVHO



343

‘Ajuoyine Suimouloq

1e83] s,A3uno) ay3 syuasasdas pue Jwi| ay3 03 3|qedljdde Suipuelsino 1gap 18U s,A3UN0) 3y pue Jwi| 1gap
8y] 'Spuoq anuaAaJ pue ‘panss| aq 01 19A spuoq Suipunjas pue Suipuny ‘suswWssasse [elads pa1dajjooun
‘sasodund Jamod 143233 10 ‘sed ‘Jamas ‘Ja1em Joj palindul 1gap ‘jedpulid jo JuswAed Joy pjay Asuow

‘Jwi| ay3 03 a|qedljdde 1gap 13U 1. 3ALLIE 0] 1gBP SSOJS WOJ) SpeW e suodNPap SUIMO||0) 3YL "Uollexe] 0}
193(qns Ayadoud jo anjea pasieidde ayi Jo %8 01 1gap Suipuelsino s,Aluno) syl sHWl| §S-6ST 9IN1LIS DN 910N

%98°CC %EB'LT %66°9T %0591 %80°ST %96 VT %LV %Ly ET %VSCT %C9°CT | 193p 4o a8ejuadsad e
se Jwi| 01 3|qedijdde 1qap 19U [e10L
8¢T'S9TT6L S P8L'STY'TZOT ¢ 09€'9L6'TVO'T $ GSE'LT0C90'T $ 609°9L0C60T $ T8T'S8STET'T S L6L'68Y°9TT'T S YeO'SYYTI9T'T  $ SEVUSTIET'T  $ 09L'SLYI8C'T S uigiew 1qap e8]
LL8'ESY'VET 00T'€89'TZC ¥S8'TTTETT SES'ET6'60C 692100761 L5'€00°66T ¥59'599'€6T £95'608°08T 260'vLL°0LT 0TE'966'V8T 1w 03 3jqedyjdde 1gap 19U [ejo]
- - - - - - - - - - spuoq anuanay
- - - - - - - - - - sasodind Jamas
pue Ja1em Joj SuipueisIno 1gaQ
- - - - - - - - - - spuoq uoiiedi|qo |esauad
Jo JuawAedau Joj 3|qe|ieAe Junowy
15597
LL8'ESY'VET 001'€89'T7C ¥S8TTT'ETT SES'ET6'60T 697T00'V6T L¥S‘E00'66T ¥59'599'€6T £95'608°08T T60'7LL°0LT OTE'966'V8T 192p $5019
1wl 03 3|qedtjdde 1gap 40 Junowy
500°619°G20°T ¥88'860€VT'T ¥T2'661°S5'T 068°0€6°TLT'T 8/8'L10°98T'T 678'8850EE'T TSY'SST'OZE'T T6S'VSTTVET LTS'T96TIET 0£0°TLY'99V'T (uoneywi| Asoynzess)
anjeA passasse Jo %8 ‘Uwl| 199Q
8GS'LET'0T8TT $ 9S0'9EL'S8ES'ST $ 08T'066'689'ST S STI'9ET'668'ST S TLV'EL6'SLO'OT S 89E'09E'TEIIT  $ VET'EV6TOSIT $ T6ETVI'BLLOT S ¥BO'6TS'VZO'LT $ 0L8'006°0EE'8T S Apiadoud yo anjen passassy
600C 0T0T 70T [4194 €70C 10T ST0T 9T0¢ £LT0C 810
0€ aunf papu3 JeaA Jo4
SIeaA [edsl4 U3 ise
uojewJoju| uidie 3qaq |esa
TT o198l

VNITOY¥VI HLYON ‘ALNNOD IDNVHO



ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
(Unaudited)
As of June 30, 2018

(2) Percentage

Estimated Share

Debt Municipality of Direct and
Governmental Unit Outstanding in County Overlapping Debt
Municipalities:
Town of Carrboro S 4,758,333 100% 4,758,333
Town of Chapel Hill 66,653,000 100% 66,653,000
Town of Hillsborough 36,710,285 100% 36,710,285
City of Durham 47,607,929 3% 1,428,238
Town of Mebane 13,103,862 30% 3,931,159
Overlapping debt 168,833,409 113,481,015
Direct debt 184,996,310 184,996,310
Total direct and overlapping debt: S 353,829,719 298,477,325

Source: (1) The Total Outstanding Debt (provided by the Finance Officers of above listed municipalities) is multiplied by the percentage of

municipality residents in the County.

Source: (2) The percentage of overlapping is computed by dividing the population of Orange County residents in the municipality by the

municipality total population.
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
(Unaudited)

Table 14

2018 2009
Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
UNC-Health Care 12,475 1 18.50% 12,084 2 18.79%
UNC Chapel Hill 11,079 2 16.43% 7,977 2 12.40%
Chapel Hill-Carrboro City Schools 2,262 3 3.35% 1,910 4 2.13%
Orange County Schools 1,297 4 1.92% 1,000 5 1.55%
Orange County Government 925 5 1.37% 837 6 1.30%
Town of Chapel Hill 657 6 0.97% 712 7 1.11%
UNC Physicians Network LLC 548 7 0.81%
General Electric 459 8 0.68% 400 10 0.62%
Aramark Services 413 9 0.61%
AKG of America 330 10 0.49%
Blue Cross Blue Shield 1,373 3 1.55%
HRR Prime LLC 572 8 0.89%
522 9 0.81%

Harris Teeter, Inc

Source: Orange County Economic Development Commission, Employment Security Commission
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ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Table 17
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Nine Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
For Year Ended June 30
Function/Program 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Human Services:
Public health occupied square footage 18,400 18,400 18,400 33,638 33,638 30,027 31,433 31,433 31,433 31,433
Social services occupied square footage 24,584 27,595 60,181 59,825 59,825 55,430 55,437 55,437 55,437 55,437
Cooperative extension occupied square footage 4,986 4,986 4,986 4,986 4,986 4,968 5,198 5,198 5,198 5,198
Number of centers 13 13 13 13 13 13 14 15 15 15
Public Safety:
Number of law enforcement vehicles 111 125 129 137 141 153 146 143 143 152
Number of emergency services vehicles 38 38 33 28 31 32 34 34 34 39
Number of animal control vehicles 8 8 8 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Detention capacity 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129
Cultural and Recreational:
Libraries - branches 4 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Volume of library books 278,488 271,066 195,282 113,978 100,843 103,259 111,421 114,580 114,580 111,682
Education:
Number of schools 29 29 29 29 29 30 30 30 30 30

Source: Orange County Finance and Administrative Services Department
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